Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

THURSDAY, 5TH NOVEMBER, 2009 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Diakides, Gorrie, Mallett (Vice-Chair),
Mughal, Meehan, Butcher and Dobbie

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES

To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 15 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the matter
becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

11.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -14)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 30 July 2009.
DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2008/09 (PAGES 15 - 30)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to update the Committee on the final outcome of
the annual audit for 2008/09 and to agree the Council’s response to the action plan
proposed by the Council’s auditors following their audit of the accounts.

COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT (CAA): USE OF RESOURCES (UOR) -
AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE 2008/09 ASSESSMENT (PAGES 31 - 90)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform the Committee of the auditor’'s
assessment of the Council’'s Use of Resources and the Council’s intended actions to
implement auditor recommendations.

GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 91 - 92)

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING TO HOUSING
BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT (PAGES 93 - 100)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to advise and update Members on the Counter
Fraud performance of the Benefit and Local Taxation Service from the 1% July 2009 —
30™ September 2009.

INTERNAL AUDIT 2ND QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 101 - 154)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the work undertaken during the second quarter by the Internal Audit Service in
completing the annual audit plan and any responsive fraud investigation work. In
addition, the work of the Council’s personnel division in supporting disciplinary action
taken across all departments by respective council managers.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE - QUARTER 2 2009/10 (PAGES 155 - 162)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to inform the Audit Committee of the current
position on risk management implementation across the Council.



12. ALEXANDRA PALACE - FOLLOW UP AUDIT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND INTERNAL CONTROLS AT THE CHARITABLE TRUST AND TRADING
COMPANY (PAGES 163 - 188)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to advise the Audit Committee of the follow up
audit work completed following the original review of corporate governance and
internal control arrangements at Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable Trust and
Alexandra Park Trading Limited.

13. NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE (PAGES 189 - 192)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the operation and progress made in investigating potential data matches across the
Council as part of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI).

14. ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY (PAGES 193 - 224)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to advise the Audit Committee of
the revised Corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy, Fraud Response Plan and
Whistle-blowing Policy.

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.
16. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 1 February 2010 at 7.30pm.

Ken Pryor Helen Jones

Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member Principal Committee Coordinator

Services Tel: 020 8489 2615

5" Floor Fax: 020 8489 2660

River Park House Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ 28" October 2009



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

Councillors Rahman Khan (Chair), Diakides, Mallett (Vice-Chair), Meehan, Dobbie,

Scott and Winskill
Apologies Councillors Butcher, Gorrie and Mughal
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC104 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Gorrie, for whom Clir
Winskill was acting as substitute, Clir Mughal, for whom ClIr Scott was
acting as substitute and from Clir Butcher.

Apologies were also received from Clirs Dobbie and Meehan as they
were required to leave the meeting early to attend another Council
meeting.

The Chair welcomed Clir Dobbie as a new member of the Committee,
and also welcomed Clirs Winskill and Scott as substitute members for
the meeting.

PRAC10§ URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

PRAC10¢ DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Winskill declared a personal interest as a Haringey leaseholder.

PRAC107 MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 2 June
2009 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

PRAC10§ DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no such items.

PRAC109 GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Grant Thornton presented the audit progress report to the Committee
and outlined the key points raised in the report. It was confirmed that the
draft accounts had been provided by the Council early to enable review
work to commence early, and officers were thanked for making this
possible. The audit of the accounts had begun on 6 July 2009, and to
date no major issues had been identified.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

It was reported that good progress had been made with the preparations
for the implementation of the International Financial Reporting
Standards. It was also reported that a high-level review of Member and
senior officer expenses and allowances would be carried out by Grant
Thornton as part of their work on use of resources. All local government
auditors were required by the Audit Commission to look at how local
authorities had responded to the recommendations arising from research
by the Audit Commission into investment in Icelandic Banks; the
outcome of this work would be reported to the General Purposes
Committee in September 2009.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the review of
expenses and allowances, Grant Thornton reported that this would be a
high-level review focussing on the policies and procedures in place, and
whether these were being complied with. Comparison would also be
carried out with other London Boroughs.

The Committee requested that a brief note on the review of the Council’s
arrangements for member expenses and allowances and senior officer
allowances be circulated to the Group Whips.

The Chair welcomed the report that no significant issues had been
identified in the audit of the accounts so far, and noted the forthcoming
reports to Members arising from Grant Thornton’s work.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

CFO

PRAC11(

AUDIT STRATEGY DOCUMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH
2009

Grant Thornton presented the audit strategy document for the year
ending 31 March 2009, and provided details on the key accounting and
business risks as set out in the report. It was noted that the Annual
Governance Statement, which was discussed in length at the previous
meeting of the Committee, would be kept under review to ensure that it
was fully reflective of the issues identified in the course of the audit of
the accounts. Grant Thornton would also be following up on the
recommendations made in the previous year to verify the progress made
in implementing these.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the valuation of
land and buildings mentioned in the report, Grant Thornton reported that
they would be checking that the valuations currently held were accurate
and that assets had been valued using the appropriate valuation
methods. It was also reported that, other than housing assets, which
were re-valued annually, the Council’s assets were re-valued on a five-
year rolling programme, and that the impact of inflation or deflation
would be taken into account at the time of valuation. Specific areas may
be re-valued outside of the rolling programme, where a significant
fluctuation had been identified. The Chair noted that the professional




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

discretion of the Section 151 officer was necessary in determining the
best course of action regarding the sale of the Council’s assets.

The Chair asked whether the risk of land and buildings being
overvalued, as mentioned in the report, would have any impact on
service delivery, and it was confirmed by Graham Oliver, Corporate
Finance, that there would be no impact on the Council’s service delivery.
The Chair requested further details on the error identified within the
previous Fixed Asset Register, and it was agreed that this would be
provided.

The Chair asked for clarification of materiality in respect of the financial
statements. Grant Thornton reported that the calculation was based on
revenue expenditure, on which basis any error reaching the threshold of
£6.5m would be classified as material and result in the Council’s
accounts being qualified. Any identified errors greater than £124k, as 2%
of materiality, would be reported in the financial statements. In response
to a question from the Committee regarding issues identified beneath the
£124k threshold, it was clarified that these were brought to the attention
of officers for action, but were not reported to Members as part of the
financial statements. The Chair expressed concern that matters below
the threshold of £124k were not reported in the financial statements.

The Chair requested a copy of the trial balance, presented to the
auditors on the commencement of fieldwork, for information.

In response to the request in the report for the Committee to provide
input on any areas of concern within the Council, the Chair identified
controls over management issues with the Alexandra Palace and Park
Board and Alexandra Palace Trading Limited, the safeguarding of
children and engagement with the Council’s partners as key concerns. A
member of the Committee expressed concern that some of the issues
raised fell within the remit of other Council bodies and not of the Audit
Committee, and that duplication of effort must be avoided. The Chair
agreed that duplication of effort should be avoided but it was his strong
view that this was not duplication as, according to the Audit Committee’s
terms of reference the Audit Committee was the appropriate forum to
express the concerns. The Chair also reported that Grant Thornton had
requested the input of the Committee and accordingly, as Chair of the
Audit Committee, he had provided this input because the Council had
been seen to be subsidising the overall yearly shortfall of Alexandra
Palace and Park, whereas the Council had been seen not to be
exercising any direct control on the basis that that Alexandra Park was a
Trust, and because, as a result of the Council’s performance on
safeguarding children, the overall rating of the Council was downgraded
from three to one by Grant Thornton. As such, these were the genuine
concerns of the Audit Committee, according to the Chair.

The Chair reported that the Audit Committee was eager to discharge its
duties in relation to reviewing the Council’s internal financial controls, but
noted that the Committee’s ability to carry out this duty effectively was
dependent on the quality of the reports produced by the professional




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

officers.
RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted, with the above observations and
concerns for actions.

PRAC111

GRANT CLAIMS AND RETURNS PLANNING MEMORANDUM 2008-
09

Grant Thornton presented the report on Grant Claims and Returns
Planning, which outlined the grants protocol for 2008-9 and the
estimated cost of the certification of grants claims and returns. As the
number of grants exceeding the threshold for certification had reduced, it
was anticipated that the fee would be lower than for the previous year,
by approximately £17k.

The Committee expressed concern that 88% of claims were submitted
on time, given the substantial amounts of funds involved, and that a third
of claims were qualified and/or amended. The Committee requested
from officers that 100% of claims should be targetted to be submitted on
time, and that there should be far fewer claims requiring amendment.
Grant Thornton reported that progress for the current year to date did
seem more positive. In response to a question from the Committee
regarding whether any losses were incurred as a result of late
submission or qualification of claims, it was confirmed that no grant
income had been lost as a result of these issues. Members welcomed
the fact that no grant income had been lost, but emphasised that there
was potential for loss when claims were not submitted on time or
required amendment, which was why it was important to improve
performance. The Chief Financial Officer confirmed that officers were
focussed on improving performance and that, whenever a claim was
qualified, this was re-examined to identify why this occurred and to
correct the process for the future.

In response to a question from the Committee on whether the Council
was making all the claims it was entitled to, the Chief Financial Officer
reported that where claims were made, these were always for the full
amount possible and that an external funding forum was in place to
discuss and work together across Council departments to apply for
relevant grants. It was also confimed that all Government
announcements were actively monitored by the Council for information
on new grants available, in addition to the routine grants which were
applied for each year. The Council had requested a comprehensive list
of grants available from the Government, but such a list was not
available.

Graham Oliver, Corporate Finance, clarified for the Committee that not
all grants required certification, only those where this was a statutory
requirement.

In response to a question from the Chair regarding the inclusion of
specific work on grant claims and returns testing in the Internal Audit




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

Plan, it was confirmed that this was included for the 2009/10 Internal
Audit Plan, and that the external auditors and Internal Audit were liaising
to discuss this issue further.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC112

REPORT ON INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONTROLS

Grant Thornton presented a report on Information Technology Controls,
the purpose of which was to provide assurance regarding controls in
those areas of information technology that may impact on the Council’s
financial statements. The assessment had covered areas including
security, administration, access and the implementation of new systems.
The report concluded that the Councils controls were suitably designed.
Two low priority recommendations had been identified, the requirement
of all staff to acknowledge their understanding of the security policy and
procedures and the introduction of controls within SAP to prevent
common or predictable passwords. It had been agreed that both
recommendations would be implemented by December 2009. In
response to a query from the Committee regarding why it would take
untii December 2009 to implement the recommendations, Grant
Thornton reported that they had been advised that this was due to the
length of time required to introduce a new table for passwords into SAP.

The Committee asked whether more sensitive systems, for example
those in social services, had been looked at in relation to the complexity
of passwords. It was confirmed that 100 days of audit work on the
Council’s IT systems was carried out as part of the yearly Internal Audit
Plan. The Committee requested that a report be presented to the next
Committee meeting on whether the issue of password complexity had
been specifically looked into in sensitive areas, such as children’s
services.

The Committee expressed a view that all staff should be expected to
understand the policies and procedures as part of their work, and should
be asked to confirm their acceptance of the relevant procedures in
writing. The Committee requested that an explanation be provided of
why the advice from HR was that it was not always appropriate to obtain
this confirmation in writing.

The Committee discussed the scope of the report, and Grant Thornton
confirmed that the report was only on those key controls relating to the
Council’s financial statements, and not the IT systems overall. If as a
result of this work, however, broader recommendations relating to IT
were identified, it was confirmed that these would be reported. It was
reported that dedicated IT audit work was carried out on an ongoing
basis on the Council’s systems, as a result of which any adverse findings
would be reported and followed up, and the implementation of all
recommendations relating to IT systems was monitored. The Chair noted
that it was the role of the Audit Committee to ensure best practice, and




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

asked the Chief Financial Officer to advise whether a further detailed
audit review of all the Council’s IT systems was necessary or whether to
accept the scope of the review as set out by the external auditor. The
Chief Financial Officer recommended that the guidance of the external
auditor be taken and the scope of the review as reported on be
accepted.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC113

ANNUAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION LETTER 2008/09

The Chief Financial Officer presented the report on the Annual Audit and
Inspection Letter 2009, which set out the response of the Cabinet.
Appended to the report was the full report of the Audit Commission and
the Use of Resources judgement. Four key areas for action were
identified in the report, and these had been approved by the Cabinet.
The areas identified were: to address the findings and recommendations
made by Ofsted in the Special Joint Area Review, to accelerate the pace
of improvement in environment (recycling) and homelessness, to
maintain sustained focus on addressing staff sickness levels and
recruiting key personnel and to ensure Treasury Management strategy
continues to form a robust member led process for protecting the
Council’s financial assets.

The Chair reported that, although the report had already been
considered by the Cabinet, as per the responsibilities given to the
Committee by the Council as set out in the terms of reference of the
Committee, it was within the remit of the Audit Committee and
accordingly the comments of the Committee in relation to the report
should be placed on the formal record for action.

The Committee accepted that, as set out in the report, there were issues
with recruitment to certain posts across London and the South East, but
felt that it was complacent to state that the Council was not too different
from many other London boroughs, given the unique challenges faced
by the Council in relation to recruitment in areas such as the Children
and Young People’s Service. The Committee requested that these
circumstances specific to the Council be taken into consideration and
addressed as part of the Council’s actions to maintain a sustained focus
on addressing staff sickness levels and recruiting key personnel. The
Chief Financial Officer confirmed that a number of actions to address the
issues of recruitment and retention were ongoing.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding whether the
Council’s existing policy on reducing the number of agency staff should
be reviewed in light of the likely reduction in public spending in the next
two years, the Chief Financial Officer reported that this issue was under
consideration as part of the forward planning process. The Chief
Financial Officer confirmed that, while use of agency staff did provide
greater flexibility in the management of resources, this also needed to be




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

balanced with the needs of those services which benefited significantly
from the employment of staff on a permanent basis. It was noted that the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had requested a Leaders’ Conference
on the issue of the contraction of public spending, and it was suggested
that this item might be included on the agenda.

The Chair noted that as part of the forthcoming CAA assessment
process, the Council would be required to submit evidence of
improvement, and asked whether any evidence for improvement in
Children’s Services was currently available. The Chief Financial Officer
responded that evidence for improvement would be gathered as part of
the monitoring of the JAR action plan, which sets out key areas and
actions for improvement.

The Chair expressed concern that the issue of teenage pregnancy was
not addressed in the actions arising from the Audit and Inspection letter,
although this was important for the area of safeguarding children. Grant
Thornton reported that the Audit Commission was anticipating that the
Council would fully implement the JAR action plan, and that actions
relating to safeguarding children would be covered by the JAR action
plan. The Chair noted that the issue of teenage pregnancies was
mentioned specifically in the direction of travel section of the audit and
inspection letter, and that there should be specific actions identified to
tackle this issue. It was reported that partnership working was essential
to address the issue, and that the Council’s partner organisations did
have plans in place to address rates of teenage pregnancy. The Chair
reported that he had taken up the issue with the Chief Executive by
email and had requested that an action plan for addressing teenage
pregnancy, in partnership with other agencies, be added to the response
to the audit and inspection letter.

The Committee noted and acknowledged the good work of the Council’s
finance officers in achieving an assessment of 3 out of 4, and expressed
thanks to all officers involved for this achievement.

Taking into account all the comments made by the Committee in their
discussion above, and the specific request to the Chief Executive that an
action for address teenage pregnancy be added to the Council's
response to the audit and inspection letter it was:

RESOLVED
i) That the audit and inspection letter be noted.

ii) That the response and actions as set out in the report agreed
by Cabinet on 16 June 2009 be noted.

iii) That an action plan to reduce teenage pregnancy, in
partnership with other agencies, be added to the Council’s
response to the Audit and Inspection Letter.




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

PRAC114

PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY RELATING
TO HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT - QUARTER 1
Tim Fisher, Benefits and Local Taxation, presented the report outlining
the performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the first quarter of
2009/10. It was reported that 11 sanctions had been made in the first
quarter, and that although this was below the expected profile, it was
anticipated that the target for sanctions would be met for the year as a
whole. There had been a recent focus on data-matching activities
including the National Fraud Initiative and Housing Benefit Matching
Service referrals, and a more detailed report on these activities would be
presented at the next meeting of the Committee.

The Committee felt that it would be helpful to include a comparison with
figures from the previous year in the performance reports, and Mr Fisher
agreed that this would be incorporated in future reports. The Committee
asked about the difference between the cost of the team, and the
amount of overpaid benefits identified. Mr Fisher reported that the
amount of overpaid benefits identified in this quarter had been
particularly low, but would increase later in the year. It was reported that
an article on successful prosecution in relation to benefit fraud would be
appearing soon in Haringey People, and that there would also be an
article on the national Fraud Initiative and how to report suspected fraud.
Mr Fisher clarified for the Committee that all the activities referred to in
the report related to fraud, and did not include overpayments due to
error.

RESOLVED

That the report and the work being carried out by the Benefits and Local
Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity be noted.

PRAC11¢

EXTERNAL INSPECTION HOUSING - PROGRESS REPORT

The Chair welcomed Phil Harris, Assistant Director Strategic and
Community Housing, to the Committee to present the report on progress
in response to the Audit Commission’s inspection recommendations for
allocations and lettings. Mr Harris reported that improvement work was
ongoing, and that progress against the action plan was monitored
formally on a fortnightly basis. Since the Audit Commission’s report of
October 2007, numerous changes had been made to address the issues
raised, including changes in personnel, the development of a multi-
organisational homelessness strategy, a comprehensive housing
strategy, increased activity with the temporary accommodation user
forum and the involvement of service users on interview panels. It was
reported that the percentage of temporary staff employed had reduced
from 29% to 20% during the implementation of the new structure, and
that no redundancies had been made. The issue of temporary
accommodation remained a priority, and the number of households in
temporary accommodation had reduced from around 5,400 to 4,336 and
was likely to have reduced further to less than 3,500 by the end of
November 2009. It was the aim of the Service to have reduced this
further to 2,600 by the end of 2010.




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

Mr Harris reported that, from a very challenging starting point, the
Service was moving in the right direction and that all the
recommendations raised by the Audit Commission in their report would
have been addressed within the next 12 months.

The Committee asked about the issues relating to households placed
outside the borough, and how these could be addressed. Mr Harris
reported that the number of households placed outside the borough had
reduced since 2003/04 from around 100 to around 30 families. In future,
it was proposed that any leases procured or renewed would not be
further than 1.5 miles beyond the borough boundary, and that the
Council was working to dispose of leases held outside of that area. The
Committee asked about the situation with households housed
temporarily within Haringey by other London boroughs, and it was
reported that the Council was looking to reduce the number of
households being housed in the borough from other boroughs by means
of procurement processes.

The Committee asked about the voluntary London Agreement to
address the issue of private landlords abusing the system, and was
informed that this was no longer in operation, as it had not been possible
to obtain the transparency required. It was reported that the Council was
continuing to work with private landlords, however, and it was hoped that
this relationship would continue to develop. In response to a question
from the Chair, Mr Harris confirmed that the situation had improved
significantly, and that meetings with private landlords were now being
held on a regular basis.

The Chair noted that a number of the recommendations contained in the
action plan were ongoing, and asked how these ongoing actions were
being monitored. Mr Harris reported that robust monitoring strategies
were in place, with lead officers and a number of service improvement
groups were tasked with carrying out the actions identified and that
implementation of the homelessness strategy was supported by 9
delivery groups and monitored by an implementation group. Progress on
all actions was monitored on a fortnightly basis by a Board chaired by
the Chief Executive. Mr Harris confirmed that he was the overall co-
ordinator for monitoring progress.

In response to a question from the Chair regarding the level of
assistance offered by the Housing Associations, Mr Harris confirmed that
the Council was working with the Housing Associations to increase
capacity. The Committee asked about the income received from private
landlords, and how the management costs of these arrangements was
funded. It was confirmed that management costs had been funded by
Central Government, but that the changes in subsidy arrangements in
2009 meant that this income would no longer be received. The way in
which the impact of this change would be managed was being
considered as part of the business planning process. The Council was
responding formally to a consultation on the changes and was also
making preparations by reducing the use of temporary and emergency




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

accommodation.

The Chair thanked Phil Harris, Assistant Director, for presenting the
report and responding to all the questions raised in relation to the report.

RESOLVED

That progress made to the Allocations and Lettings service to improve
this service area be noted.

PRAC11¢

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT -2009/10 QUARTER 1

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the
Internal Audit progress report for the first quarter of 2009/10, and
advised the Committee that 80% of the planned Internal Audit
programme for quarter 1 had been completed. Ms Woods reported that
no new referrals for investigations had been received during quarter 1,
but a number had been submitted in the first 3 weeks of quarter 2. Work
was being carried out to ensure that nominated officers were fully trained
for the National Fraud Initiative, as a number of new areas had been
introduced, including parking, freedom passes, blue badges and care
homes.

The Chair advised the Committee that the revised deadlines for the
implementation of audit recommendations in the report had been revised
with the agreement of the Chair, on the basis of advice from the Chief
Financial Officer. The Chair confirmed that these deadlines were final,
and would not be extended any further. Any failure to meet the final
deadlines would necessitate the attendance of the relevant Head of
Service at the subsequent meeting of the Audit Committee to explain to
the Committee why the deadline had not been met, in accordance with
the decision previously made by the Committee.

The Committee welcomed the full assurance level given to Pension
Fund Investment, and asked why some other areas had only been given
an assurance level of substantial, even when no recommendations had
been made. Ms Woods reported that, where further improvement could
be made but this was already covered by existing action plans, no
further recommendations were made, to avoid duplication. The Chair
expressed satisfaction with the progress made on the implementation of
outstanding priority 1 recommendations, and expressed thanks to
officers for this achievement.

RESOLVED

i) That the audit coverage and progress during the first quarter
2009/10 be noted.

ii) That the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations, and the fact that any
failure to comply with the final revised deadlines for
implementation would require the appropriate Head of Service




Page 11

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

to attend a meeting of the Committee to explain the reasons
for this, be noted.

PRAC117

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2008/09

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the final Annual Governance Statement, which had been amended to
take into account all of the comments made by the Committee when the
draft Annual Governance Statement had been considered at the
previous meeting. It was reported that final version of the statement had
been presented to the General Purposes Committee for approval.

The Chair commented that, as the final version had been approved,
there was no scope for any further changes to be made to the statement,
but noted that appendix 2 had been erroneously duplicated in the
paperwork and that the duplicate version should be disregarded. The
Chair also noted that the statement would need to be signed off finally
when the audit of the accounts was finalised, and could be amended to
reflect any new issues arising between now and the final sign-off on 30
September 2009.

The Chair noted that the statement recognised that the scope of the
internal audit plan included non-financial systems as well as financial
systems, and added, in respect of paragraphs 4.7 and 4.9 of the report,
that the Audit Committee was responsible for ensuring that all
recommendations were implemented, not just those at priority 1, in order
to ensure best practice. The Chair requested that officers consider
amending the wording to reflect this in paragraphs 4.7 and 4.9 of the
statement, if any opportunity to modify the wording arose.

RESOLVED

That the final version of the Annual Governance Statement and
supporting evidence matrix for 2008/09 be noted.

PRAC11¢

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented a report
on the current position on risk management. Ms Woods advised the
Committee of progress in inputting risk registers onto the new
performance management system, and reported that risk registers from
Corporate Resources, PPP&C and ACCS had been uploaded in the first
quarter and officers trained in the use of the system. By the end of
quarter 2, the risk registers for all departments would be uploaded onto
the new system and officers would have received training. Ms Woods
noted that as a result of structural changes within the Council, the risk
register for the Enforcement business unit was now contained within
Frontline Services, and the risk register for Neighbourhood Management
was now incorporated into Safer Communities. In response to a question
from the Chair, it was confirmed that these structural changes were the
reason for the total number of risk registers having reduced from 34 to
32.




Page 12

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

The Chair noted that, in the audit report for Area Based Grants, it was
reported that there was no risk register for the HSP and asked for further
details regarding this. Ms Woods responded that it had been found that,
while a risk register was in place for each of the underlying HSP
Thematic Boards, there had been no risk register for the HSP Board as a
whole. Ms Woods reported that an overall HSP Board risk register had
now been produced and approved by the Performance Management
Group, and would be ratified by the HSP Board at its next meeting.

Referring to the annual Audit and Inspection letter, the Chair asked for a
response on the comment that the Council’s corporate risk register did
not include the risk of fraud occurring. Ms Woods responded that the risk
of fraud had been formally included on the Council’s corporate risk
register since January 2009.

The Chair urged that it was essential for the Chief Financial Officer's
comments on the report to confirm that Risk Management was being
adequately managed in the Council, and it was agreed that this would be
reflected more explicitly in future reports.

RESOLVED

That the implementation of the risk management strategy across the
Council be noted.

PRAC11¢

WHISTLEBLOWING - REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION AND USE
2008/09

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented a report
on the operation and use of the Council’s whistleblowing policy, which
was in place to enable staff within the Council to raise concerns. Ms
Woods advised the Committee that staff received reminders of the
whistleblowing policy twice each year via team briefs and Smart Talk,
and that in addition to this every member of staff was written to
individually every two or three years to ensure that all staff were aware
of the policy. Ms Woods reported that the formal whistleblowing process
was employed infrequently, and that concerns tended to be directed
anonymously to the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding whether
bullying was also covered by the policy, Ms Woods reported that bullying
was dealt with by other specific policies designed to address this issue.
Training on bullying was carried out with senior managers on a periodic
basis, but it was confirmed that there was no regular training programme
on this issue.

The Chair asked whether the Council was complying with best practice
in this area, in comparison with other London boroughs. It was reported
that Haringey was generally in line with other London boroughs in terms
of its whistleblowing policy.

Concern was raised that a review of the policy may be needed, and that




Page 13

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

the Audit Committee should discuss this, consider the evidence available
and also examine specific scenarios. It was noted by the Chair, however,
that the policy had been examined by Internal Audit and that the
responsibility for the implementation of the policy lay with officers and
was not within the remit of the Audit Committee. As agreed previously by
the Audit Committee, monitoring of the use of the policy was the role of
the Leader and Chief Executive. The suggestion was made that a
whistleblowing role-playing exercise could be undergone involving staff,
as a means of training and identifying any issues in practice.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC12(

DRAFT REPORT TO FULL COUNCIL ON THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE IN 2008/09

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, reported on the
proposed report to Full Council on the work of the Audit Committee
during 2008/09.

The Chair noted that, in the section referring to the Audit Committee’s
receipt of the report on the internal audit of governance arrangements at
Alexandra Palace and Park (paragraph 5.2 of the report), no mention
was made of the Committee’s decision that all recommendations should
be implemented by a deadline of 31 March 2009. The Committee agreed
that the report should be amended to include this point.

RESOLVED

i) That, with the addition of the point that a deadline of 31 March
2009 was imposed by the Committee for the implementation of
all recommendations arising from the internal audit report of
governance arrangements at Alexandra Palace and Park, the
draft report on the work of the Committee during 2008/09 be
approved.

ii) That the final version of the report be presented to the next
available Full Council meeting for information.

PRAC121

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRAC12Z

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 5 November 2009 at 19:30hrs.

The meeting closed at 21:50hrs.




Page 14

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 30 JULY 2009

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair



Page 15 Agenda ltem 6

Haringey Council

Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 5" November 2009

Report title: Audit of Accounts 2008/09

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1To update the Committee on the final outcome of the annual audit for 2008/09 and to
agree an action plan flowing from the audit of the accounts and auditors final report.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the action plan
and receives an update on agreed actions at a future meeting of this Committee.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Graham Oliver - Head of Finance — Accounting and Control
Telephone 020 8489 3725

| of 4



Page 16

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The statutory report of Grant Thornton following their audit of the Council’s accounts
2008/09 was approved by the General Purposes Committee on 24" September 2009. It
was agreed that following the close of the audit the proposed action plan arising from
this audit would be approved and monitored by the Audit Committee. The actions
proposed arising from the report are included within the appendix to this report.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Report of Chief Financial Officer to General Purposes Committee on 25 June 2009 —
Statement of Accounts 2008/09

Report of Chief Financial Officer to General Purposes Committee on 24 September 2009 —
Annual Governance Report

6. Background

6.1 At the General Purposes committee meeting of 24" September 2009, Grant
Thornton presented to members the findings from their audit of the accounts
for 2008/09, prior to signing off the audit by the statutory deadline of 30™
September 2009.

6.2 It was agreed that following the closure of the annual audit any follow up
actions that were required would be brought to the Audit Committee for
approval and on-going monitoring.

6.3 The statutory deadline for the signing off of the accounts by the Authority’s
auditors was 30" September 2008, in the event the auditors issued the opinion
on 25" September 2009.

6.4  The auditors delivered an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the

Council has proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

2 of 4




7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

Page 17

Accounts Opinion

The Council produced an initial set of draft 2008/09 accounts on 5 June 2009
(prior to submission to the auditor of the full draft accounts on 24 June), which
enabled the auditors to use an initial team and carry out a technical review of
the accounts to take place and be fed back, prior to production and approval of
the formal draft accounts. This enabled audit work to begin early and was
useful for the Council in obtaining timely feedback on its accounts. Grant
Thornton have submitted the closedown process to the Audit Commission as
good practice.

The auditor has stated that the closedown process was well managed by the
Council this year and that there is clear corporate commitment to producing
good quality accounts. This resulted in a relatively smooth audit process and a
reduced level of proposed adjustments. Additionally, the auditor concluded that
the Council had already engaged effectively in taking forward planning for
accounting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The key highlights from the audit are set out below:

* The Council should develop its systems and procedures for valuing fixed
assets so that it can be assured that its asset base has been valued
appropriately and that the value of fixed assets shown in the balance sheet
remains materially correct.

* There is scope for improvement in aspects of fixed asset accounting,
including ensuring that fixed asset registers remain up to date, contain
sufficient detail and that only appropriate expenditure is capitalised. Fixed
asset accounting is one of the key areas where councils will need to carry out
significant additional work in preparation for the introduction of International
Financial Reporting Standards.

* The accounts had properly reflected the calculated impairment in respect of
deposits in Icelandic banks in accordance with the national guidance issued
The auditor's review of Treasury Management arrangements, using the
standard workbook issued by the Audit Commission, demonstrated that the
Council has sound arrangements in place and has taken positive and
appropriate action to deal with the fall out from the Icelandic banking crisis.

* A review of members' and senior officers' expenses and allowances found
appropriate procedures and controls are currently in operation.

Action Plan arising from Annual Governance Report 2008/09

The Annual Governance Report agreed by the General Purposes committee

contained a draft action plan for improvements arising from the annual audit.

This report and action plan is attached at Appendix A to this report with the

management responses included.

Financial Implications

3of4



9.1

10

10.1

11

11.1

Page 18

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in
this report.

Recommendations

That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the
action plan and receives an update on agreed actions at a future meeting of
this Committee.

Head of Legal Services comments

There are no specific legal implications.

4 of 4



Page 19

-arerzdordde

s1 rearden 01 papood armapuadxo
9INSUD O} PUD FEIA 2J0JI( INO PILITELD
9 A SBITE YSIX YSTY JO oD
spdwres ¢ wonppe uy srupuadxs
Tendeo Surpaedor ooeyd wr ind oq [
90UEPING pUE $2INSLIW [EUOHIPPY

"paoIdy

s[re3ap voneyuswdus
pue asuodsar juouaSvuepy

43y

Kuoug

2amyrpuadxe Sursiendes

USYM SPIEPULIS SUNUNOIOE YHA
souedwos syensuowsp Ay o3 yren
ypne oy} saoxduwry pnoys punon) sy,

UONEPUI WO Y

"2INITU UT 9NUIADT 2q 03 sreadde

ey smupuadxo 303 Apremonsed Gmupuadxo
Susieardes 103 vonesynsn( pue suonruop

S} U2IYS 03 SPIdV [I9UNOY) 2Y) “POyIIUSpI

$9sed 91} 103 papraoxd 93om suoneur[dxa ISPy
‘pasteades aq jou pmoys Lofod Fununosoe
UMO §,1DUNOY) 93 PUE siuawaImbar Jyog oy
TOPUN YOIYM “$1SOD (INUIAIT "9°T) DULUI}UTEW
pue smedsx oq 03 paseadde reyp smypuadxo

UUmﬂdﬁ&dU JO SW_IT U1e} 190 pomoys waummﬁ meQ Qqu

uopesyelrded - Fununodde 19sse paxy] 1

Suisire PUE

NPNE SJUNOJIY UB[J TBOMOY 1)

uojuioy | Juelo) °

60/8007 SoUBUIBACY yim pabieyn asouy o) Modey mnuuy



Page 20

duwurerdord

rended (1 /600 9yr wr puads [eniov
umop Supfeaiq pue uoneruawadwr
SYI 2y woxy pasoyed
UOREWIOFUT SUTYE) ‘SLITE 9$9Y) 0]
Sp30297 39ssE [Enprarpur Juswadwr

"SYI Jopun pamnbaz oq A yorga

STy} Op O3 S[001 A} SBY § [PUNOT)

11 ‘pIONPOIITT U Sy [PPOW JusWIFeULW
19SSE JVS 2U3 I} MON] "SY,I] Fopun

paamboaz oq [ yorym ‘s3osse 9INIONTISLIJUT PUE
wowdmbs pue Jued ‘sopryoa T0J SPI0DT JOSSE

03 1738 2UNo~y 21U} u ‘s39sse aanponmseIyur pue Juswdmbs 42
LS DAY 01/600C UI puv yurd ﬁmuﬁuﬁuw How e [ENPIAIPUT P[oY APU2IInd jou $20p [PPUNOT) YT,
"PaoIdy Sy . [ENPIATPUT 92NPOIIUT PINOYS [PPUNOT) YT, 19151393 Jasse - FunuNoooE 19sse paxIg ¢
“Sununosoe juedwos NV
JIM JUDISISUOD 2 JOU [[IM SIY) PUE Spoypow
uonepardop puonusauod Topun paodxs
oq pmom uey) 2y uoneardop ramor
01/6002 -posnpoRTY ApueoyrudIs € 03 Spual SIY) “IAIMOL] YOS
ur padreypd aq [ sSurPmp s1 Sununosow QY] st uoneraidap asnoy 2 4q pasorre dpuarmd st :UMAB mcowﬁuu&ew
[PUNOd To yonenaIdap [,y [ounoy) 103 £x01d © se (YYN) 2ouemo[e IsnoY RUNoy 305 Axoxd € st (VYN (9
. o smedoz Jolewr oy Sursn woiy {eme PouEaole saredoi oleur ayy Jursn ouno) oy,
‘pa21dv Sr saouwr 01 axedaad pmoys ouNnoy o uonendxdop - Sununoodoe 1asse paxa .
% A Yoty ppoys v D 9YL 1jel P I pox1g 4

spreasp uonvyuswddun

pue ssuodsor yusuwFeuey

Kuoug

UOREPUIWOdIY

Suisue e

60/8002 @ouRWIBACD Ui paBieys asoul 03 poday Enuuy




Page 21

szoupne oy 4q parySydy

ST ‘JOXID JO S{SIT 9} Suronpas sny)
‘siseq Appa3renb v wo Jy§ ydnomyg
passa001d aq T spesodsi(] “smooo
UODEIHISST[D 1093702 2INSUD 01 208[d
ur Ind oq [ S[ONVOD [PUOHIPPY

"PaIdy

sprelap uonejudwpdun

pue suodsar juduwFeur

ySiy

"asodsp 01 TOISIIP

a3 Surwoyur yo asodmd o 30}

INO PITITED ITIM LY SUONEN[EA JOO[JoT
o3 pajepdn £pdwoid st 10181801 1955
POXIJ OU3 JEY3 2INSTD PUE LINDIE ANy ST
Tesodsip Sunreme siasse jo UONEIYTSSE[D
9Y3 9IMSUD P[NOYS [PUNOT) YT,

aonepud Waoo2y

"J99Ys 2duE[E(q

pud 1894 93 UT papod9I suonEneA 19971700W1
Suraey jo pue ssof pue myoid Supemores ur syo110
JO Y{s13 91 s9saI0UT 901oeId SIY ‘Paisay am
ardures oy ur 41001300 pare[mores sea Tesodsip
U0 sso] J0 13ord pue puo 1eaA 18 LSupIodor
patepdn st 19351301 30888 a3 y3noyiy -opewr

9T¢ SUONEN[EA ISOY} JBY) SWwn Y3 1e osodsip

01 uoIs19p I Surwoyur jo ssodmd 3y J03 INO
PALIIEd 9T2M JEY) STOREN[EA 109391 01 pajepdn
Apuazmo Jou st 10151807 J9ssE Pax1y oy ‘os[y

“UOTIETJISSL[OSTUI

1997s 20UP[Eq € UT SIMSIT SIYI “ON[EA UT JULIITudLs
10U ySnopry ¥ Jo ssodsip o1 J0u aprw

U99q Pry VOIS Y3 uaym [esodsip Sumeme

ST PIPISSY[d Y99 FIv ponfea 9sse oUO pUNoy I

sjesodsIp - 3ununodoe J9sse paxL]

Sursue NEpN

¥z

60/800¢ @ouBLLBALY Yum pafiiey:) asoy o Modey pnuuy



Page 22

‘Appanooyye suaddey stp omsus
01 sampado1d 281437 01 ToyI301
Sunprom axe sao1azag f1rador
averodron) pue sdueur,] sesodron)

-orerrdordde

9J€ SPI0DDT UONIEN[EA 19SSE

ST 18] IDUEBINSSE SIAIS I8} 2UO

01 34> wonen(ea Jed£ ¢ PISIT € Woly
feme oaow 01 pounor) oy sxmbox
4 QY] UONIPPE U] "PoMIIAdT

9q [[IM SUOTIEN[EA JISSE [[¢ QY]

30 voneiwowoadur o1 jo 17ed SV

PR3y

sprersp uoneluawajduy
pue ssuodsds JudwaSeuryy

Yy3tH

"syuawaImbox

Sununoode pue uoneneA
JuaduIns 230w S YIM £[PATID}FO
Surpeap 01 PAIOAIP ST IDINOSIT
JuardIIINS Jey) SurINsud SwpnOur
‘ATsOD J9Y0301 JFOM SIITATIG
fa30dox pue soueur,] sresodion)

$1958®

JO on[eA e 91 109[Jo3 A[[erIojewy
SIUNODIE [ENUUE ) 18} 9INSUD 0}
Kouonbaxy 1usanhyns I 2oed oye)
$moTAT Judwedun pue suonenea

souTPpPMS UONEN[EA JUITIND

M 90UEPIODIIE UT PUE SISE( 109ITOD
ay31 uo panea pue sjuduodwod
1993302 93 ojur I[ds aTe s1ossE

ey SUTINSUD SPN[OUT A SIY T, “1D9TI0D
Arerzorewr urewa 199Ys 2oUL[Eq Y}

UT UAOYS S}9SSE PIXTJ JO on[eA 9 Jey)
pue Arerrdordde panpea usaq sey aseq
19sse s)I Jeyl paJnasse o9q ued I jeyy os
§198Se poxy wg_ﬂwxw 103 wQHBMUQUOHQ pue
wamvuw%w SH QOMQPD@ mu?o,ﬂm pouno’) Y1,

UONEPUS W03 )]

‘s1ea4 G Ised o ur panpeads

U292 pry $19ssE PIXTJ [[¢ 1Ly SUNLISUOWIP

J0J pUE SUOHEN[EA TODLIq VY[ 1€ Sutame

w pasn suondwnsse Jo BONEIUIWNO0p Y3

u yuowdaordwr 303 9dods pagnuapr os[e pne
mQ "yorordde vonenpeass Suror 1ea4 ¢ 3usIIND
93} JO SUOTEIWI] S S[EIAIT PISEIIOUT $INLA
£139do1d pounor) 1o 1spya sSueap pounod
£53umvyq ur vononpar reak ur Juroyrudrs oy T,

“sToN[EA

ounoy) asnoy-ur £4q 20uepms (SHY) srofoamg
paxaIEy)) Jo a3mnsu] fedoy] Yim aduerdwoo
PUE SPOYIOW UONEN[EA UT SISSIUNEIMN JWOS
PO[ERADT SEY A[EUONIEU SONIIOYINE [E20] JYIO JO
IIQUNU € JO SIUNOIDE d) JunIpne Ul Fom Ing)

SUOIEnjeA 19sse POxIg

Suisue 1Pue)

H0/8002 sourwiaao) yim peliieys asowy o) uodsy

#2)




Page 23

‘010¢

Arenue( Ur 991TWWO,) SUOISUD |

a3 01 UDYE] A [[IA PIEATOJ I9IIeW
ST) SUTAOW UO UONEPUI O]

¥ PUE $9WO02IN0 3

1o 130d21 V "UOnEPUIWIWO33 Y3
our ‘voneredas parmbaz o) I9A1PP
UED VS IYIOYM OIUT UONESNSIAUT
ue M Fuole ‘usyrlIapun

Suroq st sisd[eue syouq PUE $ISOD Y

"PaIdy

spresap voneyvawsjdun
pue asuodsas juswaSvuey

wmrpa A

PUNO7) 21 JO 350 Wy Aeredas
SIUNODDE YUE(q UMO SII SUTALY punj
uorsuad 213 01 UIAIS ST TOTIBIIPISTOD
JEY) SUTEUDT UONEPUIWWOd9T ()

UONEPUIWUWI0IIY

"SJUNODOE JUB(Y puny
[e39uad pue vorsuad Jo | Surduru-0o,, 1u9a21d 01
spesodord wo Sunmsuod st oy (] 3Ly 210U I\

Plqeynuept

Arse2 27¢ puny oY1 01 SunE[RI Spuny INSUI

01 2oe[d UT 918 SJONUOD POOS 1LY} PIPNPTOI
“reak 1se[ UM se Tedk STU} MITAST () "WIA]
108u0] ay3 ur oonoead s Jo AIqenns 9y} 1940
PISIEI 210M SUIIDUOD PUE ‘SPUNJ UTEW [DUNOT)
A SJUNOdIE

Jutq paIeys UT PY 3t SOOUL[E( YSEd punj
vorsuad ‘7ead 3se] 130dor Mo T PAYIIYSIY sy

1UNOJJ¥ YUe(q PuUNny UOISUIJ

Sursue 1onep

&2

B0/8002 SOUBLLIBAOD Lm pabieyn esouyl 03 Wodey enuuy




Page 24

"SJOTIU0D ) UIFUIIS 01 IIPIO UT
pommboz ;1 poaordun pue pomorasx
2q I S, LY Foypo Suriynuapr

303 s9mpad03d oY ], ‘poAIaIT

218 S, T ¢ 2mnsuo 01 adepd ur

nd oq [ syuowaGuerre pasorduy

"PIRIdY

speiap voneiudwddur

pue asuodsar Judswadeuey

WnIpa

Luoug

'S 1Y pesopsipun Lue Surdmuapr

103 $9s59003d puedxo ‘vonoerd pood
I QUT UT pUE SUOHEILIP Y B

30 1d12293 Appwm Furmsud J03 sampasord
S3F U233 poYs PENo) Ay,

UONEPUIW0IIY

S 1LY [EH9ITW PISOPSIPUN AUE JOJ Paydayd

9q 398p3] 23 IV} PUSWUIOIIT PINOM I\ “SWIIOJ
UONEIEIP Y JO FUTAIDI 9} IPISINO ST Y
Suidmuapr 305 ssa201d ou st 2301 ‘PoUNON) AP
arm uorssnosip 39d sy - ST, JO UONEdHUIP]

‘sjuounsnipe ypne

[enuaiod Lue proae 01 Japio ur ‘Gupuowwod
ypne 5y3 03 3013d PoATadLI 2 SUONEILIP ¥
1eY] PUSUIWODDY PINOM 94\ "PIATIIIT UIIQ PEY
[[E 3o 309dx0 pnoa am upne 9y Jo pud o Ag
"POAIRDDY UDI( 394 JOU pEY SUONEILPIP Iy 86
JO (G IpNT 93 JO 3TLIS Y 1Y - SUOHEIEIIP Iy

(La¥) suonoesuen Ared parepy

Suisue ouep

)

B0/800Z 8oURLIBALE) Yim paBiey) ssoyl o} uodsey Enuly




Page 25

oW
A0y a73e spasu sz0Npne o) JUINSUD
sny3 ‘seare 989y} JOJ Ipne a3 Jurnp
papraoxd aq [ 1e s1r0doz 9913
A[renanur 01 Ipne WIRILT 93 urInp

‘saoue[Eq

1891 01 PIIU
2/ Jeym SuToq F913¥[ 93 ‘pud IedL JE SIdUE[Eq
uodo eyl IOTILT ‘SJUSWIAOW [EITIOISTY SUTMOYS
97 AJJANOE [EUTWOU JO 239 papraoxd syzodas
O], "STOICIP PUE SIONPIID 1891 01 Surkn uoym

STONPNE O3 YA JIOM [[IA SINDFIO) JONPID PUE JOIGPP PUd T84 Jo Funsay upne 5y SuLMp SINMOYJIP PAIRIUNOOTD I\ #)
npne a1epoey jep siodas uSisop prnoys
Paosdy | wIpoy [PUNO) o ‘Upne ()1 /6007 24 ¥0.] [T} JIPNE J0}IPIID PUe 101 6
"sa010AUT pasnbar oY1 Surstes £q F0110
ST SUn293303 ST PUNOT) YT, “(Y8LTT JO onfea)
PIsIeI U29( 10¥] UT I0U PBY 210U IPIID Y} UT
POPNIUT 939M JEYI SIDTOAUT I} JO OM] TIAIMOL]
THANOD st yons souzed 01 saoroaur Juspeanba
pastu 5q 100 mw J as1BI UL} [PUNOY) Ay T, "euoIo”) rarddns
433900 $,IPUNOY) 21} WOTJ 2ILUISITO SIDTOAUT Y ],
JIPOID 199TIODUT JO YSIF oY} IsuTede
sre8nrw 01 pajuswardwr oq [ TPUNo") o1 £q
PISTET $210U PITD JO MITAIT dfporsad Ny ul JUIINO00 WOFJ SINSS] JL[UWS | PINSSI UdIq 308 UT JOU PBY ILY3 SIDTOAUT ISUTESE
V 'eare st ur ss9203d o1 uayISuons 1u9A91d 03 SJOTITOd 2OUBYUD POYS |  PISTET U] 210U NPIID B JO IDUELISUT JUO PUNOJ
01 pansst 9q [ 2ouEPMS Yso1,] puv ‘onp oq Avw e awoowr oyimy Luv POsIET $210U JPaId pud Jeak-180d Jo Funsal () 47)
ST 9391} JT £JIUOPT 01 PISTE SIIOU IPIID
Paordy | WMoy | JE[WS JUIO MITADI P[NOYS [PPUNOT) YT, soInpadoid 230U 3par)) ]

spreop vonejuswapdu

pue ssuodsas judwaSeury

Aioug

UONEPUIWUIO0IY

Sursue INEN

BO/8007 doususron yim palieyn asouy o) vodey Enuwy




Page 26

"POJTIOAT ST ANSST ST} 2INSUD
0] PasIAdlT 9q TIM S[ONUOD YT,

"Po2Idy

sprezap vonejudwdu

pue asuodsas yudurSeur )

Suong

2Injels Jopun HNQMQGU

I0J papuny UHDU—%CU%O INUIAIT, Jopun

popr0o91 st ararpuadxos aerrdordde

%MCO Jeyl 2umsus pnoys [Iuno’) 9y g,

UONEPUIWWIODY

"210U $19SSE POXTJ 1) UT U
syuawedwur ot UTYIMA ST} AJISSE[D9T 01 paaide

9303030} ‘S JUDWIFLULTY 'SIISSE POUMO
ouno’) uo armrpuadxo [endes Supueyuo onfea
UOU ST SUIPEaY STy Iopun popnppul oxrpuadxo
o1 Jo Wz 1 1y punoy Sunsa) MO IOAIMOL]

*1991[S DUL[E] S [PUNOT)

21 UO J0U s39ssE Uo armpuadxo rendes

apnpul Ajuo pmoys amdyy st ‘Aofod Sununoosoe
§,[PUNOY) A PUE ‘ TYOS O I ,2INIels

sopun [eades £q papuny srnirpuadxs anuoass, sv

POIISSE]D ST IEY) SIUNODDE Y} UL Wig 9] F ST 930y ],

Jinjels Ppun
rendes Aq papuny sxmyrpuadxo onuoAdy

SuIsue PNEW

¥

BO/EO0T BOUBLIBACE) UNm paBieyn asouw 03 Lodsy ernuuy



Page 27

“TedA [erdUTUY

a1 Jo pud o Aq parerdwod

2q [P sSurpeId-91 O1I0ISIY

TV "010¢ P £q paA[osax Aoy ansst
sniels o[durs a1 dary 01 Suruue[d

st yeq 9ve(d ur S[qEIPWN [y

“Krpqer Suturewas o

'60/800¢

J0 pud oyt Aq sSurpers-a1 jo uonoardwoo pauued
o) 2491 AT[NJ 10U PIP [PUNOT) S ISNEII(

ST STU3 33 SurpuElsIopun Fno st 1] ‘sjuswied
snyels o[3urs fenuatod Jo3 vorstaord wy/ (¥

91 § s , 103 Sunumoooe sy a1epdn Apuonbasqns 7
© SEY WED) $90TN0SIY ULWNE] YT, 2 Q.mwaa um«qu ou %ﬁ woﬂoﬁﬂ %MOU © POUTEIUTEW ST [IDUNOT) 9Y1 1LY PIATISO I 4\ 2
Pa0idy |  wmIpay 1dwoid a3 omsus pmoys pouno’) 9y, snye}s J[3uIg 7l
"STUNODIE 9 JO INO TIIILIM
3¢ P[NOYS PUE SIISSE [ENPIAIPUT O PIYUI[ ADITIP
3¢ J0UUED 1Y} SIDUL[E( [ENPISIT O] SIIL[OT
e ey STU) JO 9WOS Je1) ﬁomm ST 3] "930J2q 10 ()T
S PUE INO PITIILd O [[IA SIONPNE “0] POYUI] ST 9DUE[B( PIITIIIP %Mckuwﬁ AMHW Wﬁm MNW)\\%MMMMMMMW&MN Sty
o3 Aq paisonbox se MoTAdI Y T, $IUBIS JUdWIUIIA0S AUt 19SSE YOTYM 109 PoTRpp 83 } T UTAN
dVS U Je3[d 9peW 9 p[noys I Uo Uyl "$9IEPI I YOTYA 01 19558 A} Jo voneardap
"JOSSE UE 01 AIOSIIP PIYUI] 9 WOT,] "SIUNOIDE I} JO INO ISIYY ANTIM SPISSUOTE UMOP UMM Oq UED 90UE[eq JUEI3
[ S1UEIS TUIWUIA0S [[E ‘Opouw PIOYs pue popuny £ou Je() 19sse 9yl 01 | JUTPULISING I3 JeY IIPIO UT ‘SIULIS 9501} WOy
Sununoooe 19sse o) SurALY MOU PIYUT 2¢] I0UTED 1BY] SIDUL[E( PIIIDOP papuUn} 93oMm Jet s3asse o310ads 01 A[qeynuIp!
[PUNOY) Y3 03 1P ‘01 /6007 WOoT] s3ueId JuowuIaaoS [enprsox Auv Amuopr | 2q 03 pasnboI oTe PaIIDFOp SIULIS JUOWUIIAOD) &)
01 9SIIXD IYIINJ € N0 AI18d poys
Poordy | wmIpay [PUNO7) Ay ‘S1UN023E ()T /600 2Y? 70, SI0UP[E(Q PIIIIJIP SIURIS JUIWUIIACL) 11

sprezap uvonejuwwdpdu
poe asuodsar yuowadvury

uonNepuAmmody

Juisue NN

£0/2007 2ouBUIBA0L) Yim peBieyn ssoyl o1 wodey jenuuy




Page 28

“SIUQWIDIBIS

FYIO0 9y 0] $a[OU021 ANy 11 Iyl
2IMSUD PUE JOITD JO YSII AU ISTWIUTW
01 IOPIO UT PIMITAIT SUTD( ST MO[

‘SIUNOJ22T 94}

"OULTIIA0Z I PadTeyd
2SOY} JO UORUINIE A} O3 MEIP M 18 Jee¢ T
JO W SUDUL[Eq € SUTEWDI 9I9Y) “TIAIMOL

JUIUWIDIEISSTUT 971 PIAJOSIT Nﬁumugﬂ eyl 1uowiale)s

MO[J ysed pasiaas e payedord Juswoeuey
"SJUIUIISIATT § [IDUNOT) ) JO suoneonduwn
O[] Ysed a1} 199393 A[1991102 J0U PIp Npne

sed 93 June[nored 103 $89001d 9 UTYIA STUSWIDIEIS I9YIO ) 03 SI[DU0IT .
1 o ? i %M& ‘ypne 10§ wugcmwumﬁmbaﬁmum moyy 303 paAuasald yIIRIELS MO Ysed Jyeap Sy o
‘PIRIdy | WIPAN | [YSEDd 9 1LY} 2INSUD P[NOYS [IOUNOT) Y, TUSWDIBIS MO} Yse)) b1
‘W17 Isowe Jo vare
ST Ut 23n31puadxa () /00T [2I0F JO IXIIUOD o1
e UIYIIA ‘papn[OUT U99q 30U PrY sasudadxa [aAern)
T et e —— 92UDI2JUOD JO YZF 1yl punoy o\ ‘sasuadxa
sosuadxa pue sodUEBMO[E STOqUDW ‘T4 I1X9U 9jou STQUIITE [E 9PR2UE OS[E P[nOYS sauTmo[[e
JO mo1A01 ajeredos v opnpPul SIUNOODE JULAIT s urgiia dn paspord wﬁuﬁﬂsa S[E39p Jeyl 910U SUNUNOIOE
[ ssad0xd 2Isop s1uUnod2dE Ay T, a1e [oxded era passadoxd jou are B o a1, "s9suadXd PUE $9OULMO[E STOqUIAW JO 012
$1502 $9sUdXd PUE SIOULMOY[E STIGUIIA UHS9Y I1O TWHOT} TOISSIHO JOUI 3O PUnoy 3 4\
‘PooIdy | wmnIpoy Aue Jetp) 9IMSUD PINOYS [IPUNOT) YT, $9suadxd pUE SAOULMO[[E ,SIOqUIdA] €1

sprelap uoneyuduwd|duny
pue ssuodsds yuswoSeue

UONEPUIURUIOIIY

Sursge NeN

$0/8002 BousuLAOD Yim paliey) asoyl 01 podey jenuuy




Page 29

GrantThornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd (Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occastoned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



jelgael Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Audit Committee On 5 November 2009

Report Title: Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA)

Auditor’s Report on the Use of Resources 2008/09

Report of: Chief Financial Officer

Signed :

Contact Officers: Kevin Bartle, Head of Corporate Finance, 020 8489 3743
Eve Pelekanos, Head of Policy and Performance, 020 8489 2508

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report
1.1.To inform the Committee of the auditor's assessment of the Council’'s Use of
Resources and the Council’s intended actions to implement auditor
recommendations.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1.The Use of Resources assessment forms part of the annual Comprehensive Area
Assessment. The assessment therefore relates to work across the whole Council.

3. Recommendations
3.1. That the Audit Committee is asked to note the Use of Resources assessment and
scores and the Council’s intended actions to implement auditor recommendations
(as set out at Appendix 1).




Page 32

4. Summary
4.1.The report sets out the auditor's CAA Use of Resources assessment, scores and
associated recommendations for the 2008/09 period. The full report is at
Appendix 1, including management responses to auditor recommendations and
proposed implementation details.

4.2.Good progress continues to be made since the first Comprehensive Performance
Assessment (CPA) in 2005; the overall score of 3 (performing well) achieved for
2005/06, 2006/07 and 2007/08 is maintained against the new Comprehensive
Area Assessment framework, which is seen as more demanding.

4.3.As a result, the auditors have concluded that “the Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources, except for producing relevant and reliable data and information to
support decision making and manage performance.” The score of 1 for the data
quality KLoE “reflects the findings of the joint area review, the Ofsted review of
safeguarding children and mixed results within our data quality spot-checking
work.”

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1.  The Head of Legal Services has read the report. The report considers
improvements to governance arrangements, including embedding the new
Local Code of Corporate Governance and strengthening partnership
governance. There are no specific legal implications.

6. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

6.1. Impact on equalities and community cohesion will be factored in to the relevant
improvements at a detailed level.

7. Consultation
7.1.  Relevant Council officers have contributed to the management responses and
implementation actions at pp.26-43 of Appendix 1. The Council’'s auditors,
Grant Thornton, have had advance sight of this.

8. Service Financial Comments

8.1. The actions set out in the appendix will be contained within existing approved
budgets.




Page 33

9. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
9.1.

Appendix 1 — Grant Thornton’s Use of Resources Report for 2008/09 and
Council Response, dated October 2009

10.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
10.1. The following background paper was used in the production of this report:

Grant Thornton’s Use of Resources Report for 2008/09 and Council Response, dated
October 2009

11. Background

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

As part of the new Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), the Council is
subject to an organisational assessment. This is comprised of a Use of
Resources assessment and a Managing Performance assessment.

Under the previous CPA framework, the Use of Resources assessed how well
the Council managed and used its financial resources. The new assessment has
been broadened to also consider issues such as commissioning & procurement,
performance management, governance, and the use of environmental
resources, assets and workforce.

The Use of Resources assessment took place between April and August 2009,
with reference to outcomes in the 2008/09 financial year. In their report to those
charged with governance in September 2009, the Council's appointed external
auditors, Grant Thornton, concluded that “the Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources, except for producing relevant and reliable data and information to
support decision making and manage performance.” The score of 1 for the data
quality KLoE “reflects the findings of the joint area review, the Ofsted review of
safeguarding children and mixed results within our data quality spot-checking
work.” The actions for improvement in this area are set out in the appendix.

12. Scores and findings

12.1.

The overall score for the Council's Use of Resources assessment was 3 out of a
possible 4. The themes and Key Lines of Enquiry (KLoE) scores are shown in
the table below:



12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

Page 34

Financial plig o 3
1.2 | Understanding costs 2
1.3 | Financial reporting

2.1 | Commissioning and procurement

2
2.2 | Use of data 1
2.3 | Good governance 2
2.4 | Internal control 2
3.1 | Environmental management 3
3.2 | Asset management 2
3.3 | Workforce management N/A in 2008/09

Strengths were identified in integrating financial and service planning, based on
“an established, bottom up service and financial planning process which
includes member scrutiny”. Investment in high priority areas as part of the
Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy was recognised as contributing to
improved outcomes for the community, such as improved educational
attainment, increased satisfaction with leisure centres and reductions in crime.

The Council’s financial reporting was identified as good, with a high level of
integration between presentation of financial, performance, risk and human
resources information. Reports to the public were found to be of a high quality
and stakeholder consultation in financial planning was also cited as a particular
strength.

The overall score of 3 for the managing ‘other resources’ theme was attributable
to the underlying score of 3 for managing natural resources, which was identified
as an area of strength for the Council. The auditors found that the Council had
“detailed measurement and analysis of energy consumption and emissions in
particular, and an overall reduction in emissions from last year leading to
significant savings in utility bills.”

Auditors found that whilst at a corporate level there are adequate arrangements
for ensuring that data and information for decision-making are accurate and
reliable, the score of 1 for the data quality KLoE “reflects the findings of the joint
area review, the Ofsted review of safeguarding children and mixed results within
our data quality spot-checking work.” The Council will continue to implement the
Safeguarding Plan for Haringey, which sets out the improvements to be made to
inter-agency child protection practice within the Council and across the
partnership.



12.6.

Page 35

As the workforce management KLoE will be assessed for the first time in
2009/10, the Council is preparing a self assessment of current performance in
this area, which will inform improvement actions to be undertaken in the
remainder of the year.

13. Auditor recommendations and Council response

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

The recommendations of the auditors are at pp.26-43 of Appendix 1. In
summary, the high priority recommendations are:

 to continue to demonstrate outcomes to deliver strategic priorities
(recommendation 1)

e to articulate and quantify financial and non-financial benefits arising from
Haringey Forward and core efficiency programmes (recommendation 2)

e to demonstrate that arrangements for inter-agency child protection practice
are improving in line with the Joint Area Review action plan
(recommendation 4)

e to address identified weaknesses in data quality management and reporting
in relation to child protection, in particular reducing the need for manual
checking and manipulation in performance reporting (recommendation 8)

e to continue to develop data quality mechanisms for housing and council tax
benefit claims in order to minimise errors (recommendation 9)

Management responses have been prepared for each recommendation,
including implementation actions (see pp.26-43 of Appendix 1).

Progress against the improvement actions will be monitored by a Use of
Resources officer group, led by the Chief Financial Officer and including the
Head of Corporate Finance and Head of Corporate Policy and Performance.
This group will continue to provide oversight of all work relating to the Use of
Resources.

Progress will be reported to the Audit Committee in February 2010.

14. Summary and conclusions

14.1.

Good outcomes have been identified, as outlined at paragraphs 12.2 — 12.4,
however further work must be undertaken to address the auditor
recommendations. These will be given priority by relevant officers and progress
will be monitored.



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

Grant Thornton

- LLondon Borough of Haringey

Use of Resources 2008/09

28 October 2009



Page 38

Contents

1  Key messages

2 Detailed findings

3 Identifying outcomes, outputs and achievements
4  Managing Finances

5  Governing the business

6  Managing other resources

Appendices

A Action plan

B CAA and the new Use of Resources Framework

C  Scoring criteria and rules

D KlLoEs specified for assessment in 2008/09 and 2009/10
E  Data quality spot-checks: detailed findings

Page

10
15

23



Page 39

1 Key messages

1.1 Context

Under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice we are required to reach a conclusion on
whether the London Borough of Haringey (‘the Council’) has put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources ('VFM conclusion’). This report
presents the results of our value for money and Use of Resources work in 2008/09. We have
separately 1ssued our Annual Report to those Charged with Governance (ISA260). The key messages
from both of these reports will be summarised in the Annual Audit Letter.

We described in our Audit Plan (May 2008) the ateas of audit work that provide us with the
assurance that conttibutes to our annual VI'M conclusion. This report sets out our findings from
these pieces of work:

e our assessment of the Council's Use of Resources ('UoR'), using the three themes within the
Audit Commission's new assessment framewotk themes and Key Lines of FEnquiry (Kl.ol")

) specific work on locally identified audit risks, which contribute to our VEFM conclusion by
teeding into our UoR assessment scores

e risk-based spot check work to assess the quality of data underlving a small sample of key
performance indicators.

In 2009, the Audit Commission introduced a new framework and methodology for UoR
assessments across local government, police forces, fire authorities and primary care trusts. The new
framework emphasises outcomes over processes, and brings new areas into the assessment such as
environmental and workforce management. The new assessment presents a more robust challenge
than the old framework, based on different scoring criteria. It should be noted, therefore, that
changes from prior vear scores do not necessarly reflect an objective change i performance.
Further detail about the new framework and the link to Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) are
set out in Appendix B.

1.2 Key messages

The Council's UoR scores in the three themes are summarised in the table below. A score of 1
indicates madequate performance, 2 represents adequate performance, 3 1s performing well and a
score of 4 indicates excellent performance. For a full explanation of scoring criteria, please see

Appendix C.

Table 1: UoR scores

1 Managing finances f 3
2 Governing the business )
3 Managing resoutces 3




Page 40

We have assessed the Council as performing well in the areas of managing finances and managing
resources. The managing finances assessment reflects particular strengths in the areas of integrated
financial and service planning, financial reporting and stakeholder consultation. The overall score of
3 for managing resoutces is largely attributable to the underlying score of 3 for managing natutal
resources, which 1s an area of strength for Haringey.

We have assessed the Council as performing adequately in all areas of the "governing the business”
theme, with the exception of a score of 1 for "use of data". This reflects the findings of the joint
area review, the Ofsted review of safeguarding children and mixed results within our data quality
spot-checking work.

For this, we took into account the work of the various nspectorates, we reviewed 6 petformance
indicators, undertook a general review of data quality management arrangements for adult social
services and completed the mandatory data quality review of housing and council tax benefit
payments. We identified significant data quality concerns in relation to housing and council tax
benefits and NI 59 (timescale for Children's social care initial assessments) which was one of four
safeguarding children indicators reviewed. We have also made a number of recommendations
relating to less significant weaknesses in other performance indicators. See section 5, Kl.olZ 2.2 for
more details.

1.3 High-priority actions
As a priority, the Council needs to ensure that it:

e continues to demonstrate improving outcomes driven by mmvestment in strategic priotities,
thus retaining its "performing well" assessment for managing finances;

e s able to clearly articulate and quantify the financial and non-financial benefits arising from
all areas of the Haringey forward and core efficiency programmes. This includes showing
how service review and analysis activity, such as that undertaken for the benefits service in
2008/09 and planned for corporate suppotrt functions in 2009/10, is leading to the targeted
levels of improvement;

e can demonstrate that commissioning and data quality arrangements with regard to intet-
agency child protection practice are improving in line with the action plan submitted to
Ofsted m response to the joint area review;

e is addressing 1dentified weaknesses in data quality management and reporting in relation to
child protection, in line with its existing action plan, in particular reducing the need for
manual checking and manipulation in performance reporting; and

e continues to develop data quality checking mechanisms for housing and council tax benefit
claims in order to mmimise the high level of errors associated with incorrect dates, over and
under-payments and mcorrect pavment of single person allowance.

These recommendations are set out alongside medium and low-priority recommendations in

Appendrx A\




Page 41

FAN

1.4 Next steps
We will continue to work with the Council during the year to help prepare for the 2009/10 Use of
Resources assessment. For further details on next year's assessment, please see Appendix D.

The recommendations arising from our review are set out in Appendix A for agreement. We would
like to take the opportunity to remind the Audit Committee of the need to monitor implementation
of the agreed action plan.

1.8 Use of this report

This report has been prepared solely for use by the Council to discharge our responsibilities under
the Audit Commission Code of Audit Practice and relevant auditing standards and should not be
used for any other purpose. No responsibility is assumed by us to any other person.

This report includes only those matters that have come to our attention as a result of performance
of the audit. An audit of Use of Resources is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant
to those charged with governance. Accordingly the audit does not ordinarily identify all such
matters.

1.6 Acknowledgements

We would like to record our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance provided to us by the
Council's management and officers duting the course of our audit, in particular for the help and
support provided by the Head of Corporate Finance and the Use of Resources Project Officer.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
28 October 2009




Page 42

&

2 Detailed tindings

2.1  Introduction

In carrying out our audit work we comply with the statutory requirements governing our duties, set
out in the Audit Commission Act 1998, in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice (the Code).
The Code requires us to issue a conclusion on whether the London Borough of Haringey ('the
Council’) has proper arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the
use of its resources ('VFM conclusion). The UoR assessment forms the backbone of this process.
The UoR Key Lines of Enquiry (‘(KLoEs') are prescribed by the Audit Commission and applied at
all councils, police forces, fire authorities and NHS PCTs.

2.2 Approach to the audit

The assessment was carried out between April and August 2009 and was specifically related to the
2008/09 financial vear. We reviewed the Council's arrangements against the KlLok framework
prescribed by the Audit Commission. Our work was based on review of the Council's voluntary self-
evaluation and supporting evidence, meetings with senior management and officers.

2.3 2008/09 UoR assessment
The 2008/09 Kl.ol® and theme scores are shown in the table below.

Table 2: UoR theme and KLoE scores

; Financial planning

- Understanding costs

[N QEVIENS QN
N o—

Financial reporting

ver

- Commissioning and procurement 2
EE e B o
YR T Dt e

Environmenta management

3.2 - Asset management ' 2 :
3.3 Workforce management : N/ARE

*Some Kl.olis have an overriding impact on theme scores - see Appendix C for more details of
scoring criteria and arrangements.

“Different Kl.olis are specified for assessment each vear and across types of organisation. See

Appendix D for details.




Page 43

o8

2.4 2008/09 VFM conclusion

Under the Code of Audit Practice (the Code), auditors have a responsibility to conclude whether the
audited body has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources. This conclusion is the value for money (VIM') conclusion. Section 3 of the
Code sets out the scope of these arrangements and the way in which auditors will undertake their
work.

Auditors inform and limit their VI'M conclusion by reference to relevant criteria. These criteria
cover particular areas of audited bodies’ arrangements, specified by the Commission under the
Code. From 2008/09, the KL.oE for the scored use of resources assessment also form the criteria
for the VI'M conclusion. The Commission will specify each year which of the use of resources
Kl.ol! will form the relevant criteria for the VFM conclusion at cach type of audited bedy.

Auditors address a ‘yes” or ‘no’ question for cach criterion — that is the audited body either has
proper atrangements ot it does not. In most cases, a ‘no’ judgement will be equivalent to level 1
performance for the use of resources assessment, and a ‘yes” judgement will be equivalent to level 2
performance or above. Criteria with a2 ‘no’ judgement will automatically apply in the following year
regardless of whether or not they are specified.

For bodies subject to a scored use of resources assessment for CA\, the Kl ol: forming the relevant
criteria for the 2008/09 and 2009/10 VEM conclusion are those specified at Appendix D.

On the basis of the KLoE scores assessed in 2008/09 for the London Borough of Hatingey, our
conclusion is that the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources, except for producing relevant and reliable data and
information to support decision making and manage performance.

2.5 Recommendations

The key findings in each of the KLolis, and areas for improvement, are set out in the sections 4-6.
Our recommendations focus on Kl.ol:s that were assessed at levels 1 or 2, or areas within an overall
level 3 score, where we identified some scope for improvement. Whilst not covered by specific
recommendations, as a general principle the Council will be able to achieve an improved assessment
score through a combination of the following:

® demonstrating strong outcomes for the community and VFM improvements across the
scope of the Kl.oL

e showing innovation or recognised best practice
® demonstrating cffective partnership working leading to improved outcomes

e showing strong performance and value for money compared with others.




Page 44

3 Identfying outcomes, outputs and achievements

3.1

identifving outputs, outc

omes and achisvements

In order to score level 3 or above in the new UoR assessment framework, organisations were
required to show that processes are effective and having the intended impact. This is an important
shift in emphasis from the previous framework, within which organisations could achieve top scores
by demonstrating excellent processes. The table below gives generalised examples of the types of
outcome that have led to higher scores.

Table 3: Illustrative examples of outcomes, outputs and achievements by KLoE

frauds recovered

risk registers

1.1 Investment in priorities leads  Savings targets met, Positive external assessment
to improved performance performance reward grant
achieved

1.2 Improved relationship betweenService reviews completed Development of effective
costs and petformance identifying opportunities corporate efficiency

programme

1.3 Healthy financial position Improved fmancial skills Early close of accounts, clean

: audit

2.1 Improved service performance Completed commissioning /  Innovative approach to joint
at lower cost procurement exercises commissioning

External recognition for

! procurement

2.2  Better-informed decisions and Improved internal Finding and fixing problems
robust data to stakeholders performance reporting with own or partner data

2.3 Flexibility and responsiveness All members trained in ethical Achieving a more balanced
whilst maintaining focus behaviour political process
Risks identified and mitigated, Development and review of Development of effective

partnership risk framework

Reducing emissions and water
consumption

Training of environmental
champions

Enrolment in carbon reduction
programme

mproving condition of assets

Income from disposal of
unwanted assets

Meeting skills gaps, improving
taff satisfaction

Reducing turnover and
sickness absence

Better office accommodation

Investors in people
accreditation

Note; these examples are for illustration only and do not cover all areas of each Kl.oE. Refer to
section 2 for KLLolX headings.




Page 45

Based on the experience of our auditors in the first year of the new UoR assessment, and our
understanding of the framework as it will be applied next year, we would suggest that the following
common sense principles are taken into account when seeking to identify outcomes:

® organisations should not have to identify new outcomes for the purposes of LoR
assessment. These should be identified and captured through existing management activity;
organisations should understand how their processes help them to achieve their ptiorities

® outcomes and outputs should be measurable where possible, but if this is not the case then
a qualitative description of the improvement is still useful

* there may not be a one-to-one relationship between processes and outcomes - there may be
a small number of outcomes that arise as the net effect of a processes across a KLLol: area

e Councils should discuss any issues of interpretation with their auditors before investing
time and effort in voluntary self-evaluation.

3.2 Engagement in the assessment process

The Council engaged cffectively with the assessment process this vear. Our early discussions with
sentor officers helped the Council to prepare a high-quality and focussed self-evaluation, and a
comprehensive pack of supporting evidence. We undertook a series of awareness-raising workshops
with groups of officers from across the Council, which were positively regarded by the Council and
Grant Thornton. Our subsequent wotkshops on KlL.olis 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.1 were well attended and
useful.

For the 2009/10 assessment, we anticipate a less time-intensive process for the Council. The
assessment 1s likely to focus on the following ateas in particular:

e dentifying new outcomes for 2009/10 and evidence that outcomes from 2008/09 have been
sustained

e areas i which the Council feels that substantial improvements have been made to processes
and procedures

e arcas in which new audit risks have been identified

¢ the workforce management KLol: (3.3), which will be assessed at the Council for the first
time.

3.3 Our approach to ensuring consistency

In line with the Audit Commission's move to Comptehensive Area Assessment, the new use of
resources framework has been designed to provide more flexibility to recognise local issues,
priotities and achievements. This has given auditors more freedom to establish the individual story
of each organisation, rather than applying a rigid best practice template. To support this, both the
Audit Commission and Grant Thornton have put in place new arrangements for ensuring that
judgements and scores are reached in a fair and consistent way.




Page 46

The Audit Commission has:

e provided extensive guidance and training

e introduced an area-based challenge process bringing together auditors within each region to
discuss and challenge indicative scores

e increased the visibility of comparative scores and commentary for auditors

e undertaken a detailed final quality assurance process including statistical analysis across
suppliers, regions and types of organisation.

Grant Thornton has:

e provided internal training and guidance
e developed a network of regional leads to oversee the audit process nationally

e undertaken a number of internal consistency and challenge sessions, comparing our clients
to each other and with their regional neighbours

e undertaken detailed review and quality control of scores and conclusions.
The Audit Commission is carrying out further work to learn from the first year of the new

assessment and seek to further develop the review and quality assessment process for 2010 and
beyvond.




Page 47

4 Managing Finances

Theme summary

We have assessed theme 1 at level 3. The Council's strong performance in the areas of financial
planning and financial management counterbalances some still developing outcomes from the
Council's work on understanding and managing costs. The Council has strong integrated financial
and service planning, and responded effectively to the Icelandic banking crisis. From this stable
financial platform, strong outcomes are being delivered in some key setvice areas, including
educational attendance and attainment. '

The Council has good corporate arrangements for setting and controlling cost levels, and a number
of initiatives aimed at improving understanding and management of costs. The benefit of these has
yet to be fully felt in most cases. Delivery of efficiency gains is steady; the Council ranks 18th out of
33 London Boroughs for reported 2008/09 efficiency savings under National Indicator 179.

Financial reporting is good, with a high level of integration between presentation of financial,
performance, risk and human resources information. Reports to the public are of a high quality and
include information on the Council's environmental impact. The 2008/09 audit of the accounts
progressed well and we issued an unqualified opinion prior to the statutory deadline.

KlLoE 1.1 - Does the organisation plan its finances effectively to deliver its
strategic priorities and secure sound financial health?

1.1.1 - Integrated financial and service planning

The Council remains strong at integrating financial planning with strategic and service planning
processes on a medium to long term basts, with an established, bottom up setvice and financial
planning process which includes member scrutiny.

The Council was caught up in the Icelandic banking crisis, with £37m of investments, but was not
one of the 7 subsequently named in the Audit Commission report. The Council responded by
commisstoning PwC to carry out a review and has implemented the recommendations from this and
the Audit Commission national report. The Council's General Purposes committee is charged with
ongoing scrutiny of this area, reviewing advisor provision and ensuring that investing is now only
made in UK institutions. Our recent work on the Audit Commission treasury management
workbook verifies that the Council has responded appropriately to the issue.

The budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (‘'MTFS") demonstrate investment in priority areas
and the Council has evidenced that this has led to improved outcomes in key areas, for example:

® cducational attainment improving at faster than the national rate. In particular, The 19% gap
between Haringey and national attainment for 5+ GCSEs at grade A*-C has reduced to
5.6%. Haringey 1s ranked 4th out of 148 local authorities by the government for value added
scores which measure progress at the end of Keyv Stage 2 to Key Stage 4




Page 48

11

e the strategic investment programme of renewal and refurbishment of leisure centres has led
to a 12% increase in perception/satisfaction of leisure centres and an annual increased use of
leisure centres by 440,000 visits per vear. This also led to the reduction in subsidy per user
visit from £2.30 to £1.80

e the customer service transformation project has led to improved customer speed of access,
improved answering rates, reduced costs, improved staffing skills and performance

e good progress on crime (7% reduction in 2008/09) and fear of crime (17% reduction since
2004) from investment in partnership working with the police.

1.1.2 - Engaging stakeholders in financial planning

The Council effectively engages the local community in the financial planning process, including
through the continued use of participatory budgeting, where the Council's "Making the Difference”
mitiative has been recognised nationally as good practice. Various methods of communication are
used including business briefings as part of the budget setting process, consultation with residents
groups and youth groups around financial and service strategies, residents surveys and financial
planning discussions with the Haringey Strategic Partnership. A kev recent message 1s that residents
would support seeing slightly higher rises in Council Tax, provided that core services were
maintained, and the Council will consider this in formulating its financial strategy from 2011
onwards.

1.1.3 - Financial stability

The Council reported a £0.75m revenue surplus at March 2009 and has set a balanced budget for
2009/10 and for the period of the current MTES. The Council maintains a healthy level of reserves
and has begun its preparations for the anticipated funding reductions from 2011. Officers in all
departments have already been tasked to plan for such scenarios as part of routine business planning
processes.

1.1.4 - Setting balanced budgets

The Council has well established budget setting processes that involve ownership from budget
holders and finance training is provided to officers and members. The Council's strong track record
on achieving budgets on a service by service basis is evidence of the outcome from this. We have
first hand evidence, from discussions at Audit Committee, General Purposes Committee and other
fora, of Members challenging on finances (c.g. exploring and understanding the risks to the
Council's finances of not submitting claims and returns on time and potentially not identifying
potential funding streams) and, recently, understanding the scale of the financial management
challenge ahead.

In order to retain and build upon its "performing well" assessment for KILOT 1.1, the Council will
need to demonstrate that investment in strategic prioritics continues to lead to improved outcomes
in these areas. It should be able to do this through its existing performance management and




Page 49

e
M

corporate planning activities.

HLoE 1.2 - Does the organisation have a sound understanding of its costs and

performance and achieve efficiencies in its activities?

The Council has adequate arrangements in place in this area. There are clear corporate mechanisms
for setting and reviewing and controlling the costs associated with services, and in some areas there
are examples of work to improve understanding of the links between costs, activity and
performance, although in most cases the Council has vet to realise the full benefits of these. Whole-
life costing approaches have been followed in some areas and an approach to mainstreaming their
use 1s i place. Unit costs are part of the decision-making toolkit for some services, especially social
care. The Council has met its efficiency and savings targets through it's core savings approach and
the Haringey Forward programme.

1.2.1 - Understanding costs

Overall resource limits and cost parameters are set out by the MTFS and expressed in budgets. The
MTIS is modelled on the basis of a range of possible scenarios, and linked to an analysis of
demographic shifts and the likely impact on service demand. Cost and performance information are
reviewed and challenged alongside each other through a range of mechanisms. At a corporate level,
a small selection of unit costs are reviewed within the budget monitoring process, and are reported
in the context of relevant performance information.

At service level, use 1s made of nationally available unit cost datasets from, for example, Ofsted,
CSCI and DIIFRA. Some specific-service imitiatives are developing a better understanding of cost
behaviour and links to activity, for example the best value review of benefits and local taxation
(reported November 2008) and a series of cost analyses undertaken by linvironmental Services. The
Council's approach to whole-life costing continues to develop, but does not vet appear to be
mainstreamed into option appraisal and project management approaches.

1.2.2 - Decision-making

There are a number of examples of how an understanding of cost information feeds into planning,
decision-making and commissioning. FFor example, investment in schools is linked to an analysis of
deprivation, and adult social services undertake detailed monthly analysis of commissioning costs
and performance, and the projected impacts on service levels based on activity and unit costs. There
is evidence of routine use and monitoring of unit costs across the range of social care services.

Presentation of reports 1s appropriate to the target audience, with detailed information considered at
service level, and summarised graphical reports at senior corporate and Haringev Strategic
Partnership (HSP) level. Cost variances are analysed and responded to cffectively through the
budget monitoring process (see 1.3)

1.2.3 - Achieving efficiency
Lfficiency opportunities are fed into the MTLES, with each proposal suppotted by an impact and risk

analysis. Proposals and rfargets undergo a rigorous challenge process before finalisation. In-year
agreed savings are monitored monthly through the budget reports and pre-agreed savings for future




Page 50

yvears ate revisited annually as part of the budget planning process to ensure they ate still achievable,
desirable and support the Council’s strategic objectives.

Through its core efficiency programme the Council has met Gershon targets and delivered
approximately £23million budget reductions over three years, representing just under 10% of net
budget. "Haringey Forward," is the Council's main strategic programme focusing on efficiency, with
a target of [Smillion over 3 vears. Governance arrangements for this programme are good, with
clear programme management and monitoring arrangements. Savings close to the £1m target were
achieved in 2008/09. The NI179 performance summary for 2008/09 identifies £10.8million cash-
releasing VFM gains. The Council is currently undertaking a review of support functions which has
the potential for a major impact on this area next year.

_Ensure that the Council is able to clcaxl\ articulate and quantify the financial and non-financial
benefits arising from all areas of the Haringey forward and core efficiency programmes. Show that
service review and analysis activity, such as that undertaken for the benefits service in 2008/09 and
planned for corporate support functions in 2009/10, is leading to the targeted levels of
mprovement.

Whole-life costing techniques are in use in some areas, but the Council should develop clear criteria
and procedures for more mainstream use within the corporate project management framework and
demonstrate that these are consistently applied.

KLoE 1.3 - Is the organisation’s financial reporting timely, reliable and does it

HE
meet the needs of mi&mai users, stakeholders and local people?

1.3.1 - 1.3.3 Financial monitoring and reporting

The Council has robust and established systems and procedures for producing good quality financial
monitoring and forecasting information, which is used alongside related performance information to
support decisions. The outcome of these processes are the Council's sound financial position, as
described in 1.1 above, which indicates that budget holdetrs are well supported by financial
information, systems and reports. Through our monthly meetings with the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and review of data it 1s clear that this information is used effectively to enable the CFO to
identify and begin to deal with financial risks in a timely way.

Attendance at Audit Committee and other member fora and witnessing of the discussions there,
supports the Council's assertion that members have the service and financial performance
information they need. In our Use of Resources report 2008 (December 2008), we reported that the
Council performed strongly (I1.4) in the relevant KILoE area (Kl.oll 2.2

1.3.4 - Accounts that present fairly
The Council produced an initial set of draft 2008/09 accounts on 5 June 2009, which enabled an

initial team and technical review of the accounts to take place and be fed back, prior to production
and approval of the formal draft accounts. This enabled audit work to begin early and was useful for




Page 51

o

the client in getting timely feedback on its accounts. We have submitted this to the Audit
Commission as good practice.

Closedown was well managed by the Council this year and there is clear corporate commitment to
producing good quality accounts. The Council's accounts were presented fairly and without
significant issues or errors. The Council has already engaged effectively in taking forward IFRS with
member briefings and a well-resourced project team.

1.3.5 - Preparation of the annual report

The Haringey Annual Report 2007/08 was a relatively brief (20 pages) glossy document that was
distributed to households and was made available on the Council's website. The format and content
of the report was based on annual consultation. The report set out, in a user friendly way:

e key descrptions of how the Council is working with partners to deliver the community
strategy

e how it 1s achieving its priorities in the 5 priority areas with resident feedback results set
against these ‘

e summary performance in the areas of most concern to residents (based on the 2007 survey)
with a link to the full analysis of performance in the council plan

e a feedback form on a freepost postcard

® a clear and user friendly carbon statement with link to greenest borough strategy (covers
more than carbon - see KlLoE 3.1)

e accessible summary financial information.

The annual report was produced and distributed before 30 September as the Council wanted it to be
timely. It went some way towards specifying where and on what services money was spent. The
annual report, like the Council website and other key published documents, was easily accessible
with invitations to request alternative language versions written in 6 non-linglish languages used in
Haringey. Large print, audio tape and Braille versions, plus translation into other languages are also
available by returning a freepost form on the back of the annual report. It 1s our view that the
content, format and timing of the annual report 1s good practice.




Page 52

5 Governing the business

Theme summary

We have assessed this theme at level 2 overall, although there is a mixture of strengths and
weaknesses within this picture. The Council has strengths in the areas of procurement and customer
service, but corporate arrangements for commissioning in social care, particularly in partership with
others, has scope for mprovement. For use of data, the current assessment score reflects the
significémt and well-documented data quality and performance issues identified in children's services
during 2008/09, which have not yet been fully addressed. The Council has generally good
arrangements for good governance and mternal control, with member training and development a
particular strength. However, there is more to do around improving partnership governance and
embedding effective risk management within partnerships.

KiloE 2.1 - Does the organisation commission and procure guality services and
suppiies, tailored to local needs, to deliver sustainable outcomes and value for
money?

The Council 1s performing well in the areas of plocuumcnt and mmproving customer L\(pcrlcncc
through Information Technology (I'T). Our overall scote 1s a 2 as there 1s scope for improvement in
joint strategic commissioning arrangements for social care, and further development of the Council's
strategic commissioning framework.

2.1.1 - Clear vision

There are a range of localised commissioning plans and approaches linked to specific areas and
needs assessments. The Council has shown that a strategic, corporate qppx()'lch to commlssl()nmg 1s
developing although paltncxs}np commissioning in social care can be improved. A vision for the
Council and its partners 1s set out Sustainable Community Strategy and the Council Plan, and all
activity s rooted in this. There 1s a good understanding of local needs feeding into this, with the
borough profile and joint strategic needs assessment providing core datasets that inform a range of
activity. These have been used to refresh commissioning approaches to older people and the "safer
for all" strategy, with further work underway. The recent joint area review and the Council's action
plan recognise the need to improve joint commissioning for children and young people.

2.1.2 - Engaging stakeholders

In addition to research and intelligence derived from the borough profile and JSN.\, there are a
range of localised approaches to involving service users and other stakeholders in  the
COMMISSIONING Process.

2.1.3 - Modernisation and service redesign

Delivering "customer focussed" services 1s one of the Council's five key priorities, and there is a
clear approach to achieving this by evaluating and redesigning services, making use of I'l' where




Page 53

16

appropriate. A\ significant programme of work is now taking place, and the Council's work in
implementing a customet relationship mfmqguncnt system has attracted U{tcrnql recognition. The
Council 15 also undertaking innovative work on "customer journey mapping”, which has been
recognised by IDIA as best practice. This work has focussed on delivering savings and efficiency
gams alongside service improvements. The percentage of customer interactions completed within
tatgeted timescales has increased from 57% to 78% at the same time as a 9% reduction in staffing
and annual budget savings of £495,000.

2.1.4 - Understanding the supply market

Two key work areas have been development of the public realm tender, and adoption of a category
management approach. The Council received a commendation for best local government
procurement in respect of its approach to category management. Significant savings continue to be
derived from the Council's neutral vendor arrangement with Hays for temporary and agency staff.
Around a third of Haringey's spending goes to local businesses, and a "trade local" programme
supports local businesses in dealing with the Council. Use of local labour is mandated through social
incluston clauses in Building Schools for the Future (BSF) construction contracts.

2.1.5 - Option appraisal

Spending categories have been risk-assessed, and low-risk commodities are generally sourced
through shared procurement arrangements. Other key projects include the ongoing development of
a shared out of hours service, LINKS, and coroners. A detailed option appraisal methodology was
developed to support the work to evaluate the future shape of public realm services. There is a good
corporate approach to contract management, and sustainable procurement practices are starting to
become embedded following publication of a strategy in May 2008.

2.1.6 - Service review

The "Haringey Forward" programme was put in place in 2008/09 with a VI'M work stream. \s part
of this, service-by-service reviews are being undertaken looking at ways to increase performance and
efficiency. Five reviews were completed in October 2008 and identified potential efficiencies. The
Council has been able to identify some outcomes arising from reviews in previous years, mcludmg a
saving of [£300k m 2007/08 and a further £200k in 2008/09, due to an earlier VM review of

homecare services which reduced costs by £5 per hour.

Demonstrate that commissioning arrangements linked to inter-agency child protection practice are
improving in line with the action plan submitted to Ofsted, in response to the recent joint area

CVICW.

* As work continues on the recommissioning and procurement of public realm services, show
that this 1s leading to improved service outcomes and better value for money

e Show that the work undertaken in this area is effectively mforming the development of a
corporate commissioning framework




Page 54

KLoE 2.2 - Does the organisation produce relevant and reliable data and
information to support decision making and manage performance?

At a corporate level there are adequate arrangements for ensuring that data and information for
decision-making are accurate and reliable. However, the assessment score reflects significant data
quality failures that were identified during 2008/09 within Children's services. In July 2009 Ofsted
published an update on progress in addressing the findings of the Joint Atea Review, which reaches
the clear conclusion that data quality is not yet adequate in respect of safeguarding children.

We completed a risk-based data quality review in Haringey's adult social care services and found an
adequate level of control overall with some localised weaknesses. In addition, we have also
undertaken spot-checks of a sample of national indicators within the safeguarding children set, and
have found significant data quality issues with one of the four indicators tested, with general
weaknesses in systems and reporting consistent with the published findings of the joint area review.

Data quality spot-check results

To support out judgements for Kl.oE 2.2 we undertook detailed spot-checks of a number of the
Council's key performance indicators. Where we identified significant concerns around the quality of
the underlying data which would be likely to lead to a material misstatement, we have reported
findings to the Audit Commission. Our summary findings are set out in the table below, with
turther detail at Appendix I..

Table 4 - Data quality spot-check results

No. of Recommendation 6 - Temporary accommodation
156 households in indicator
temporaty
accommodation Ensure that all necessary information is retained at vear-end

to allow recalculation of the performance indicator

Develop system reports  to automatically calculate this
indicator and reduce the current level of manual checking
and manipulation

Linsure that appropriate continuity arrangements are in
place for this indicator

NI Carbon No Recommendation 7 - Carbon Emissions Indicator

185 emissions
arising from Reduce manual data manipulation and entry wherever
Council possible by ensuring that data is submitted in a format that
operations can be casily transferred to the DEFRA spreadsheet.

Improve arrangements for checking manually inputted data




Page 55

where this 1s not possible.

Improve data capture in relation to staff travel in order to
more accurately measure this area

NI59

Initial
assessments for
children’s social
care carried out
within 7
working days of
referral

Yes

GEN

General review
of data quality
management
arrangements
and controls in
Adult Social
Services

No

NI
62

The percentage
of children
looked after at
31 March with
three or more
placements
during the year.

NI
66

The percentage
of children
looked after at
31 March with
three or more
placements
during the vear.

NI
67

Child
protection cases
which were
reviewed within
required
timescales

No

Recommendation 8 - Improve quality and reporting of
social care data

The joint area review completed by the Care Quality
Commussion and Ofsted identified weaknesses in data
quality management and reporting in relation to child
protection, which are corroborated by our own spot-
checking work. The Council should show that it is
addressing these areas in line with its existing action plan, in
particular reducing the need for manual checking and
manipulation in performance reporting.

Housing and council tax benefits

In reaching conclusions for KI.oli 2.2, we also considered the results of the data quality aspects of
our work on housing benefits. The management arrangements the Council has in place for Benefits
data was assessed and found to be operating satisfactorily. However, of our sample of 80 cases
tested in detail, errors were identified within 19 cases, falling into three main categories:




Page 56

ses 2009 12

1. Incorrect start dates

® ‘lhe start dates used on several cases were incorrect. For instance, forms were received from
one claimant allowing them to claim benefits from the date they moved into a property, but
they were not paid until the following Monday.

® It was expected by the Council that errors would occur with the start dates, as the issue was
identified in the 2007/08 BENO1 return. New procedures put in place to reduce the
likelihood of similar problems occurring were introduced towards the end of the year. The
issue of start dates being incorrect should be significantly reduced in 2009/10.

2. Underpayments and overpayments
® These arose for a number of reasons, including incorrect start dates mentioned above. Also,
income and child benefit details were not processed cotrectly in some cases.
® [t was anticipated by the Council that these types of errors would occur leading to under or
overpayments, simply due to human error. New procedutes have been introduced to address
errors of this type on a mote proactive basis.

3. Single person discount.
® In 8 of the 20 council tax cases tested, single person discount had not been applied in cases
where the claimant had not specifically claimed for this, but were eligible.
e 'This issue was not anticipated by the Council, and the service is currently checking all
benefits cases to assess the extent of errors.

The weaknesses identified within our data quality spot-checks, alongside failures identified by other
mspectorates, have led to an overall score of 1 for the "use of data" KIl.oF.

Continue to develop data quality checking mechanisms in order to minimise the level of errors

associated with incorrect dates, over and under-payments and incorrect payment of single person
allowance .

KLoE 2.3 - Does the organisation promote and demonstrate the principles and
values of good governance?

2.3.1 - Good governance

The Council meets basic requirements in this area. The constitution sets out a clear governance
framework and responsibilities within this, and is subject to ongoing review by a constitution
working group. In 2008/09 the Council formally adopted a l.ocal Code of Corporate Governance
(LCCG) which drew together all its existing strategies and policies and aligned them with the
requirements of the CIPFA/SOILACE corporate governance model. Aligned to the principles of




Page 57

¥

of He

irces 2008 20

[

W

[

this new framework, in 2008/09 the Council reviewed key aspects of its constitution and refreshed
member role profiles.

We looked at the Council's policies and arrangements for both members' and senior officers'
allowances and expenses. We found the allowances and expenses claimed to be reasonable, and the
system 1n place at the Council to be adequately robust. The Council has no specific plans at present
to review its arrangements in the light of the lessons learnt from the parliamentary cases. However,
as no weaknesses have been identified this 1s not considered an issue. The Council produces an
Annual Governance Statement, which assesses the level of compliance with the governance
framework. A protocol for member / officer relationships is in place.

There are good arrangements in place to meet the training and development needs of senior officers.
Haringey has a member learning and development strategy, and was the first council in London to
adopt the Member Learning and Development Charter. Member development is supported by the
use of personal development plans. Attendance at member training events could be improved, but is
acceptable. A set of management standards and an upward appraisal framework were adopted in
2008/09, and the Councils top managers (approximately 400) have been involved with this.
Evaluation showed that the majority of managers found this to be a useful exercise.

2.3.2 - Focus on purpose and vision

A clear vision 1s set out in the Council's sustainable community strategy and cotporate plan, and
there are effective mechanisms for mmprinting the key aspects of this onto financial and service
planning, commissioning, and key strategic programmes. The Council's service performance
mformation suggests that delivery of key services continued uninterrupted during the challenging
and disruptive events of the last year. Whilst aspects of governance were found wanting in respect of
Children's Services we do not consider it to be indicative of Council services more widely and
recognise that the Council took action to address issues and to learn from others by setting up a
Quality Outcomes Board, consisting of senior officers and members from other London councils.
In addition, a new Deputy Chief Executive has been employed to ensure that arcas of weakness are
given sustained management oversight and review.

2.3.3 - Ethical behaviour

We conducted a review of probity and propriety during 2008, and found that the Council has
effective arrangements 1n place to set expectations in this area and encourage compliance. Our best-
practice recommendations focussed on the need to ensure that members are effectively trained and
to address some challenges around governance for partnerships. The Council has good
arrangements in place to ensure ethical behaviour.

2.3.4 - Partnership governance

The Local Strategic Partnership (I.SP) has also recently adopted a refreshed code of governance.
There is a clear action plan for implementing this and regular meetings between officers responsible
for the governance arrangements within key partners. A compact agreement is in place with a range
of voluntary and community sector organisations. It is not clear, however, that the Council has
sought to systematically identify all of its significant partnerships outside of the 1.SP and reach a
view on the adequacy of governance arrangements in place for each. This 1s something that we will
need to discuss with the Council for next veat's review.




Page 58

Show that the new corporate governance framework is fully embedded and is providing effective,
integrated oversight of corporate governance issues, leading to strengthened arrangements. Show
that the first annual review of the Local Code of Corporate Governance is effective in driving
improvements.

Develop a clear definition of what constitutes a significant partnership and ensure that there is a
clear view of partnerships to which this applies, and an assessment of the quality of governance
arrangements in place for each. Show that this exercise is driving improvements to govetrnance and
risk management within partnerships. This exercise should cover significant partnerships both
within and outside the Local Strategic Partnership framework.

KLoE 2.4 - Does the organisation manage its risks and maintain a sound system
of intermal control?

2.4.1 - Risk management

Effective risk management arrangements are in place for the Council, and risk management in
partnerships 1s developing. A new corporate risk management strategy was implemented for
2008/09, building on existing arrangements, with the objective of further embedding risk
management and promoting ownership and management of risks across all areas of operational
activity. All business units with the Council have an operational risk register. Risk management
approaches are mainstreamed into strategic, financial and business planning, as well as project and
programme management through a standard corporate toolkit.

The Council 1s in the process of improving operational management of risks through use of the
Covalent performance management system. The risk management strategy acknowledges the
potential for positive impacts from risks, but in order to achieve level 3 the Council will need to
demonstrate that effective risk and opportunity management is helping to deliver complex,
innovative projects. In 2008/09, the Haringey Strategic Partnership put in place a formal risk
management process, approved in July 2008 and requiring all thematic partnetships to develop risk
registers, which was achieved during the remainder of the financial yvear. In order to achieve level 3,
the Council will need to further demonstrate that this process is having an impact in practice, and
contributing to better outcomes through partnership working.

2.4.2 - Corporate anti-fraud and corruption

‘The Council's approach to anti-fraud and corruption is adequate and operates within a clear strategic
and policy framework. The anti-fraud strategy is in the process of being updated to reflect the risk of
fraud and corruption within key partnerships. Internal audit has provided substantial assurance over
existing arrangements, although the report highlights the need to ensure that the level of resource
committed to this area is in line with comparable organisations. There are examples of good
outcomes within benefits fraud work, and successes have been publicised. Elements of the team's
work programme are proactive, informed and targeted through a seties of fraud profiles which risk-
assess the scope for and impact of fraud in cach service. There are several examples of internal
communication to raise the profile of the work of the team and ensure that staff are aware of the




Page 59

whistle blowing policy. The Council participates effectively in the Audit Commission's National
Fraud Initiative which is an extensive national data matching exercise. In order to improve its
assessment score in this area, the Council will need to demonstrate that it has a comprehensive and
risk-based approach to preventative anti-fraud and corruption work, and can demonstrate that
members and officers are aware of and engaged in this.

2.4.3 - Internal Control

The Council has adequate arrangements in place in this area. Internal audit work is shared between
in-house and external provision, and is fully compliant with the CIPFA code of practice, confirmed
through an annual peer assessment exercise. Where relevant we have been able to place reliance on
the work of internal audit to support our final accounts work. The Council has a robust process for
preparing and reporting the Annual Governance Statement (AGS), to which departments contribute
on an annual self-assessment basis. The AGS was subject to a mid-year update. A clear approach to
business continuity is in place, overseen by the risk and emergency planning steering group. The
Business Continuity Planning (BCP) regime 1s subject to internal testing and evaluation at service
and corporate level. The Council has provided some evidence of developing business continuity
arrangements to key partnerships. From our experience of the Audit Committee, we take the view
that 1t provides adequate challenge and control. The Audit Committee has balanced political
representation, a clear terms of reference and work plan. Internal audit activity and findings are
reported monthly to committee members. The Audit Committee reviewed its own effectiveness in
2007/08, which showed compliance with accepted CIPFA good practice. A number of operational
changes were made in 2008/09 as a result of this exercise.

I'he Council is currently assessed as adequate in this area. In order to improve it's assessment score,
we recommend action i the following areas;

e Linsure that effective risk management frameworks are implemented and embedded across
all key partnerships within and outside the I.SP. Show that, as a result, joint action is being
taken to mitigate key risks leading to improved outcomes for the community;

e U'ndertake an annual review of cffectiveness of the Audit Committee, and show that this
process is driving improvements to the level of challenge and control;

e Implement more comprehensive and effective procedures for tracking and dealing with
1ssues raised by the audit committee, ncluding implementation of audit recommendations;
and

¢ Demonstrate wider separation between the corporate responsibility for preparing the annual
governance statement and audit responsibility for providing assurance on it.




Page 60

[

6 Managing other resources

Theme summary

An overall theme score of 3 reflects Haringey's strong performance against the Environmental
Resources Kl.oE. The Council can demonstrate detailed measurement and analysis of energy
consumption and emissions in particular, and an overall reduction in emissions from last year
kadmg to significant savings i utility bills. The Council is able to demonstrate the impact of energy-
saving Initiatives on specific buﬂdmgs There are also a range of mnovative approaches which are
likely to lead to further improved outcomes.

KLoE 3.1 - Is the organisation making effective use of natural resources?

The Council has a clear membet-led strategic approach to reducing its environmental impact (""The
Greenest Borough Strategy"), which 1s starting to deliver significant outcomes. There are also
examples of innovative work that are likely to secure further improvement. Some of the Council's
achievements 1n this area include the following:

e Targeted carbon reduction campaign, including awareness-raising and introduction of low-
catbon technologies. Led to a CO2 reduction (NI185) of 1,841 tonnes or 7.1% in the
2008/09 financial yeat against a 2007 calendar baseline of 25,883 tonnes - leading in turn to
around £ 170k saving in bills.

e The sustainable procurement approach is starting to have an impact in practice. An example
of how this has changed behaviour is the purchase of more expensive pool covers which are
better at retaining heat, leading to reduced energy consumption and emissions.

® A\ comprehensive energy database is held offsite by a third party. Using this, the Council has
been able to show reductions mn energy consumption and emissions linked to mitiatives
within individual buildings. This has also been used to develop unit costs and units of
emission (e.g. per employee and per m2) which are regularly reviewed.

e Use of 20 pooled bicycles and 3 pooled electric cars for business use by staff. These have led
to decreases in use of private transport & taxis.

e Planned pilot site for first "regenerative filtration” system for leisure pools, which will deliver
reduction in water consumption of 70,000m3 per vear at one centre, whilst also reducing
catbon dioxide emissions by 62,000kg per vear. This cquates to a saving of [35K per
annum, giving a pavback period of five years.

e development of a "sustamnable investment fund”" by Chief Financial Officer which aims to
fund sustainability inttiatives which will repay themselves over the medium to long term.




Page 61

There are also examples of the Council working with partners to improve the use of natural
resources:

e working with schools to help them monitor and manage their consumption of energy and
water using technology. A "sustainable investment fund" specifically for schools has been
put in place by the Council.

e joint travel and asset planning with the PCT - building capacity and awareness within the
voluntary and community sector to make energy-efficient use of council-leased facilities

Improve current arrangements for measuring and managing the consumption of water across
Council offices and facilities. Ideally the Council should be able to demonstrate the same level of |

control as with energy and fuel consumption, and link water saving mitatives to clear measurement

of success.

KLoE 3.2 - Does the organisation manage its assets effectively to help deliver its
strategic priorities and service needs?
The council 1s currently assessed as meeting basic requirements in this area.

3.2.1 - Strategic approach

‘There 1s a strategic approach to asset management. The corporate asset management plan (AMP)
meets basic requirements, and makes explicit links between property and wider objectives. It
encompasses four distinct portfolios - housing stock, schools, service operational buildings,
commercial portfolio, all with individual AMPs. The housing AMDP was cited as good practice by the
housing quality network. A process of ongoing review and challenge 1s leading to property disposals
with £10million generated from asset disposals mn 2008/09. A review of the commercial portfolio
was undertaken against financial and wider council objectives. LLocal labour is mandated in contracts
linked to the BSI programme.

The Head of Corporate Property Services 1s the named corporate property officer, who leads cross-
departmental officer boards responsible for evaluating asset-related proposals. Asset decisions are
sponsored by the Cabinet Member for Resources, who has a specific asset brief. Asset
considerations are embedded in financial strategy, business planning and decision-making processes,
and there are examples of better services being realised through investment in public facilities.

3.2.2 - Management of assets

There are effective processes i place for management of assets. The Council implemented a new
asset management system in 2008/09, which is improving accounting for and managing assets. The
Council operates a corporate landlord model and has a single prioritised capital programme for all
operational buildings, improving the reactive / planned split. Decent homes improvements are on
target. .\ rationalisation of office portfolio took place 2003/07 and the smart working programme is
furthering this. The Haringey sixth form centre has excellent BRIIEAM rating, and the Council is
aiming for second one at Heartlands High School. Condition surveys were undertaken in 2008 for
all schools. There 1s a clear set of performance indicators for corporate property and homes for
Haringey.




Page 62

Wi

[

3.2.3 - Partnership approach to asset management

Arrangements for sharing assets are developing. Most community buildings are already held under
lease by community organisations. Hornsey Town Hall is being transferred to a charitable trust, who
will take over responsibility for management. This secures the future of a listed building not required
by the Council. The Haringey Compact sets out agreements in relation to assets used by partners
and there 1s regular review to ensure that suitable community uses are sustained in transferred assets.
Libraries have shared use and are community hubs. Wood Green is one of the busiest libraries in
London and houses a wellbeing centre funded by the PCT and a business lounge providing support
for SMEs, a connexions centre, learning centre, art gallery and exhibition centre.

: i1 es from proj 0
The Council has shown good arrangements for management and shared use of offices and
community buildings, but in order to improve its assessment score for asset management the

Council will need to show that it 1s improving outcomes and value for money across the wider
elements of its asset portfolio L.e. housing, schools, offices, commercial property and highways.




Page 63

Suro8uo
pUE JUIWSSISSE ()1 ()T

SOUBHI[I ] oA

SreIop

voneywuwpduy

Gz

‘sardareng ppunon) o3 suepd voneiuowsdwr
pue suepd ssouTsn( JULAI[II I} IS ISTI[]

‘sannorrd mo yo
YO ISUTESE JUIWDAIIYDL 2ILTISTOWIP 03 I[((E (| [[IM
M UE[] [PUNOT) O} JO MILAAT TEIL JO PUD OU3 UTYITA\

Iomoured, |
dareng MQEﬁ NENELE! ﬁwsouom JSOUIIIL)

‘3o wD%@u&uw% Houno’n) %UMM PYlo pue mGNMQ ssaursng oyl

JO OB AQ PaIdATIP ‘A8a1emg Arunuiwo”) Jqrurelsng
pUE UE[] [IOUNOT) O U INO 198 ITE B} SIWOIINO
O} SUTADTYDE 0 PINTWWOD ST [IPUNOT) dYT, "PaIdy

asuodsar juowddeuely  Auong

43y

“sontanor suruued

a1e10dioo puv uswaGeury sdurwiIoyrad Sunsixo

S YBNOIYL SIYI Op 01 S[E 2 PINOYS 1] "SLITE 28]
ur sowomnno pasoxdun oy pray 01 sonunuod sonuond
SIS2JETIS UL JUDWASIAUL L) ITNSUOWDIP 01 PIIU
[[EA [IOUNOT) 91 [ ST Y] 10] JUDWSSISST | [[oM
Sururroprad, | sar wodn prmq pue uElal 03 IPIO U]

SINIANDE §,[IOUNO0))
9Y) SSOIDE SIWOIINO IDIAIIS SUNEBINSUOWI(]

UONBPUIWOIIY

ued wonoy v




09AIDS

1 M0

“2a0qe paurno st s310dar swoono efwrs oredord

03 sAWIADT AUNNIdG paf Ioquiow v d3mbor pue ssad01d
JUIWSSEUEW 193pN( $IT YONOIY) SMIAT [y, JA TYIO
JO SAWODINO PIOIIT PUL JOIVOU OS[E [[IM [IOUNOT) Y ],

“WONTSTULSIO O} UMM dIOYMIS[D dn voye
9 P[NOD B JUILI] STOSSI] JO TUITUSSISSE UL —
‘syuapIsar Apuanbasuod

pue [1dUNO7) oyl Jyauaq Im %Oﬁu Moy
pue spruy wmw.QT:ww pOMwmuzﬁ Joluowialels Jeopp v —

Page 64

‘vondeozad pue Louonyge ‘oururrojiad

JO SWIA) UT PIADIYDE $9WODINO ) Jo ypwuwns & — Juowasorduwr Jo §[aad] Pa1adie) ayy 03
Surpeay st ‘01 /600¢ vt suonduny 1roddns ayerodios
105 pauue[d pue () /ST BT 991AI08 SITJOUDQ I} 10]
UDYEIIDPUN JE) ST YONS “UTATIOL SISA[EUL PUT AITAIT

-9PNPUT [[IA PUE ()] ()7 ATENICD,] UT PILOE TWEINS AL A
o 03 paruasard aq [ s130dor 1811y o1 Iy pasodord
ST 3] "SAWDIADT 213 JO YoEa Jo nonajdwos oyl 1935¢ s1r0dar
swooino reuy aredard [a ounon) oy ‘sowrrerdord
24} JO $PWOINO PUE $1auaq a3 Ajnuenb pue agmonv
feapd 01 Apqe s puno’) sy Suraoxdwr ur Jsisse

0} ‘To2om0 “sotwrueidord J\,J A pue £0U910h)a $11 03
WAEL) QUIIDYIET) | PORIWUWOD PUL INOE $NOLIDS ST [DUNOT) I} TUIUWSSISSE sowrer3ord AJA

2

PUE IRIL LAY YO] Y3 Funnp pajensuoOWIp U SEY Sy PIaIdy | [y pue ADUIIDNID WO SIW0IIN0 FUNENSUOWI(] T

IDTATIS JEY1 MOYS .mUﬂQﬂG@H%CMQ %UCUMU@MU 210D

put piesmjoj %uwwﬁﬂﬁwiw I JO SLaTE ¥ WOIJ hﬁwﬁiwﬁﬂd
sljaua( [eruetnj-uou pue [vurul oyl ».../MCCGDT pue
A1E[NONIE ,ﬁ.ﬂwuﬂu O3 91 ST [IdDUNO’) 211 Jeyl 2Jnsu’|

SuroSUO
PUE JUDWISSISSE ()] ()T

SJresap

vopeuawdpduiy asuodsas juowadeuey  Auong UOREPUIWOIIY

Fa

iC




Page 65

BV

‘010T FP 1¢ 4q — s1901330

ﬂuﬁscmv Ol HUMGCNH& uCDﬂQUHSUOHnH uﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂdumﬁw

Uﬁﬁ‘ zﬂ Uogm.ﬂmﬂﬁmu mgwﬁ SJUSUWISSASSe Mmg
Qrrqeurelsns AdU 21 pue ST SUNEdIUNWWOT) e

010Z uef 1¢ Aq —

SUOTIZIDPISUOD 7Y A\ PUE AI[IqeuIeIsns 109321 01
SFOMIWET, ] JUSWaSeue]y 109(03 [ o3 Sunepd) e

010¢
e[ ¢ 4q — spesreadde suondo ur sonsst Iy A\ ‘paridde ApuaIsTSHOD 21U 2891 UL 2JENSUOWIP
puE QEUIEIsns JO UOHEIIPISUOD I ISEIIOUT pue yromswery Juswndeuew 1afoxd sjerodios
010T UaTeN 1¢ 01 19p30 Wl 7y A\ 03 yorordde s punor) A TIIA IS0 WLINSTUILW dIOW 0§ sarnpasoid puv
SO O UO JJEIs JOF 210U 2DULPIMS € FUDNPOI] e v1103130 1832 dopasp prnoys mu:wc\b Y1 Inq ‘seare
sas] pueapaeg | Aq () Sumson) apr spoyx 03 yovordde Sunsxo sir dWIos U asn uf axe sanbruryody Funsod -v[oY N
UIADY] ‘UMOI U] | UIISUAIIS PUL 1oY1030) SULIQ [[IA [IDUNOT) Y "Paaidy |  mor] Sunsoos I-droyp ¢

Sjreap
vonejuduwjdu] asuodsas yudwaSeue UONEPUIINOIIY




Page 66

010T 2un{ (¢

QUUAMD) YICJ

e hend 34
uonviuawdury

‘0107 2un{ &q pasordwons aq 01 anp pue

$$91803d T ST YTOM ST T JUSWSSASS| SPIIN]

51321e1§ JUIO [ 913 WOIJ SUISTIE UOTI LUIOJuT

uo paseq ‘drgszomred oy sso1€ PadIMOSII

pue padoPadp oq [[Im UdIP[IYD JOJ SIDTATOS
Surworsstiwod 03 yorordde payesdayur ue — (7 e

"600T U
{q parapdwos o 01 anp pue ssazdord

UT ST SFOA ST T, "D[(¥[IBAE SOWODINO PUE LIINTID
‘SIDTATIS SOQIIDSIP YIIYM Jjeas 103 padopsop
2 [ ATOIDITIP FUTUOTSSIWIWOD ¥ - C[°] @

:o1e uefd mou
21} UT SUTUOTSSTUIIOD 01 unePT A[eonymnads suonoy

“[OAD] JOTUDS © JE JUSWASLULW dANDE APYSIio]

01 122(qns st ue[d oy 1 szo1EdTpUT GdUTUIIOJIAd
gugse) smenrdordde Lq parroddns st sy -dryszoured
A} SSOIDE PUE [PUNOT) A urpia 2douosvrd uondsaord
Py LouaSe-1oiur 03 spew Suraq syuswdsoxduwr oy
MO $398 £98UTILL] 10J Ue] [ Surprendajeg oy ] PadIdy

asuodsaz yudwaSeuey

Y3y

"AJ1ARI BaTY JUTOl 100591 a1y 03 asuodsar ur paisy()
01 panrwiqns ued vonoe sy yira aury ur Suraozdun
a1e 2on0v1d vonoatoid pyo LHuaBe-rarur 03 payuy

SITDWSULIIL FUTUOTSSTUUWOD 1B} 2JeHSUOWI(]

$901419s uonodNoxd
PITYD PU® 31ed [BID0S JO SUTUOISSTUIUIOD IO [

VONEPUIUNIOIIY




Page 67

600T PUIR9(] 1¢
SuruoISSTIIIO)
arerodion)
MLYSIUOTT dULE A\
pue Avoune(y Wiy,

il i
vonviwowduy

600T 291 pud Aq — parpdde are wiear oipqnd

O JO SUTUOTSSIUWIWIOD ) WIOTJ STOSSI] I

JINSTD 0} $IDTATIG DUIPUOI,] JO PEI] Y3 apnjour

[[IA WY O, "SEOTL IDTAIS 5 UT YIOMIWELIJ

SUIUOTSSTUIWOD PIITE JYI 189) PNOM OTM
STAUOTSSTWWOD padudrradxo Jo weay v dn Sumag e

600¢C

29(] pud 4q — unod oy ssoe vonedrdde 103
JUIWILIS SUTUOISSTLIWOD Tea[d ¢ SuTdopas(] e

: 4q ypomawey SUTTOISSIUWOd 1 Jo uonviuswadur
a1 PIA Burssardord st ouno”) a1 padIdy

asuodsax uﬁueuuﬂﬁﬁz

wnIpay

Auoug

SFOAMIWET} SUTTOISSTIWWOD 2183010
e Jo 1uawdopasp oy Sururoyuy RV ERVREIFD)
ST Y9IV ST} UT UDYELIIPUN SIOM O] 1B MOYY

%UGOE JOJ onjea 19119 pur sdowodIno
SDTAIAS UUFwCHQC.i O] MWQJVQUM ST Sa01AJ9S WEIT U.JQSQ
Jo wgvgﬂowSUCuQ puv %ﬂﬁﬁcmmwﬂﬂﬂgﬁvuow 24l Jjeyd MNO0YUS

S[FoMdUIeT)
Suruorsstruwod e10drod jo yuswdoraaap
pue wpeds orqnd jo Suruorssruwooay




Page 68

oit]

6002 22(T 1€ Aq pasopdwod aq o3 paroadxo

ST ST PUE 9INQIATOD Os]e [ 110dax ot Jo uononpord
a1} SunrwoIny “JOILIPUT ST 0] munuod

QIMSUD 0} FIOPJ() IDULWIOJId [ SUISNOL] d1301eng I
PIA A[9SOP I SUIOM AMOU ST WIEI ], 92UBWIOJID |
arerodiony oy woay 1sdjeue sourvwroyrad v

"600T 221 1€ 4q 103u1pUT STy 103 2oefd Ut
11189 [[IA WiEd |, 20TLWI0JIa [ 2erod1or) ot pue ()2 a1e suowdueire Omunuod avdordde ey amsuyy
19q032() 2ows 2oeyd ur uoaq sey 3r0dor mou oYy vaep
jo vonendruew pue SunOLIIXD [LNULW 20NPIT [[IA ST vonemdruew pue Sunpayd
‘08 UTOp U] [ ST} JO STUONTUOP YD YIIA JUIISISTOD [ENUBW JO [9A9] JUILIND O} IINPIT PUL JOILIIPUT ST}
JOU ST Jey) Blep Sapnpxo %ﬁnuﬂmﬂccusw eyl os tcmo.w SJE[NO[ED _mzmuvwEOﬁE 0l ,ﬁucg,& WIDISAS %:95@

S} PAPUDWIE ST WL | UONEWIOJU] SUISNOL] o T,
J038DTpUT

0T0C LN 1§ 4q WES T, 9ULWIOLI] . ; ool
dpurwIopad oyl Jo BoONEMOEIdI MO[[E 0} pud-Ieds

0102 93PN 1¢ arerodiory oy Lq parnsse LOrenb oq [ pue

P € POUIEIDI ST UONBWIONUT £ILSSI00U [[¢ 1LYl 9INsus)
SIICEH WY J WITO,] IUDWSSISSY J[2S 21 JO 11ed se pua 1834 1u 3Ipne 1o ROUTS ' H cht [I¢ vt oamsuy]
PUB SOUBYI[D [ 947 JOJ I[E[IeAr 3¢ {[IM UONEWIOJUT Agessonou 183 .@uoum/u wnIpaj uonepowrurodde Arezodwdy - 9¢T IN 9

STeIap

voneyusudury asuodsor yuouroSeuepy  Auoug UONEPUIUITIOIIY

3

o



Page 69

: 0T0T Y2Ie|N

1¢ Aq — pud JuaL 913 1T SUOISSTUID PAILIDOSSE

[ouno”) jo jurdiooy voqred v syruqns 1opraoxd
9DTAIOS PIIDENUOD Yoed Jey Sunsonboy e

010T Y21BN 1¢ AQ — S918
2I0W $8010L £30[0UYP) SUTPLIT 110W PI[GLUD
osind Surreasur Aq vaep Jo AIGoIUT O A8EIIOU] @

0T0T Y2TPN T¢ Aq — [oaen
ssoursnq 3o 3urdioo] ToqIEd S 2LMO[LDd 03
spresap Aournol ogmoads prosar o3 wassds adueuy
dVS put ssavoid wrep pavn oyl Surwropy e
010z ue(
1¢ £q — weay SHpqeuressns 2 4310u0 serodios
S YSNOTYI PRIdISIUTWUPE PUL PAIONUOW
9T 1B $OITS [DUNOT) JO IDqUINU d) SUISLIIdU] o

opnpur

suopoy suonerado pue sje1so s imoyine [L20] ySnoiys
STOTSSTUID ()] N[ ATvwnad pue x()N w uononpar
28vIu0I9 ] — 461 [N pue suonerado V'] woxy uononpai
0TOC ITPIN 1€ COD) 98vIuIdJ — 68T [N 03 predor i Appenb eyep
unorg uag | daoxdwr 03 padoppasp uoaq sey uepd vonor uy paardy

S|reIop
vonejuawajdury asuodsas yuauwaSeuey

MO

Auoug

paA

UIU ST) 2INSEIW {[21TINDIT 2J0W 03 IIPIO
ur pavn Jyeis 01 vonvps ur ardes viep oaoidwy

apqrssod
J0U ST STy d1aya viep ponndur Aenuvw Furydoyo
103 sywowndueare daoxdwp  woysprords  \LITI(T
SU} 0} PAIIRJSULT A[ISEO OQ UTD JEY JPWHOJ T U
ponTwiqns s1 vEp Jeyl Sunnsus Aq afqissod masrym
inus  pur  vonemdiuew  evp  [enurw dnpay

suonerddo
[IOUNOD WOIJ STOISSTUId UOqIe) - GYIIN

UONEPUIWUWOIIY




Page 70

3uoduo
pue (1T A8\ 1¢

SOUBYI[DJ dA%]

S[TE1ap

wonejwawdury

"$IOBLULIY IOTATIS

I9YJ0 pue $30300mp Aq Appuowr aovpd oy (sarpne
sonovad Lpenb) sopy oseo Jo supne (17 o1d) e
2[NS
v sy “uone[od eiep dunioddns swaisds 103 pue sa[y

95ED TOJ YTONIWILI] 2OUTINSSE Lypenb e Sunuowopdur
a1e pur podopadp 2avYy SIDIAIIG S UIP[IYD)

"0T0Z YOTEN JO pud a3 Aq

ﬁOHOTHHQCU 9 Pnoys s101edIpU] TPuoneN 11y SyaIe

MSTE H\,—%E uao wSUCm [EEY AN MCMC%QC ST 198 HCHGUM@QH
[euoneN Uﬂw uo spupne jo swrrerdord enuue oYy, e

‘SanfeA J01ed1puUr 913 jv QALLIE O] | vﬁuaywwugﬁdwrﬂ— ur

vlep o) Jo Surssaooxd oy pue ‘parrodoar suonemored

pue sToquinu a1 Jo £o¥INO0E Y} ooe[d ur swLIsAs
S $$ISST 0) ‘STOILDIPUT SWIPTendoges I} Ipne
0} $INUNUOD WED [, DULWIOIJ 2eiodio) o3yy e

weal Y[ oy Surpnpur
‘Jyeis g 703 0oe[d ULl STY JUILAOT) UO JUTUTEI], e

“eIEP I[UI[AT PUE 2JLINDDT TUIsn
puv Surnpoid 10y s[ys pue 2upuod 2a03dwr
pue £3a1ems Qreng) ele(] o P sodeurw
ISLIPITWIE] PUE [IDUNOD A1) INOYINOIYY SSIUIILAL
astex 03 unx Swaq ore sdoyssprom Apenb

elep JO $a1as ¢ poniquiy [earder) yua Junjion e

018 Uayel suonoe Aoy awog uejd wonor pur {Faeng
Srend) waey s1 jo Suppaquia puv voneuswodur
a3 YA Sumumuod $1 [IPUN0OT) AY [, PRIy

asuodsar juourddeue

sy

‘unzodor ssuvwuroyrad ur vonemdruvw

pUE SUDYIYD [EnULW 10§ PIIU S FuIdNpaI
remonged ur ‘uepd wonoe Sunusixo ST A our w
SLaTE 989U JUISSIIPPE ST 11 JEY MOYS P[NOYS [IOUNO7)
YT, roa Funyroyo-10ds UMO o Aq pareIoqoIIod
a1e gorym ‘uondalord prryo 03 vonepr ur Sunsodor
pue JuawaSeuvwr Aienb viep ur sassouyram

AJnuapr paisj() puL UOISSTIIWO”) Apeng) 23v7)

o Aq paapdwos avraa eaze yurol 1ua021 oy | vIEP
ared 1eros jo Sunsodas pue Aenb saordug

UONEPUIWWOIIY




Page 71

s[e19p

vonviwwduy

Snpy

J0OJ HOHUDHMAH wdmwmﬂmw/u uﬂu Uﬁsﬁua (62 UQ@GD.UNU

MWSDQ fﬁ fﬂﬂrﬁ Owﬂ ASLD @UuU«uﬁvm v SMSOMH.T Canw Ol
%ﬂﬂugoa H@MHC\? ﬂ&ﬂUCm QU0 Q‘i»\/w Nifsialeeg HQ.«UU.HMAH UQVH [ ]

wea sourwgoyrad ayy Aq panddns ojdwes
wopurs ¥ uo SIpne Apuows 1o 3780 $901AIIG e

opnpur 9oyl ‘paonpoid st eiep 1snqoI 2INSUI O3
mQUCUNMQ ﬁﬁgcﬁ.&u@&c pue JIOAMSWLI] 90ULINSS Y »Cﬂﬁﬁg
v Sty SIDIAJIG ANIUNUWIUIO)) PuUe dImyny) ‘synpy

Suroduo
- SEOTE ODIATIS [[¥ $SOIIE SUISULD]D TITP JAISUIIKG] e

(Buroduo) sarpusde romred 03 se P se ()1(g
Ay pud AQ) SIX D) UIPIA $89008 T\ ] SUIPUAIX}] e

010C yo3ey puo £q — pasop / uado o1 smyeas
ased Aynuapt Apses o3 feuonouny 1A\,[ SuidoPad(] e

0102 &e]y puo 4q — srejdwoaxa
pue AOTIOM ‘s59001d PN UI Py TUIMOTAOY e

DI sYIuoOw

30 91dnoo 1xou o) 103 wonoe pauuryd oy ur papnpu|
"SAAD) UL J3us [[e 30§ SurpIooar pue ssadord vonoerd
saoxdunr ApueoyruGrs [a 1ey) sofuryd premio) Suraup
a1e wea 1 199l01 ] §HI oy pue wrea T 1roddng 1a\.] oy,

‘wonoe 303 dnoic)y JudwRSeuL]y 2OULWIONI |
o 01 Ajrpuowr parrodas ore syNsII PNy @

“SuroSuo §1 [ YFomower,|
UI 1EP 1991I00UT 10 SUISSTW AJOUIPT 0 JFOA\

asuodsas judwaeue

UONEPUIWWOIIY

BUOT ¢

(3u02)




Page 72

sSpeIop
uonejuawapdury

J[NSIT B ST STITED
swoy 01 papraord usaq sey Sururen pue swwerdord
UOTIBAIISAO V() B ST ITIYI IDTAIIS JILD WO Y3 U]

“PAT 2TE Y} STOILDIPUT JOF pauasord
a1t surodar vondaoxs pue preog drysiomae Surag
TP\ 24 03 $903 preoqusep souewrojrad jurol oy e

Appuows s1035971(]
Juelstssy 01 payrodar oz sased Furprendoes uado [y e

H.—mum:u\ Mﬁvw 14
SOPNPOUT IFOMIUWILT;] VO MO[YIOM SUIPILNF2Jes oy e

'SIOJEDIPUL [ED0] 2WIOS pue [euoney [[v ﬂ%SOHLQ 038
SIDIAISS UM w%ﬁﬁuug QI OUGNaHCva&v MmﬂﬁuGOH& .

3338 Teuoneiado
T0J SUOTSSIS SUTUTEI) TE DI} PUE PISSNO0OJ dWOIINO
d10W 9q 01 paguryd uaaq sey uvld 130ddns /ared oY e

Isuodsas yuswOFeue A

Aoy

UORPPUINTWOIY

("3u00)

8




Page 73

"S[OAJ]
souewroyrad Apenb vo {preansov sxowr 1r0dox
‘pammbar aroyM opews Suraq o3¢ s1uowasoIdur

smsud 01 sporrad Furdrea 1040 sourwroyTad osipeur

{POTINIOO JOIID ) JUIWSSISSE JO TS YOTM

e Sunuodurd ‘[eanposord 1o peUTUG-uOU qEDUTUY

9T DPLW STOTID IDUIIYM [IEIOP UT PIOIDT O IDTATOS
a3 SAO[[E [00} aremijos Sunzodar paoueyuo Uy e

) “spoou Jururen
symads Aynuspr 01 ssuvwroyad enprapur Sursieue
SE [[oM ST SSIUYEBIM JO SEITE UAOUY UO UONUIIL
Surssnooy pue {owmodoe SULIOITUOW APUIDYII AOU
ore weal v oy [, "doop yoeqpoay Lrenb sanoayyo
ue dopaaop 01 201ATIS Y PIMO[[E SBY ‘WIISAS
SO 24T, *(919 SUOTSIIP TDJO IUAT ‘SoInual
Jo Surpod ‘Sunepyoeq ‘sjusunsnipe [enurw st yons)
wre[d ApIsqns o 03 sYsIr L9y Auk Jo UOnELIYRUIPI
ST UT ISISSE pUE ‘TISEUrW oyl A¢ palodIp se
(230 pasn saWOdUT ‘sa1Ep JILIS "3'2) PILO I $SOIIL
$2ayd Lrpenb [E10U28 1O NTOM JO SEITE SNOTIEA UO
$Y29YD Passnd0J N0 Axxed [m weal oy (SOND)
WaSAQ sourINSSY AIeng) pur JUIWISELUL
POUEWIOJIAJ ¥ Jo voneiudwadwr oy pur wea T,
douEINSSY AI[En) PoILdIPIp € JO UONLWIO] O] e
apnpur
IeJ 08 STONOY "uayel uonode [erpawar aerdordde
put pagnuoapr ot suraned J0110 vowwod {ue

ATenIqo.] Q7
010C 121 8¢ puE JOIId JO $asned Jeyy amsud 01 ued Judwosordun
IYIpESarg ey Lmenb e padopasp sey 2014308 Y] "paaIdy

Spreasp
vonelwdwdury asuodsaz yudwaSvuey

USTH

© 2dUEMO[[Y

uosyad afdurs jo Juowsed 1a1300U1 pue syuswied
-I9PUN PUL TOA0 ‘$2IEP 1DITTOIUT (IIA PIILIDOSSE
STOTID JO [9A] Y ISTWITIW 01 IOPIO UT SWSIULYDIIW
Sunypoaypd Agenb viep doppsop 03 anunuor)

S1JOUI( XB) [IDUNO0D pue SUISNOL]

DONEPUIWWOIIY




Page 74

wepd vonoe ¢y

30 vonwwawaduwy 21nsUd 01 ()] /()T SUTMP dNUDTOD
1A $T901JJ0 2oULUIA08 (03 Jo sSunosw Jemsay
‘O00T

o) SUTYSI[(LISd WOIJ POST[EIT SOWOIINO Y SSISSE ‘s1udwdA0Idun SUTATIP UT 9ATI9]39 ST 20UBUINAOL)

01 ()] /6O(T T TOMEIIIPUN o [[Ia 7))  JO MITAIT 21v30d107) JO 9POD (L0 [ Y JO ADLADT [UNUTL JSTY
Y3 3T MOYS "SIUDWISURIIE poudyiduamis 01 Jurpeaj
‘$aN$81 20UTUIAA0S 93I0dI100 J0 WYSIs1040 poreIdaim
24129339 Surpraoid st pue pappaqua g st
FFOAIWETJ 2OULUIIA03 91e10dI100 MdU 213 JEY) MOYg

ANSIT U ST PIYIUIPT
SUONOL JOUYIING AUT PUE UONEPUIWIHOIIT OUI UT PISTEI
. ; . o
N SOV sansst oy ajezodroour [a 330dor sy T 6007 QU]
01/600T 303 dwn u] Ul QNG 103 SOV oy uo 30dar syepdn sead-jrey v
spoo\ duuy | 9onpoid i dnoid 1901330 00urUIIA0S o3 oy ], PaoIdy | wnIpajy

douruIdA03 derodiod parerdorug 01

0102 92:] 8T £q swalsds saoqe
[ JO SSOUIANIIII U1 JO Judwssasst Juopuadopur
UY ONLIIIPUN [[IAL WL [, 90UBWI019, [ 9erodior) oy,

paUTEIUTEW ST A5EIND0E pue

Lrpenb e omsuo 01 Jyels Sunsixo 1891 01 AFendar pue
JJUIS MO 1831 01 PIsN Aq [[IA YOTYM d[npou STSA[euy
SPI9N SUTUTEI] ¥ UT PIISIAUT OSE ST 9IATIS O ],

“{IL$$959U 2IOYM UONDL [EIPIUIDT 29I5E 0 pue
s Lrpenb oy Jo sSurpury oyl ssNdSIP 01 T7[¢
UT $I10BEULW SNOIIEA PUL W) V() 9 JO Feuew (3u09)
a1 udam1aq 2ovfd soyul Supoow Appuow v e ‘6

S[rep
uvonejuwduRduw asuodsas juowadeur Anion UONEPUIUWITUOID
i 1 110134 nEp |




Page 75

010T Y2FeN 1¢
“(dSH
a1 103) Afrouuon)

A1epy pue spoo
UUY ‘SOUBNDDJ A%

S[relep
uonevjudwajdury

-drgszomred reonyed o 03 ayenrdordde o
SIUDWDSULIIE DDULUIIAOS e} 2oueInsse apraord s
STYT, "(010Z YOTEIN Aq goEd TOJ SIUdWIFULIIE 9dULUIIAOS
a1 ssasse pue () (g Arenue( Aq sdrgszoued juvoygrudis
30 uomurop v do[PAdP [[IA [IPUNOT) Y], "PIdITY

asuodsaz yuduwaSeuey

Wpap

Auoug

yromoweyy digsiowe ] o18o1eng (o0 [ 9y ApISINO
pue urgua poq sdrysroured Jueonyrudis 19400 pnoys
as1o3oxa sty |, sdiysroured unpim juowoSeurw s
puT 20ULUINA0S 03 $IUdWIAOIdWT FUTALIP I 2SIOIIXD
ST Jel Moyg yoea 105 ooed wr syuswagurire
2ouruIA08 Jo Lrenb oy Jo Juowssasse

ue pue ‘sofdde st Yoy o1 sdrgszowred jo aora
18210 ¥ ST 23913 e ansuo pue drysowred yueoyrusrs
© $2100STOd JeyMm Jo uontugop 1eap v dopas(]

sdrgsyomaed
01 20ururd403 pood jo sopdound oy Suididdy

UONEPUIWI0IIY




Page 76

010C Y2TeIN 1¢

((ISH 103) Ajjouuor)
mum,_,é pue souvya |
QAN nmwu OO\ 2uUYy/

S[rEIap

vonejuwajduy

010Z YPTeN 1€ Aq — paimbor a1oym pauapduons
puE paadLaas aq i (S T-uou) sdiysmomaed
JUEDTTUSTS UT SIUSWISULIIL JUIWISLULW STy -

600T 22C1 1€ 4q
— JUD[LAOT) OIUO PIPEO] A [[IA SINSISOT ySTI JSH -

600C 22 1¢
{q — sowooIno / suondr Y ysu pue suvwroyad yuy

O] paljeip 9q Sﬁk/ 1ewio] uHCQDH dSH postaar y -

TEIA

[EUEUY () /600 P4 JO PUD 91 £¢] "PIAIIAI I I

SJUDWIFUBIIL JUDWATEULW YSIT | | TONEPUIWOIIT

ySnory paynuapy ore sdrysromnied yuedyrudrs

PO 1A\ Stupwdueire Junyodos Sutoduo

ydnoayp spdwexs 105 Juoweseurwr sdurwrolrad pia

PoYUWI[ 94 [[IA NS ‘PIEAIO] SUIAOTY poruowa[dur

PUE PaHUIPI 9 [[IA ST 9y} 9FLULW 0) STOTOE

‘Surstre ys1I yord 10,] ‘poruswoidwr pur paaisy uaaq
Apeaae sey YFOMIWLI] JUSWITLULW YSIT S [SH U] e

pa0Ide |y

asuodsas JuawdSeue A

wnpayy

Anoug

pBas

11 uo gduemsst surpraord 1oy Grnqisuodsos
wpne  pue [enuue
oy Sunedord 103 Drpqisuodsor oyesodios
ot weamIoq woneredos FOpIM JENSUOWI(] e

JUIWIDILIS  DUBLINAOS

PUY {SUOLEPUIIIODIT
apne jo  wonwwwedun
DIIWWOD JIPNE O3 A PIsIEI SaNSSI (pIm
Sugeop pue Junyoen 10J sompadoid 0anooyyo
puv

Q.
ouIpnpul

sasuoyprdwos  ozow  uownpdw e
ssyuowosordwr Suramp st ssoo01d
SIYI JBY) MOUS PUT ‘D01IWIWO ) Ipny 2yl Jo
SSOUDALIINIJO JO ADIADI [CNUUE UL INUIIPU] e
WISy
aprsino pue uryia sdigszomred Loy e ssoxov
poppaquwo pue pojudswR[dwr a1 syTOMIUIEI]
JUOWDSYUVW NS DANDDJD VYD OINSUD e

SeaIv %CT?C-C.w I} UI TONOdE pUawytioddx I\

jonuod peurdlur Juraordury

UONEPUIWOIIY




Page 77

S[reIsp
uoneuauwdury

"passorppe stiutod siyp ornsus

01 PIAITAT (| [[IA SOV a3 anpord oya sao1aI9g
FOQUIDIN] PUE $IOTATIG (63| PNy WO} SIIJO
aer0diod yo swwrersord Sunsour rengar oy 1.

“Bunsow ypoes 03 Jo11d

STAQUUDW D9IITWWIO) PN 0 PAIENDID 2T SUONOV
pue $sa1301d JO speIa(] "PanIIWOT) PNy’ Ayl Jo
ey Al YA PadIse pur patojmow ssarsord pue
UOTIDIG 29NTWWO) Y3 A PIIBUIPIO-0D §T §89501d

s 1, paopdwos Aprendordde usaq aavy sapmuwon)
WpNY oY) A PISTET $INSST PUL SUOHEPUIWWOIIT

[Te 1) amsua 03 pajuswopdwr usaq sey ssadord
3unprI put SUBOIVOW [EWIO] € ()] /(0T WOL]

“11/010T Wwoxy ssado1d enuue ue ST s JBY)
QINSUD PUE ()] /(()()T UT ADIADT JdYIINJ € axeiiopun
A 94\ 80/ 00T UT U2YLIIIPUN SLA 99O ”)
APNY 91 JO SSIUIANINIO Y JO MITADT ISL] O T,

asuodsas yupowddeuey Luoug

UONEPUITWITOINY

("1u02)
<l

ON




Page 78

Suro8uo pue
JUDUWISSISSE ()] ()T FO,]

Surwwa wo |

S[reIsp
vonejudajduy

"$19878) 2IMINJ IILITD 01 TIPIO UI PAUTLIQO A [[IM

v1Ep SUIPSEC IUEIND ‘ss0201d sty Sunm(y oGesn
101eM SUTIONUOW JO POIIW IATIIJJI-ISOD puE

POUT[WEIIIS 2IOW ¥ JOJ ‘TLas [UIDULUL JUSTMD O3
INOYFNOIP $IUNOIDT JO UVORLSIENUID ONUNUOT) o

'SUOTDT SUIMO[[O]

op ssedwooud [a uepd vonoe sy seoeds vado

pue syred ‘$omuan 2Ins1af ‘901330 Jo ofonzod oy jo
vondumsuos 1a3ea oy Sunadyey ved vonoe syesodrod
v oovpd ur and [ unon) ot siy jo xoddns up

“digsromied v ysnomnp
SIUAPISOT ADFUIEL J0J SOWOL 1 PADIIP pur ‘Ysnoioq
UMOQV/ ol MOM MVUHQUA\QUMQEM o9 A ,JQUUMCHQ Om@ﬁ@;

SIUDPISIT
980U} JOJ $IOTAIP FUTALS-TOIEA PISIPIS(NS OPIAOT] -

Sumolow 101EM Jo wonoword Supnpur ‘s1uaprsax
01 owwieidord sSueyd moraeyaq € AP -

T yorya “A8aeng ysnorog]
159u2210) o1 Jo 130ddns wr ‘AoBurreyy 103 £8a3eng
11EA\ ¥ Smdopadp Apuazmo st puNo”) oy ] padIdy

asuodsas yuowaSeuepy

wnipay

Auong

"$$9901S JO JUDWDINSLIW JLA[D O $IANENIUT FULALS
11em yuTl pue ‘vondwmsuos pny pue {Sroud Yy
ST [OTVOD JO [9AI] JWILS I IITISTOWIP O [V

3¢ P[ROYS [IDUNOT) Y A[[EIP] "SIWIIDL] PUL $IIYJO
[PUNO.) $8010¢ J1EA Jo vondwnsuod oy urdvurw
put SULINSLOW J0J SIUIWOTULIIE Juarmd aaoxduwy

vondumsuoo
I91EA JO JUIWISBUR UL PUL JUIWIINSLIJA]

UONEPUIWLOIIY




Page 79

i Lt
voneindwapdu]

.mvm.ﬂw& UT §9[0Ya40q JO a5 O

s1ng 1alem Jo Uoneeisu] O
%G,.QUHNB [enuriy pasvalduy O
SAIMSEIWT

Suraes 101em pasodoid jo Qmrqiseay ssossy sooeds
uodo pue syred jo sypne ssn-1o1em 1o0PUOD
01 TE[[ 2SULY") IVWI) SYIT Y} YSnoIy J1ox\

‘soouerdde 1o1em
aoedar 10 1g-01197 01 JuowaIbaT ssassy O

ogeIsEM
TIIEA 2ONPOT JB} $ITS0[OUYID) UONEN]
11em [ood Jurwwims posordwr sjowor] o

:SOTIUID DINSTA] UTPIM
juswoeuew 39eM daoxduwr 03 s19lord snunuor)
pwrwersord swordwey) uvarn) SuUNsSIxo § IPUNOY)
211 ySnoIy) asn 191eM 01 pajeppI ‘sooiopdwo
[IDUNOD JOJ DATENTUT 3SULYD INOTALYD(| B JIAI(]
‘s108181 LOousdyIo
I9ITAN 199W 0O SIDMOYS PUL S[EUTIN ‘$19710) ‘sdel Jo
yuowodedar 10 Sumig-onar 103 Juswannbor ssasse
0 $9DJO [IDPUNOD JO SIPNE ISN-IIJLA JONPUOT)

asuodsaz yuouraSeuepy Awong

GONEPUIWWOIIY

(yu0d)
<1

-cz




“WIO) WINIPAWE A3 UL PAIOPISUOd oq [ia sroulred apnpour
01 digsroquipwr pue 3udwdo(pAdp Ul sT preog A3a0eng
1988y 29 Teardery mou oy Jo surwrerdord ygom oy,

Page 80

"600Z FPquPda(] JO pud a3 Aq opew o

I STOREPUIWWOY Juawasordur yo3 sonrumyroddo
Aynuapr pue souewIorad YW yRUIq 01 PadIsIA

oq I SYSNOIOQ IDYI() TUIWITLUL I9SSE YSNOI
SIWOINO JO AIDATOP 1UIISISTOD ST 23213 pue sanmond
[PUNOT) 01 ANINITOD SN Y} IEYI dINSUI 0 SNV
2214798 pue deiodiod oy usaaaq digsuoneps oy
SUrAOIAdT PNIUL [[IM STY T, "edIe ST Ut stuswasoxrdun

seaysry pue radord episwwos

‘$221330 ‘s[ooyds ‘Bursnoy a1 oroprod Josse

SJT JO SIUAWID JOPIM I} $50I0E LODUOW JOJ dn[EA
pue $oWodINo FuTAordWn $1 1 1YY MOTS O PIAU [[Iax
[PUNO7) Y3 JUIWITEULI 1ISSE JOJ DTOIS JUIWSSISSE
s31 9a03dwr 03 1opI0 U INq ‘sSurpnq Orunwwos
PUE $921JJO JO ISN PITLYS PUE JUdWITeurw

J0J SITOWAZULIIE POOS UMOYS SEY [IDUNOT) DY T,

Suroduo pue
JUDWSSISST ()[()T TO,]

JUNg BIUY daup 03 swwerdord srmn,| o Jo syopra|
PUE BYDIIION] YSIAUI(] o o axed se Apqisuodsor UdALS UIAq SEY I9JIJO Uy | WPy sorfopiod 19sse WO SOW0INO FUNBIISTOWD (] b1

srelap

vonejudwapdury Jsuodsaz JuawdSeuey UONEPUIWWIOIIY ‘ON

@y
<t
S




Page 81

s

B CAA and the new Use of Resources Framework

The Uld UosR Hegime

Local authotities' Use of Resources (UoR) has been assessed by external auditors under the
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) regime since 2005. Unal 2008, this took the form
of an assessment 1 each of the following 5 areas;

¢ Financial Reporting

e Tinancial Management
¢ [mnancial Standing

e Internal Control

e Value for Money

Authorities received an overall UoR score, and a score for each area as set out below;

1 Below minimum requirements - performing inadequately
|2 At only minimum requirements - performing adequately |
3 Consistently above minimum requirements - performing
| well :
P4 Well above minimum requirements - performing strongly

This score directly influenced each organisation’s overall CPA score and had a significant impact on
external perception and reputation.

The move fo Comprehensive Area Assessment

The CPA regime provided an effective roadmap and stimulus for improvement, which helped many
authorities to move in the right direction, focusing on externally validated strengths and weaknesses.
This was reflected by a national picture of gradually improving scores and assessment results from
2005/08, and improving setvices to the public.

However, in order to build on the success of CPA, the Audit Commission recognised the need to:

e Ask "how well are people served by theit local public services?" rather than "how well are people
served by their Councils?"

e [ocus on outcomes for an area, not just on individual organisations

e Consider local priorities rather than apply a "one-size fits all" approach

e Consider whether performance s likely to improve in the future, rather than how 1t has
improved in the past

e Place less importance on compliance and rules to reflect local differences




Page 82

In late 2007 the Audit Commission began to consult on a new framework for comprehensive area
assessment (CAN), of which an updated UoR assessment would be a key component. The CAA
framework that emerged focuses on areas rather than the organisations within them, and holds local
partners jointly to account for their impact on the things that matter to the arca as a whole. The
CAA asks three key questions:

e How well do local priorities express community needs and aspirations?
e How well are the outcomes and improvements needed being delivered?
e What ate the prospects for future improvement?

The CAA does not give an overall score, as was the case for CPA. However, there will be green flags
given for innovative or exceptional performance and red flags given to indicate concerns about
outcomes and performance.

CAA - key changes

Local government focus All sectors and partners

Institution based Area based
One size fits all - Focus on local priorities
“““ Performance Outcomes and perceptions

- Collaboration between

. Joint assessment
regulators L

Continuous assessment,

- Cyclical mspection . ) .
P propottionate inspection

- FFocus on past performance Focus on future improvement

Sownrce:- Audit Compmission

Use of Resources under CAA

Alongside the area assessment, CAA\ will include organisational assessments for  key public sector
organisations including councils, primary care trusts (PCTs), police forces and fire authorities. Hach
organisational assessment consists of two components; an assessment of how effectively the
organisation is addressing its own priorities, called "managing performance” for councils, and an
updated UoR assessment will be applied similarly across the different types of organisation.

The new UoR framework under CAA applies from 2008/09. The diagram below shows the overall
apptoach to the revised UoR framework. There are three themes replacing the five arcas included
the old framework, and a number of key lines of enquiry (KI.ol:s) within each theme.




Page 83

Lise ¢

Value for
money in

the use of
resources

The individual Kl.oEs for cach theme are detailed in the main body of this document. Scoring
criteria are set out in appendix C.

COZ0UE Grant Thorsion UK LLEP &l nghts reserved



Page 84

C Scoring criteria and rules

The table below summarises the criteria used to reach scored judgements for each KLoE.

- Implemented effective
- arrangements that are:
forward looking and
proactive in identifying
and developing
opportunities for
improvement; and

» include mote sophisticated
measuring and assessment
techniques.

rrangements consistent with

established professional

practice and guidance, meet >

statutory requirements and |
operate effectively.

- Demonstrating innovation or
. best practice.

i
i

" Outputs and outcomes

- demonstrate arrangements

- which are effective and have
 the intended impact, and
show evidence of effective

_ partnership working.

Arrangements sufficient to
address the KI.OL.

- Demonstrating strong

~outcomes for the community

including through partnetship
working.

- Arrangements achieve - Lvidence of performing
- minimum acceptable levels of |
performance. acceptable levels and

- achieving VFEM.

consistently above minimum

- Lvidence of performing well
above minimum acceptable
levels and achieving excellent

Theme scores are derived from a numerical average of the KlL.ols scores within that theme. In some
-

cases such as theme 3 when only 2 KlLoEs are assessed, the average of KLol: scores could result in
a number ending in .5. In such cases the following rules apply in 2008/09:

e For theme 2, if the average KILoll score ends in (0.5, then the theme score will be rounded up or
down to the score for KlLol: 2.2, Examples - KlL.ol scores of 3,2,3,2 = theme scote of 2. KI.oE
scores of 2.3,3,2 = theme score of 3.

e J‘or theme 3, if the average Kl.oli score ends in ().5, then the theme score will be rounded up or
down to the score for Klok 3.1. Iixamples - KLol: scores of 3,2 = theme scote of 3. Kl.ol:
scores of 2,3 = theme score of 2.

The Audit Commission document at the link below details the overall approach to UoR framework
and full details of scoring methodology.




Page 85

http://www.audit-

commission.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments

Downloads/uorframework2008update feb09.pdf
In addition the Commission published auditor guidance for the UoR framework. This is available at

the link below. This provides details of the specific Kl.oEs and expected indicators for levels of
performance;

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/localgov/audit/UoR /Pages/guidance.aspx




Page 86

D Kl.oLs specified for assessment in 2008/09 and 2009/10

Some Kl.olis are assessed on a rotating basis. The table below summarises the KLoEs that were
assessed and formed the basis for the VFM conclusion in 2008/09:

or county

Theme 1- Managing finances

Understanding costs Y Y Y

3| Financial reporting, Y Y LY
Theme 2 - Governing the business

2.1 Commissioning & procurement Y Y WCC
2.2 Use of data Y Y Y
2.3 Good governance Y Y Y
24 Internal control Y Y Y

Theme 3 - Other resources

3.1 Environmental management Y

N
3.2 Asset management Y N ; Y+
Y

3.3 J Workforce management } N

For the 2009/10 assessment, the following KI.ol’s will be assessed and will form the basis for the
VFEM conclusion. Scores achieved in 2008/09 will continue to apply for 2009 /10 for those Kl.obs
not being assessed in year 2:

Single tier
or county

Theme 1- Managing finances : ‘
1.1 ‘inancial planning Y Y Y

- Understanding costs Y Y

£13 - Financial reporting f Y : Y

}

Theme 2 - Governing the business | |

F 2.1 s Commussioning & procurement ? Y
22 Useofdata h Y
3.1 Environmental management N Y 5 Y f

3.3 Workforce management Y ‘ N f Y

\sset management ! Y

“only assessed at PCTs with a significant asset base.




Page 87

NI156 - No. of houscholds 1 temporary accommodation

Underlying data is fundamentally sound, but there are three main issues to highlight;

(1) Audit trail From a sample of 20 OHNMS records picked for testing; one paper file didn't contain
appropriate supporting evidence and three paper files couldn't be located. Also, we couldn't re-
perform the calculation because a key spreadsheet (the "bad data list") had not been retained from
year-end.

2) Calculation method There is a lot of fauly complex data handling and manipulation required
: arrh p g p q

to calculate the indicator. This takes a significant amount of officer time and increases the

possibility of errors occurring. Ideally we would like to see proper, automatic reports developed.

(3) Continuity Only one officer currently knows how to go through the data manipulation process
in order to calculate this indicator. He has written a procedure note but it would be unrealistic for
someone else to pick this up from scratch at the moment.

e Fnsure that all necessary information is retained at vear-end to allow recalculation of the
performance indicator

e Develop system reports to automatically calculate this indicator and reduce the current level of
manual checking and manipulation

e linsure that appropriate continuity arrangements are in place for this mdicator

NI185 - Carbon emissions arising from Council operations

I'his 1s a new indicator and our judgement is that the Council has gone through a robust proces
and arrived at a reasonably accurate figure based on the resources and data available to it. However
there remain some issues that the Council will need to consider;

e We identified one example of a mis-keved figure, so the Council should consider improving
checking arrangements for manual entry;




Page 88

(&4
AN

e  Only around 0.4% by number of non-mileage travel claims are currently included, although this
figure includes all air travel on Council business. Data capture within SAP and through taxi
contractors should be improved to allow more accurate assessment of business travel; and

e Lnergy and gas usage data should be refreshed as close as possible to the end of the reporting
petiod to minimise the impact of subsequent adjustments, reconciliations and rebates on
SIGMA

e Reduce manual data manipulation and entry wherever possible by ensuring that data is
submitted in a format that can be easily transferred to the DIEFRA spreadsheet. Improve
arrangements for checking manually inputted data where this is not possible.

e Improve data capture in relation to staff travel in order to more accurately measure this area

General review of data quality management arrangements and controls m Adult

Social Services

' Summary of findings ‘ v
We found that system access and change controls are in place, and a good control environment
overall. However, we identified at the time of our review a number of weaknesses mn system

controls mcluding:

® ['ramework-1 does not have an audit trail record for case note amendments processed by
those with system administrator ("FWADMIN") access.

e During a recent period of temporary additional allocations of FWADMIN roles, temporary
access permissions were not promptly removed when no longer required.

e Some of the procedure documents provided to us do not appear to be up to date and do
not fully reflect current control arrangements, as we understand them to be operating at this
time.

e  Our review of a sample of changes to case files indicate that the Council needs to take steps
to better ensure that data placed on case files 1s of sufficient quality to minimize the amount
of corrective action subsequently required ("right first time"). See recommendation below.




Page 89

40
1]

INI59 - Initial assessments for children’s social care carried out within 7 working
days of referral

For NI 59 the authority has reported quality concerns in terms of completeness and reliability of
mitial assessments document records. An internal audit of this PI by the corporate Policy and
Performance team has identified practice quality issues in the completeness of some initial
assessments. We did not find any practice quality issues that were evident from the case files
reviewed, however we did identify one error relating to a potential wrong inclusion in the
numerator/dominator, relating to the completeness of the initial assessment. The report indicated
that one was completed however the assessment was abandoned. See recommendation N below.

rmance Indicator

NI 62 - The percentage of chﬂdrcu)kcd after at 31 March with three or more | No
placements during the vear.

NI 66 - The percentage of children looked after at 31 March with three or more
pe g
placements during the vear.

NI 67 - Child protection cases which were reviewed within required timescales

Overall the data reported complies with the Audit Commission's data quality criteria. The service
acknowledges the need to improve svstem report structures and parameters in order to minimise
the time taken to produce and verify reports, and the manual interventions involved. This will free
up significant amounts of officer time and further enhance confidence in the data reported.

The recent joint area review completed by the Care Quality Commission and Ofsted identify
weaknesses in data quality management and reporting in relation to child protection, which are
corroborated by our own spot-checking work. The Council should show that it is addressing these
areas in line with its existing action plan, in particular reducing the need for manual checking and
manipulation in performance reporting.




Page 90

vonednd ST UT LI SUE JO Jnsax v se dunov wory Surureayas 10 Juyov vosiad {uv o) pauoIsEINo
sop 107 sn {q paydanov aq ued Qypgqsuodsar ox apm3 v se {uo paredard uaaq sey vonvorqnd siy 1.

..mﬁqvﬂuﬁ_vgumuﬂ« SUWLEY 1a(jtuaw ol w@ ﬁu.ﬂmﬂwﬂvﬁ 3384 SIDIAISG
.Qﬂﬁmwaﬂﬁuﬁg IPIMPIOM B JOU DI SWI Ioqurat a1 puve jeuonruialuy VOIuIOy 1, juercy .AVTWQCCNGHQQQH
QaﬁQHCﬂ,,,ﬁ v::‘:ﬂmu.v p¥T jpuonruiajuy CO&QHC&,H‘ U219 S«:«Trz way squaw v SEATT NA CC&QHCQQ. Jjuvioy

.Q%ﬂm\ﬂoﬁﬁ;ﬁ& ﬁﬂﬂﬁ_ﬁ: Tvﬁaﬁﬂ v anmx I'>nN GOPQROQQ. JULICy suvow :QCHQHCQYH@ :\:\nﬁmv:

.quPHUwQH mpgw«ﬁ ﬂ/« .nmw MxH b 4 CCwQHCQ,HA agnkm.v OCCN ﬁw
}N*03 uojuioyj-jueib - mmm

uojuioy ] juelr) ¢




HARINGEY COUNCIL

Page 91

Agenda Iltem 8

& GrantThornton

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - 5§ NOVEMBER 2009

Work

Use of resources and
data quality 2008

Progress

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Review of probity and
propriety

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Grants 2007-08

Reported to February 2009 Audit Committee

Accounts audit

Complete and results reported to Members in September 2009 as part
of the Annual report to those charged with governance (ISA260). The
Council's action plan to implement our recommendations will be
presented to this meeting of the Audit Committee.

International Financial
Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

In February 2009, we held a workshop to help the Council to prepare
for putting arrangements in place, from April 2009, in time for full
implementation of IFRS in 2010/11.

We held a workshop with the Council and issued an IFRS conversion
report planner to management which highlights the areas of greatest
likely impact for the Council and proposes a number of actions for
the Council over the coming months. We are continuing to work with
management as preparations for IFRS continue.

Use of resources and

Complete and results will be presented to this meeting of the Audit

data quality 2009 Committee in our Use of Resources 2009 report. The report includes
the findings from our recent work on treasury management and
members allowances.

2009/10 audit fees We agreed our indicative fees letter with the Council and presented

this to the April Audit Committee meeting,

Our full audit plan and updated audit fee will be presented to the
Audit Committee in early 2010, following agreement with

management.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
5 November 2009




Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

[No.]

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 5" November 2009

Report Title. Progress Report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

Report of : Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

Signed : g |

Contact Officer : Tim Fisher, Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation (020 8489
1954)

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information Only

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. To advise and update Members on the Counter Fraud performance of the
Benefit and Local Taxation Service from the 1°'July 2009 - 30" September
2009.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. N/A

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1.  The Council has a published Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. The
activities stated in this report directly relate to the Council maintaining
effective counter —fraud activities as defined by this strategy

3.2.  The requirement to maintain effective counter fraud activities is a
requirement of the Corporate Area Assessment as defined by the Key Line
of Enquiry — Service Outcomes for Users and the Community

4. Recommendations

4.1.  That Members consider and note this report and the work being carried
out by the Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud
activity.




Page 94

5. Reason for recommendation
5.1.  For Members to remain informed of the activity of the Fraud
Investigations Team and are able scrutinise this accordingly.
6. Other options considered
6.1. Not applicable
7. Summary
7.1. The Benefits and Local Taxation Service continues to maintain and further
develop an effective approach to counter — benefit fraud activity. Since
April 2009 BLT has achieved 30 successful sanctions against those found
to be committing benefit fraud. During quarter 2 2009/10 BLT achieved
19 sanctions and has a further 21 cases referred for prosecution. Key
work priorities for the Fraud Investigation Team are the National Fraud
Initiative and joint working with the Department for Work and Pensions.
8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1. The Chief Financial Officer notes the contents of this report and confirms
that the counter-benefit fraud activity undertaken is provided within the
overall benefits & local taxation cash limit.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and advises that there are no specific legal implications which arise
out of the contents.

9.2 Legal Services will continue to support Benefits and Local Taxation, in
terms of advice and prosecution work, in order to maximise the level of
Government subsidy available for recovering overpaid housing benefit.

10 Head of Procurement Comments [ Required for Procurement Committee]

10.1 Not applicable

11 Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

11.1 The activities detailed in this report relate to the day to day work of the
Fraud Investigation Team. All counter fraud activity is undertaken with due
regard and adhesion to the Council’s Equalities and Community Cohesion
policies.

12 Consultation

12.1 No consultation was required for the production of this report.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 95

13 Service Financial Comments

13.1 The role of the Fraud Investigation Team does not attract direct financial
subsidy from Central Government as there is no specific statutory duty to
maintain counter fraud activity in respect of Housing Benefit and Council
Tax Benefit.

13.2 However, there is a clear expectation on Local Authorities to maintain
effective counter fraud activity. This is currently measured by the
Corporate Area Assessment through the Key Lines of Enquiry.

13.3 The Benefits and Local Taxation Service maintains a dedicated team to
tackle benefit fraud. The role of the Fraud Investigation Team is clearly
defined in the Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy relating the Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

14 Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1 Appendix 1 - Detailed breakdown of sanction cases achieved during
Quarter 1 2009/10

15 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1 The background working papers are located within the BLT Fraud Section,
10 Station Rd, Wood Green. The BFI Report was published in October
2007 and is available on the internet under www.bfi.gov.uk

16. BACKGROUND

16.1  Counter fraud performance is primarily judged against successful outcomes
in respect of Prosecutions and Sanction based activity. Counter-Fraud staff
are empowered to investigate suspected benefit fraud and have a range of
sanctions that can be applied to those who admit to fraud or where there is
sufficient evidence to warrant a prosecution.

16.2 The Council has adopted an Anti - Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit. This specifies the type of activities
which underpin effective counter fraud activity.

17. COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

17.1 The primary focus of the Fraud Investigation Team has been the sifting and
investigation of cases received via the National Fraud Initiative. In addition to
this the team have been pursuing a number of prosecution cases.

17.2 During this second quarter the team have successfully prosecuted 6 cases
resulting in a total of 11 prosecutions to date. This exceeds last years total of
10 prosecutions. At present the Fraud Investigation Team have 11 pending
prosecution with Legal Services and a further 10 pending cases with the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) solicitors following joint
investigations with DWP investigators.

17.3 The focus on prosecution activity reflects the increase in joint working

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 96

between the Fraud Investigation Team and other organisations such as the
DWP and neighbouring local authorities. This has enabled the Fraud
Investigation Team to pursue more complex investigations which by their
nature require a higher level of sanction

17.4 The performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the second quarter of
2009/10 is summarised in table 1, see below -

Successful outcomes for 2nd quarter 2009/10

Sanction Type Number Target Status
Issued
Caution 9 Accepted
Admin Penalty 4 Accepted
Prosecution 6 Guilt
Total 19 35
Table 1

17.5 The focus on prosecution cases provides a higher deterrent value to potential
benefit fraudsters and those already committing fraud. Wherever possible
successful prosecution cases are publicised in the local media with the clear
message that abuse of the benefit system will not be tolerated. In addition to
this it should also be noted that the Council has undertaken a number of benefit
take-up initiatives to ensure that a balanced message is projected.

17.6 The total number of sanction cases achieved during the year to date is detailed
in table 2, this also includes the number of cases referred for prosecution. The
Fraud Investigation Team is recording successful sanctions below the planned
performance for the year. However, this should be counterbalanced against
the increase in prosecution activity. Such cases, due to their more complex
nature, take longer to investigate and have a longer finalisation time due to the
formal legal and court processes.

17.7  There is arisk that BLT will not meet the target of 140 successful sanctions
planned for the year. This does not necessarily represent a reduction in
counter fraud activity but does reflect a shift into prosecution work and an
attempt to focus fraud investigations on higher value frauds.

Successful outcomes for year to date 2009/10

Sanction Type Number Status
Issued

Caution 13 Accepted

Admin Penalty 6 Accepted

Prosecution 11 Guilty

Referred For 21 Pending

Prosecution

Total 51

Table 2

17.8 A more detailed breakdown of successful prosecution and sanction cases is
included in appendix 1 of this report. This gives details of the type of fraud
Report Template: Formal Bodies , 4



18.

18.1

18.2

18.3

19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

Page 97

discovered. Each decision to prosecute or administer a sanction is taken in
accordance with the Sanctions Policy. This takes a range of factors into
account when determining what appropriate sanction to apply, particularly the
level of planned dishonesty involved.

OVERPAID HOUSING AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT

Counter fraud activity over the last two quarters of the year has identified
£496,997 in overpaid benefit, this includes overpayments for non sanctioned
cases, and a further £7,437 in Administrative Penalties. Central government
subsidy is paid in relation to overpayments is at a rate of 40p to the £1.00 or
40%. Consequently, it can be estimated that £198,800 has been generated in
subsidy, this effectively results in a 60% shortfall against benefit expenditure.

The subsidy arrangements are designed to incentivise local authorities to
recover overpaid Housing Benefit. Currently, recovery performance in relation
to all in-year created overpayments is approx 51%. Based on this the potential
recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit arising through fraud could amount to
£253,468.

When combining subsidy paid, plus recovered overpayments for the year it is
estimated that counter fraud activity could recover in the region of £452,268 out
of the £496,997 paid leaving a net cost to the Council of £44,729.

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY

Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy - relating to Housing Benefit and
Council Tax Benefit is published on the Council’s website, along with the
Sanctions Policy and advice on how to refer suspected cases of benefit fraud.

The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy outlines the types of activities the
Council will use to both detect and prevent benefit fraud and how the Council
will utilise all appropriate methods to identify benefit fraud, either directly or in
partnership with other organisations.

The Fraud Investigation Team has sought to forge closer working links with the
DWP’s Counter Fraud Investigation Service. From November this will involve
joint working on the National Fraud Initiative on those cases where there is a
common interest. Common interest cases are where the customer is receiving
a DWP administered benefit eg. Income Support or Job Seekers Allowance as
well as Housing Benefit or Council Tax Benefit.

National Fraud Initiative is a key business priority for the Fraud Investigation
Team. A total of 8511 referrals relating to Housing Benefit and or Council Tax
Benefit were received from the Audit Commission, of these 2977 referrals
(35%) have been identified as being of interest. Of the 2977 referrals 714
(24%) have been pre checked of which 334 have been cleared as no
discrepancies and 380 have been forwarded for further investigation. The
remaining 2263 cases will be checked throughout the remainder of the year
and forwarded for investigation where appropriate.

19.5 The Fraud Investigation Team have prioritised 16 reported areas, the details of

which along with the activity to-date is summarised in table 3 below. The

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



by the matching rules.

Page 98

referrals have been classified by the Audit Commission as high, medium and
low quality. This relates to the level of probability that fraud has been identified

Total Total for
Total Total To be Cleared, further
Report Description Matches | Checked | checked | no issue investigation
High quality in borough payroll 253 253 0 181 72
High quality in borough pensions 59 3 56 1 2
High quality out borough payroll 405 9 396 6 3
High quality out borough pensions 1053 22 1031 7 15
Medium quality out borough payroll 10 10 0 2 8
Medium quality in borough pensions 57 15 42 10 5
High quality HB to HB in borough 69 64 5 62 2
High quality HB to HB out borough 80 24 56 13 11
High quality HB to RTB out borough 6 6 0 0 6
High quality market traders out borough 26 26 0 13 13
Medium quality market traders out borough 4 4 0 3 1
Medium quality market traders in borough 6 6 0 1 5
High quality Taxi Drivers 373 45 328 12 33
High quality alcohol licences in borough 34 34 0 0 34
Medium quality alcohol licences in borough 45 45 0 2 43
Low quality alcohol licences 497 148 349 21 127
Totals 2977 714 2263 334 380
Table 3
19.6 In addition the Fraud Investigation Team are continuing to work through those

cases that have been identified by the Audit Commission as recommended
cases. The expectation of the Audit Commission is that these will be
completed by the end of December 2009. A total of 1297 Housing
Benefit/Council Tax Benefit referrals have been classified as recommended
cases. Of these 592 (45%) are due to be allocated for investigation, the
remainder have either been cleared as no fraud or are under investigation.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 99

uoIINIasold =d
Ajeuad aAnRASIUILIPY =Y

90UBWIOLIdd pheld J93uno’

uoined =)

(8'€L1'9F 04°8%9'C62F
0003 d Aoueus | paALu0D|900Z/ 1 LivT 6002/60/80  [/9°1L8C'G/3  |900Z/LL/9L Aousby feuseix3 VE8/GL
00920°L3 \4 (%001) Aemy duo9 8)uyeq|6002/80/12 6002/60/6C  [00°0CP'€3 6002/80/C1 SWgH 4001002
0003 D) (%001) Aemy auo9) ayuea|6002/80/01 6002/60/€0  |yP'G8E'CT 6002/80/¥0 SWgH Vd0100Z
00°03 0] sHpal) xe| - buiAneg SNGH|6002/80/1 1 600¢/60/1 1 0lL°'€/v'93 6002/80/G0 SWaH ZN0100C
00°03 0 sypai) xe| - buires SWGH 6002/60/6C (0003 6002/60/.0 SINGH INOLOOZ
00°03 0 sypal) xe| - buireg SNGH[6002/60/20 600¢/60/vC 18°016°c3 6002/80/1 1 SINGH 4701002
16'G9/.'E3 \'4 jende) - buines SNGH |8002/10/20 6002/60/.0 |GC'/2C'93 £00¢2/11/0C SINGH VipSSl
00°03 Q) (%001 ) Aemy auo9 a)ulyeq|6002/80/1 | 6002/80/9C  [00'G.¥'C3 6002/80/G0 SNgH 0d0100C
0003 ©) Buiwield @ BupIOAA|6002/50/22 6002/80/€1L |61 vY0°L3 6002/50/61 SNgH Viy2ol
98'v.€3 \4 pas( sebep paiejdaplapun|6002/€0/. 1L 6002/80/0L GG6¥C L3 6002/20/6Z SINgH diN0L00Z
0003 0) supai) xe] - buines SWgH|6002/20/80 6002/80/90  [2G'¥9E'L3 6002/L0/90 SWGH HINO100Z
00°03 d Buiwie|d g BubIOA [8002/80/62 6002/80/CL  |G/.°€90°GL3  [8002/.0/0L dMd V8E091
00'03 d |eydeD paiejoepun|.002/v0/.1 6002/80/0C  |VL'€LL'v¥3  |1002/20/SL SINgH V01002
00°03 d BulwielD 3 BuPOAA[800Z/80/E ) 6002/80/8C  |PP'€EL'0SF  |/002/G0/80 AsbulieH Jayi0 VEBSSL
00°03 Q) sypai) xe| - buines SNGH|6002/20/S2 6002/L0/L1 8y LLEC3 6002/20/€C SINGH 1NOL00Z
{01°200713 \4 s)pai) xe] - Buines SINGH|6002/20/60 6002/L0/L1 90°/0V'¥3 6002/10/.2 SNgH FINOL00C
00°03 d Buiwield g Buplop 8002/ 1/9Z 6002/L0/€C  |LC°08E'T3 800Z/0L/v1 dMd voLl9l
0003 Q) (%001 ) Aemy auo9) 8}ulea[8002/90/90 6002/.0/0C eV’ LLE'LT 8002/20/8L olland jo Jsquisy V16651
00°03 d Adueua ] paALUOD[€00Z/L L/0 6002/.0/SC  |00°0EY° 193 swea) Buisssoold VEOYS)

junowe adAL PaJaA0ds|p pnelj Jo adA| 9jep pajeald JdQ peaiby dO [EjoL pasopd 821n0s |ellajay 9y aud
uad py y1| uopoueg uopoueg AU} ajeg
ojeq

T xipuaddy 01/600¢C T 19)end :poliad 1oj pauonpues Ajjnyssaddns sased Jo sjie}ap pasiwAuouy




Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101 Agenda Iltem 10

Haringey Counail

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 5 November 2009

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2009/10 Quarter 2

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken during the second quarter by
the Internal Audit Service in completing the annual audit plan and any responsive
fraud investigation work. In addition, the work of the Council’s personnel division in
supporting disciplinary action taken across all departments by respective council
managers.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2 .2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports to both
managers and the Audit Committee on progress against the agreed audit plan and the
implementation of audit recommendations ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled. ‘

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and progress
during the second quarter 2009/10.




Page 102

3.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.

3.3 That the Audit Committee confirms that the actions taken during Quarter 2 to address
the outstanding recommendations are appropriate.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of the annual
internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed recommendations as part of its
Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, progress reports are provided on a
quarterly basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and associated appendices and included in the recommendations for the Audit
Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
work undertaken in the quarter ending 30 September 2009 and focuses on:

e Progress by Deloitte and Touche (internal auditors) on internal audit coverage
relative to the approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports
issued and finalised,;

e Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations with special
attention given to priority 1 recommendations; and

o Details of investigative work undertaken relating to fraud and/or irregularities that
fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team, including
information in respect of disciplinary action taken.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within the Audit & Risk
Management Unit and from records held by Deloitte and Touche and the Council’s
corporate Human Resources business unit.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of the is report,
and advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report or the
recommendations.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 103

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer has no additional comments to make.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements
in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides
to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of individual internal audit reports and follow up
programmes and their comments included in the final report which is circulated in
accordance with the agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the five year contract which was
awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with EU
regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are contained and managed
within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices

13.1 Appendix A — Deloitte and Touche Progress report
Appendix B — In-house Team - investigations into financial irregularities
Appendix C — Council-wide disciplinary information

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 104

15.Performance Management Information

15.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local performance
targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form part of Corporate
Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below
shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and gives a breakdown between

the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pl Ref. | Performance Indicator 2"% Quarter | Year to date | Target

A1 Audit work Completed vs. Planned | 63% of 44% of total | 95%
programme planned Q2 | annual

programme | programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 3.5 3.55 3.75
high)

A3 Time taken to complete 14.3 weeks | 17.25 weeks | 12 weeks
investigations (2008/09 referrals)

A4 Priority 1 recommendations 100% 100% 95%
implemented at follow up (2008/09
audits)

16. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

16.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the second quarter of 2009/10 to date is detailed at
Appendix A. Members of the Audit Committee receive detailed summaries of all projects for
which a final report has been issued on a monthly basis to allow for any issues to be raised
and discussed in a timely manner. Appendix A provides a list of all final reports which have
been issued during the quarter, together with detailed summaries of all reports which are
issued with a ‘limited’ assurance rating.

16.2 Appendix A also provides detailed summaries of all recommendations which were previously
recorded as outstanding at the time of the follow up audit work. Members have been
monitoring the progress and implementation of these at each Audit Committee to ensure
that managers were taking appropriate action to address outstanding recommendations. A
summary of all follow up audits of 2008/09 projects which have been undertaken in 2009/10
is also included in Appendix A (pages 30-31) and as at 30 September 2009, all Priority 1
recommendations had been implemented.

16.3 To date, 44% of the planned programme of work has been delivered. A total of 50% of the
total annual audit plan was estimated to be delivered in the first two quarters of 2009/10.
Although the level of audit work delivered to date is slightly below the target, there are no
issues identified at this date which will prevent the 95% annual target from being achieved
and ongoing monthly contract monitoring reviews ensure that performance levels are kept
under review.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 105

16.4 In this quarter, a total of 11 projects from the 2009/10 annual audit plan have been finalised,

including 5 school visits to assess compliance with the Financial Management Standard in
Schools (FMSiS). The programme of planned follow up audits is also reported at Appendix
A. The work of internal audit and the new reporting requirements to both the Audit
Committee and Cabinet, which receive details of all outstanding Priority 1 recommendations
as part of the 2009/10 corporate performance reporting arrangements, have ensured that
managers take greater responsibility for implementing recommendations.

16.5 In conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, Directors are kept advised of the outstanding

17.

recommendations and any actions required to ensure that implementation of
recommendations is achieved. From 2008/09 onwards, the implementation of Priority 1
recommendations has been included in the Pl reporting requirements for all departments.
During quarter 2, Internal Audit are satisfied that managers have been taking appropriate
action to address the issues raised in the original recommendations prior to 2008/09.
Revised timescales have been agreed in two instances where it was considered
appropriate.

In-house Team — Fraud investigation/irregularities

17.1 In accordance with the Council’'s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that fall

outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the Information
Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were completed by the In-house
Team to date in 2009/10 and any which were brought forward from 2008/09. The listing at
Appendix B also includes any referrals made using the Council’s whistle blowing policy
which were investigated by Internal Audit. During the second quarter, one whistleblowing
referral was made to an officer’s line manager which was investigated by an independent
service manager. Internal Audit are satisfied that the investigation was carried out
appropriately and in accordance with Council policy. No further action was required.

17.2 Within the second quarter, nine new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation,

and three cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees. The three
cases completed in quarter two took 14.3 weeks on average to complete. Internal Audit
work closely with officers from personnel and the service involved to ensure that the
investigation is completed as quickly as possible.

17.3 The Council has a dedicated email address and telephone number, which is advertised on

the Council website, by which members of the public can report instances of suspected
fraud or irregularity. The In-house Team manage and monitor these referrals. During the
second quarter, 17 referrals in relation to new allegations were made via the Council’'s email
reporting facility. Of these, seven related to housing benefit, and two related to council
tax/council tax benefits issues and were referred to the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation
Team for further review. Three related to Housing and sub-letting issues and were referred
to the Strategic Housing Division for further review. Two referrals related to Freedom
Passes and were referred to the Parking Services Division for further review. Three referrals
were not related to fraud within Haringey Council.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 106

17.4 During the second quarter of 2009/10, the in-house team have also completed:

e Internal audit reviews of grant usage during 2008/09 for Adult Stroke Care in the
Community which has enabled the final grant claims to be submitted in accordance with
central government and external audit requirements; and

» Ongoing support and guidance to relevant departments across the council and Homes
for Haringey in relation to the National Fraud Initiative (NFI). This has ensured that the
investigation processes into potential data matches can take place. A separate report is
provided to the Audit Committee to advise of progress and actions taken by the Council
in respect of NFI.

17.5 The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. In 2009/10,
there have been no referrals for investigation. This is a substantial reduction on previous
years’ figures. Improvements in procedures, including the introduction of ‘positive pay’
whereby the council's banking team receives information on cheques before they are
cleared, and new cheque security measures have reduced the opportunity for attempted
fraud in this area.

18. Council-wide disciplinary statistics

18.1 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the second
quarter of 2009/10. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been provided by
the Council's Human Resources business unit in line with council statistics reported
elsewhere.

18.2 Improved processes, monitoring, management information and liaison between service
departments and HR has been put in place. These improved processes have resulted in an
average of 65 days per case in quarter 2. This level has been maintained over the previous
four quarters.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 6



Page 107

V XIANAddV

600¢ 1990120
“PYT NIPNY [BUIDIU] J0309S J1[qnd AYonoJ, 2 N0

AJ3urIeH JO Yy3no.rog uopuoy

0102/600C
110day] Jipny [RuIdU] 7 13)ren()
ypny [ewuj



Page 108

01/6007 Hoday] 7 10)en() — 1pny [eurdu] Ao8uLieH Jo y3nolog Uuopuor|

G ANIqIsuodsay Jo JUORIS
o S 60/8007 SUOLIBPUAWWOINY ¢ -] AJIOLIJ wc%cﬁmubo - 110doy ssa1301 pafIeIa(g
TR T T T T T L L L L L T N L PRI E TP 60/3007 — 21qe.L A Mo[[os
g 80/L00 — SUOTEPUOWIW0ay dn-mo[[o,]
g T £0/9007 — SUOTZpUA00aY dn-Ao[[0,]
G T 90/S00T % SO/H00T — SUOHEPUSILI0aY dn-mo[[0y]
T e SJUOWSSISSY — S[00YDS UI PIEPURS JUSUOSRUR [RIOURUL]
RIS RCISCIT I LI 01/6002 PUE 60/300Z :Hodoy ssa18014 Ipny
LR ESEE e LT T RN ER NI IR AIRUIING SATINOSXE

adeq
sjuNuUo))

V XIANHddY

01/6007 LYOdHY LIANY ATIALIVAO - LIANY TYNIALNI ALLIOTAA



Page 109

[ 98ed 01/6007 Hoday 7 1ouen() - 11pny [eurdu] LoSuLieH JO ySnolog uopuor|

01/600C 11PNV plepue)§ SOWOH JUNR( o
01/600T 31PNV S[PISOH o
spa0daud Jipne (/8007 JO uUonesijeul,] e

:01/6002 T 193aen) Jo Arewwing /S)y3ysiy 4oy

SUOLEPUSWII00a] do1poead 1s0q Jo/pue SIopew Joulwt - ¢ 41401
uonoe JUSWIFeURW [BOO] J0J SUOHEPUSTUWIONAT OO - 7 AILIOLL]
JuwOFeUR JOIUIS JO UOHUONE o) I0] sansstIofews - 7 AJLioLLg

:5911039180 FUIMO[[0] 9y} 0} SUIpI0dOR PasnLIoLd a18 SUOHEPUSWIUIONAT INO ‘JOPUIDI B S

")) 31pny a1} 0} partodor Ajsnorasid jou 9soy) oxe pjoq ul
poySiy31y syipne oy, "eonIuwo)) ypny oy} 0} payodor pue pansst si podos [euly oy} own Yy Aq SIOJO [oUN0) Aq pajuswofdur
U99q 2ARY Apeoie Aewl SUONEPUSWIWIOIDI PUB JIpne oY) JO oWl dY) B SWI)SAS O} JO Snjels dy) J09[Jo1 SI[qe} payoeye oy,

‘syrodax
JIpne [eUl} [BOPIAIPUL S} UI pafieiop A[[ny a1e ‘uono[dwos I0f ouI[peap 9y} pue IO 9[qIsuodsar oY) JUIpn[oul ‘SUOTIEPUIIIOII
o1} SSAIpPPE 0} SUOT)OE SIMNIJ(O "Po2ide usaq aAey Jodar s1y) uryim pajySIUSIY SISSIUNLIM [01UO0D AUB SSIIPPE 0) SUOHEPUIUIOIL
IV “pansst uroq uodor feury oy} 0} Joud passnosip a1 sondsip Aue pue ‘SI90JO [OUNOY) M PIISE dIR SUOHBPUIWILUOIAI [[V

15onbai
uodn syrodar jipne ano jo sordod [[ny yym papiaoid oq os[e [[Im 9OPIWUWOD) I} JO SIDQUIdJ 9d)IUIIO)) IIPNY U} JO SIOQUIDIA 0)
siseq AJyuowr e U0 papraoid SI Yorym uoneuIojul Areuwuuns 9y} 1043230} smeip 1odal o], "UONRWLIOJUL I0] PIpN{Oul SI SFUIpul JIpne
Q0URINSSE POJIWI[ SY) JO ATeWnNS PI[IL}ap SI0UW Y "SMIIAI JIpNe [BUIDIUL JO 9SIN0O ) SULMP PIYIIUIPI U JARY YOIYM [[OUNO))
oy pue syuounedop [enpraipur Suroey sysu A3y oy} YSIYSIY 0} pauSisop os[e SI Hodol SIy) JO JRULIO SY], dWI) IOA0 padeurwl
Suroq ore SYSLI MOY UO UONBULIOFUI YJIM SIOQUIDJA IPIACId [[IM [OIYM JIOM SUID)SAS A9Y I0J [9ARI) JO UONIIIP Y} JO UOIRIIPUI
ue SOAIS pue 90UBINSSE [BURISQNS JO [[N PIAJIYIL JABY UOIYM SBIIR 9SOy} U0 uonruLiojul sapraoid jrodas oy, -o8e)s [eulj je mou
a1e yorym syrodor e Jo s[rejop Suipnour Jeok [ROUBUY ()[/6007 9} 10J 90nIwo)) ypny dy) 0) odas 1oyrenb puodas o st Sy,

uondnponujf

ATewuing dANNAXG

V XIANAddY 01/6007 LIOdTI LIANYV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TYNIAINI ALLIOTAA



Page 110

7 9%eq 01/600¢ Hoday] 7 101en() — yipny [euIdu] A33uLeH Jo y3noiog uopuo|

‘poruowddwur udaq oAy ‘passed sey uonejudwodwir JoJ surpeap
oY) 2IoUM ‘Ojep 0} dn pamo[[0] SUOIIBPUIWII0dI [ AJLIOL [[V “uoneiuaws[duwi 105 anp 194 10U dIe , pue d[qedijdde w3uo] ou e
‘pojuowodur Appred uoaq sey ouo ‘pojudswd[duwir usaq dARY (%¢€6) H1 18Ul PUNOJ PUR SUOBPUIWILIONAT ¢¢ ] U0 dn pamo[[o] 9ABY M\

60/800T

“3UIpURISINO SUIBUWIDI UOBPUSWIWIOAI ¢ AJLIOLIJ QU

90/¢00T

‘SuIpuR)SINO SUIBWISI UOTJRPUSIUUOIAI | AJLIOLI ] QUQ)

90/5007

:SMO[[0] SB a1e JIom dn-mo[[0J Ino JO S} NS Y],
SUOJBPUIWIWO0INY SAed { T0L1] Jo d) mofjo]

Sunsa [, 1038139y sy — (D ddd) uonesmunwwio)) 29 sdrysioupe O0UBWIONDJ Ao1[0]
3unsa [, 1018139y JSTY — SAIIAIS [BUONBIIIIY

U100y pue JUSUIDFBURIA AISB A

uoneorddy Junjueq S

JUSWITRURA] JORIUO))

Sunsa 1, 103181301 JSTY — JUWAINV01 derodio)

owoou] A12doI] [RIOIOWWO))

19SSV poOXI]

:sypne Surmo[[o} Y} JoJ 310dal JJeIp B ponssi os[e oM ‘Ue[J PNy [BUINU] (1/600T oY) JO Med sy

V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANY ATIALIAVAO - LIANV TYNIALNI ALLIOTAd



Page 111

¢ a3eq 01/600Z Hodoy 7 1011en) — Jpny [ewduf A93uLef] Jo y3nolog uopuo|

I € [ V/N fenuesqng | 60°80°0¢ 600¢ 2unf 60/800T SPOIAIOS PIPEL], JO JUSWIOSRURTA] [RIOURUL]

0 [4 @ V/N fenueisqug | 60°80°v1 6007 ABN 60/800¢ suoneidepy pue spry
60/800¢

0 T 0 V/N renueisqns | 60°80°¥1 6007 aung (premuo,] Ao3urieH) swuwreI3old dOUI[[20XH SUIADIYIY

0 € 0 V/IN [enueisqng | 60801 | 600C YdTBN 60/800¢ syuowked-5

0 [ [4 VIN [enueisqng | 60°80°v1 | 600T Y21EN 60/800C SPIUA)) AINSIT JO [EMOUNY OL3IeNS

€ 8 0 <= [enueisqng | 60°L0°0¢ 60 Uef 60/800T Xe L, POppV °N[BA

0 [ (@ V/N panwiry | 60°L0°0¢ 80, 1dog 60/800T SUONOY pue SANUTA] 99RO JUIWIINI0L]

0 S 1 V/N fenueisqns | 60°L0°€0 | 600T YoIEW 60/800C SUTISO [, JISITOY S — SIOIAISS I[NPY

[4 9 [ V/N pauwi'y | 60°L0°€0 800C AON 60/800T S9S89001 JuotaoIofur % suonesrddy suruueld

0 8 0 V/N fenueisqns | 60°L0°[0 | 600C Y2 1B 60/800T SIOIAIOG JO UIUOISSIUWO))

I g 0 V/N fenueisqng | 60°'L0°10 | 600T Yo>TeN 60/800¢ spIojpue] odoad Surnioddng

0 I 9 V/N ponwiry + 60°L0°10 600 [udy 60/800T 93eI01S [eUIdIXY

1 S @ P — fenueisqng | 60°L0°'10 | 600T Yd1EN 60/800¢ [01U0]) ¥201§ SaLeIql]

60/800C
L I
yodoy
sjuawmo)) LuiorLy) [EICAR [PA9] [eury ypne PLL Npny
SUOEPUIWITIHONAY | JO UODIAII( | dduUevINSSY | Jo Nv(q Jo
Jo Rquny e

aoneuiIojul

SIOQUISTA 10] papraoid os[e are s3urjel 9OUBINSSE [EOULRISQNS, IO [[N], SAISIAI JOU Op YOIYMm S)IPOE [[B JO SSLBWWNS PI[reRd

“sopIuwo)) upny ay) 03 payrodar A[snoraaid jou asoy 218 ploq ut pAYSIYSIY SHPNE S, "PIWWO)) 1PNy 3y 0}
pajtodor pue pansst st 11odol [eul 3y} S oY) £q SIOOYJO [10UN0)) AQ pApudWI[dul Usaq dALY Apeal]e ABW SUONEPUIWWOL S} 1By}
poJOU 9q JSIUI J[ JIPNE Y} JO W SY) J& SWAISAS 3y} JO SNIE)s oY) pue 194renb siyy ul pasi[euly s)pne oY) 1o s10s d[qe) JULMO[[0} YL

V XIANAddV

:01/600T PUu® 60/8007 — ATewuing $s3.130.14 }pny

01/6007 LIOJdTY LIANY ATIALIAVNO - LIANY TYNYALINI ALLIOTHd




Page 112

¢ 98ed

01/600C 1odoy 7 Ioueny) — jipny [euroiu] A93uLiel Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

[ [4 VIN panwry | 60°60°1¢C 60.unf 01/600T piepuelg SOWOL] 1U3d3(]
0 S V/N paywry | 60'80°81 600C AN 01/600T S[°1s0H
01/600¢
0 [4 V/N fenueisqng | 60°60'1¢ 80390 60/800T SBUMQ] Paseg] A010Y)) 79 I0ISISNY SUISNOR
60/800¢
I ¥ V/N renueisqns | 60°60°€ 20.3°0 orjoprod Ayedoid piofpue| 9er0dio)) Jo JUSWISeURIA]
0 1 V/N fenueisqngs | 60°60°CC 60BN 60/800C SUOHR[NISY [BIOURUL [[OUNO)) Y douer[dwo))
60/800T 2ARNDIXH
0 [4 V/N poyuwiry | 60°60°81 80320 JAIYD) %9 SEOIAIOS IOQUIDIA — SOSD [HTM souerdwio)
! 6 <= panwry | 60601 60.9°4 60/800T WISWIDIOJUF 29 [0NUOD) FUDIE]
0 I VIN [enuessqns | 608071 | 600T UIEN 60/800T SPTIUR)) SINSIY] JO [BAMAUY JISoenS
€ (4 |
T . ‘ ) yiodayy
spuRWwoy) ((NTECIRE ) [PARILL [9A3] LUK ypne PLL Mpny
; SUONEPUIWWOIY | JO WOTIAIL( | ueinssy | Jo e jo
3O Jaquiny ; neq
V XIANAddY 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TYNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 113

G adeq 01/600¢ 1oday 7 101en) — JIpny [euraiu] A93uLIR JO Y3noiog uopuo]

pue [1ouno0)) Y} USAIMID( SIOBIUOD [BULIOJ JO 0UISqE I, e
$9}IS JJO/UO PAI0]s 9q pInoys

sod£) p100ol YOWYM IOAO S[000J0id [RWIO} JO QOUSSQY e
‘soniqioe) 98I0)S [BUIOIXD JO IS A} SUI[[OIUOD

10} [rouno)) 9y} ssoxe yorvoidde posienusd v JO Jor[ JYL e

:opnJoul punoj
OIOM SOSSOUNBOM QIOUM SBATe I, SU B $9ANIS[qO W)sAs
oy} Ind YoM ‘SOSSOUNEOM [RIDAIS IR DI} WA)ISAS A} UM

uowAed pue Suissoooid 10) sjuowAed [enUD
0] JUOS OB SIOIOAUL ‘POMIIAIOUL S)IUN SSOUISNG Y} 10 e
pue ‘pojoduioos SI SpIOOAI S J10UN0)) Y}
sureSe 1opraoid ofe10)s [BUINXD oY) AQq PITIEYd> pue POy
suorssassod  suosiod SSO[OWOY JO UONRI[IOUOAI AHUOUW /e
: {[uno)
oy) ssosoe oFeI0)s SPI0OAI JRUIPI0d d[AY 0} SJRI0IAII(
oy Jjo yoeo 10§ pojurodde ueaq sey oapejuosardor v e
‘dno1ny JUSWIUISA0L) [BI07]
o Aq paonpoid sonuoyny [8207 JOf SAULQPIND UOHIUIIY
oy} 0} OOUSIOJAI OPN[OUL ISAYJ, "MIIADI IOJ Jouenul )
uo o[qe[ieAe pue ode[d Ul 918 SPI0OIY JMUONIS[H J0F AJ1[0d]
JuoWOFeURA SPI00dY PUB AOI[OJ JUOWOSEURIA SPIOIOY V e

:M0[9q PIISI] 918 YOIYM JO WS ‘A[LI0JORISHes
Sunerodo 9q 0} PIAIdSqO QIOM  S[ONUOD OY} JO QWOS

"SH J& SOAT}I3[qO W9)sAS

"[eLISIRIA] 910105 JO UONONISI(] puk [esodsi(] e
pue JuowiAe pue JUuIOIOAU] e

‘Surpuadg pue oFes)

‘S1uowRSURIIY [BNJORIUO)D)

‘SIOPIAOIJ 95€I0}S [BUIAIXH JO JUSUIDINO0L] e

.Seale

60/800T

paywury o) 1nd 01 s Yons B S[ONUOD JO WISAS Y} UL SISSIUNEOA, | SUIMO[[O] Y} JOA0D 0} USNEHOPUN SEM HIOM JIPOY 98v10)S [RUIIXY
INTNTANDO0Ud — SEDANOSHA ALVIOJHOD
OUBINSSY saurpuyy Ay/smels adoog BIR JIpNY
SSARVINIANS dATIVLAd

V XIANAddY

01/6007 LIOdTA LIANY A TIALAVNO - LIANV TYNILINI ALLIOTAd




Page 114

9 o8ed 01/600C Moday 7 1o1en) — JIpny [BuIdu] A9FuLieH jo ygnoiog uopuo]

pue ‘soniIoey 93eI0)S IS JJO puB UO [[B
10J sunSI] AI0JUGAUT PA[ILIOP UIRIUTRW P[NOYS [IOUNOY) Y, e
‘UONBULIOJUL [BIOUBULJ JO AORINOOR
() 9SBAIOUT 0} JOPIO UT SALUID JS00 FUNSIXD JO MITAIL B [JIM
guoe N0 PaLLIEd dq PINOYS SIDUBULY JO FULIOHUOW [BULIO] e
‘soAT)RIURSAIdIY 9jrI010aII(]
WowoFeURIA] SPIOOdY dY) APN[OUl 0} PIPUXd oq Pp[noys
s3unoow pieog oYy Je ddurpudNE pue diysrquiow ‘uonippe
uf “sopnuIw SunOAW UL PIJUSWNIOP SUOISSNOSIP JO IUIPIAD
pue A[e[nSol p[oY 9q PINoys sSUNIIW pIrog JUSWISLURIN e
‘0Fe10)S [RUIIXD
Jo sio17ddns [[e yiIm OJul PaISIud 9q P[NOYS SIORNUOD [BULIO] e
‘uonouny oy SurSeuew 0 yoeoidde
pastenuoo € jdope pue sjuswdINboI 93e10)s SPIOIII dININY
pue SunsIXd JO MITASI [RULIOJ B JONPUOd P[NOYS [IDUNOD) Y, e

:SMO[[O] S dIe suoyepuauoodl | Ayoud oy,

“eoIe 9y Ul S|onuod aaoxdwrt dpay [jim
OIYM ‘UOTBPUSUIIIONdL 7 AJiIoLid duo pue SUONEPUSUIOdAI
[ Ajuoud XIS posiel dABY 9M SIOM JIpne INO JO }[NS3I © SY

"S[LIOJBL 9J2[0SqO JO UONBIYIIUIPL JO JOr[ B PUB UOHONISIP
SO[YJ 2IN00S JO SULIOIUOW PUB 10J SUOISIAOLM JO doUasqe oY, e
pue 9IS UO pue JJo Yjoq
$P10031 JO 93€I10]S 10J SPI0OI AIOJUDAUT PI[ILIdP JO IB[ Y], e
‘sguneowr
pIeog JUOWOFRURIN JO 00UOPIAS 10 AD[[0J JUSUDTRUBRIN
$p100aYy 9y Jsurege doueljdwoo FULIOIUOW SOARIUSSIIday
0JRIOIDIK(] JO OOUOPIAD UIRIO O} J[qeun JI0M OM e
¢03e10)S [BUIOIXD JOJ PAdU oL} SUIYSI[RISI
uoym  soo1Ards  Apodord UM UONBUIPIOOD  PIIWULT e
‘sjuoworinba uorodjoid elep
10] UONBIOPISUOD JO MoB[ B puk sIopiaoid oFe1o)s [BUIOIXD

ueInssy

sdurpury Ady/snyels

adoog

©aIR JIPNY

V XIANHAddV

01/6007 LIOdTI LIANY ATIALIAVAO - LIANV TVYNIALNI HLLIOTAd




Page 115

[ 98¢

01/600T woday 7 1uend) — 1pny [eurdu] A93uueH jo ydnorog uopuoy

JAR[ OM BAJR SIY) Ul YIOM }Ipne [eUIOUI INO JO J[NSAI B SY

1918139y 10enu0)) erodio)) s, [1OUN0)) Y} Ul PIPI0ddI
d19Mm ‘DapTIIo)) ) Aq pasoidde uoaq pey yorym ‘sjoenuod
PAYNUSPI Y} JO SWOS JBY) MOYS 0) IOUIPIAD OU SBM JIYL
puUE S3INUTW 99JJIUIIO)) A} UT PAYIIUIPT
suoroe Jo dn-mo[[0} [BULIO) 9} JOJ WSIURYIOW OU SI JIOY], e

(8190130 91qIsuodsat Aue 0) poudIsse Jou dIOM SINUIUT
0PIWWO)) dY) UIYIM PIYHUOPI SUOIOR JY) JO OWOS e

:apnjour
pUNOJ QIOM SOSSOUNEOM OIOUM SBATR JYJ S I8 S9AN0A[qo
wo)sAs o) Ind Yorym SOSSOUdeoM dIe 2IOY) WIAISAS ) UNIA

"SIOQUIDIAl PUR JJBIS JUBAD[OI [[E O}

d[qe[reAr opew pue paysiqnd dre sdINUIW SOPIWWO)) Y, e
pue Q[npayos 3unodw sj1 0) FuUIpIoddL

‘qeok jsed oy I0A0 ApR[NIOr oW SeY 09)IWWO) Y e
‘pa3sal ojduwres oy} 10} sonurw Fureaw

‘suorjoe 3urpue)sino jo dn-moqjo]
pue suonoe pajordwod Jo Sunroday

‘suonoe paddwos jo Jjo-ugig

o) Ul PAAULIWNIOP AIOM IIPIWWO)) Y} JO SUOISIOP Y], e ° 60/8007
: MO[oq PISH] ATe YOIYM “K[ONRISTES FSUONIB JO BULIONUOW @ suoyoy
dunerodo oq 01 PIAIGSGO QLM S[ONUOO JO IoqUINU Y ‘suonoe pa1nbai jo uoneoynUApPy e pue mo.ﬁ:_:a
"SI 1B SOATI00[qO WoISAS :SeaJe UIMO[0] 9Y) UT JUOUIUOIIAUD IO
paywury oy nd 01 Se yons oIk S[ONUOD JO WIDISAS OU) Ul SISSIUNBIAN | [0O1IUOD O} IDA0D O} UONE)MOpUN Sem IOM JIpny JUIWAINI0AJ
"SOION[0J JUDWIFRUBA
SPIOOY JWONdA[ pue Juowoadeuely  SPI0OdY  dY)
3SIAQI PUB MOIIAJL PINOYS JOSBURJA SPI0OdY PUB ISIAIYIIY
9y} pue SoANLIUSAIdIY 9)BI0IAI(] JUSWOTBURIA SPIOOIY e
:SMO[[0] SE ST UoTepuawIoddl ¢ Ayond oy,
JuowogeurU
AQ peJOjIUOW 9q P[NOYS SPI0ddI pue SI[If JO UOLONISI(] e
dueBINSSY sdurpuyy Aay/snyels adoag BIR JIpnYy

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIOdHTA LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIANY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 116

g a8ed

01/6007 Hodoy ¢ 191end) — Ipny [euIaiu] ASSuLRH JO YSnoIog uopuo]

pajiuty

S} UL QI)USD JSOO (OB I0J S[OAD] pue S}UWI[ uonesuoyny e
‘10p10Y 198pnq oy} Aq PIsLIOYINE 3¢ 0} PUNOJ AIOM Pasn
jou a1e sxorddns poaordde-o1d aroym (s1oquiopy 10y Juturern)

pasieroads se yons) poysd) aImjipuadxd Jo swoll [erads e
(VS U0 WdISAS JUdUSRURA]

yoenuo) Ay} jo yed se sisTxo s1opudA pasoidde Jo iSIf Y e

:MO[q PIIST]
oIe UOIYM JO dwos ‘A[uojorjsnes Sunerddo oq 0} poAIssqo
0IOM S[ONUOD JO JOQUINU B ‘SIOIAIS IOQUIDIA 0} UONE[dI U]

“Su Je saAnd2[qo
woisAs o) nd 01 se yons ole WOISAS OU) Ul SOSSIUNBI M

"spae)) aseyoind Jo 9s()
pue ‘s3upjooq [PARL]
(saseyding ysed
{S19pIQ) JO Fuistey

‘s1o11ddng jo uoneoynuUap]

, :80A100[qo [o1U0d pue sedIe
SUIMO[[O] JY) JOA0D 0} UONBLIOPUN SEM YIOM }IpnyY

60/8007

SANNIIXY JOIYD)
pue SIIIAIS
BQUBA - S,08D
gm duerduo)

"SFUNOOUW 9P IO
JUOUIDINO0I  JOUIqe) OY) e PIYHUIPI  UOMOB  [oed
Jo uonodwoo ay} 10 AIqIsuodsal [BULIO} UM PouTIsse
9Iv SIOOIJO PIJRUILIOU JBy) 2INSUS P[NOYS dIPIUIUO) Y,

:SMO[[0] SE ST uonjepuouIuodal 7 Ajord ay |,

*SSUTPAU SOPIWIIO)) JUIWAIND0I]

o) 8 poside pue poynuUPI SUONDER [[B jo uonojduod
o) Suuiojiuow 10§ pajusweldw 9q p[noys ssa001d [eWIo) vV e

pue $SI10J00JI(] [ENPIAIPUL (1M 1SAI P[NOYS

uonejdwoo 1oy} o SurSis 1oy Ayfiqisuodsar pue suonoe

poxmbor oY) jo diysioumo ojewn]) WIISAS JUOWTLURIN

PRHUO)) S,[IOUN0D) Oy} Ul PIPIOoddI I8 “OIPIWWO)

ouRINO0IJ 9yl Aq posordde usoq oary YOIYM ‘S)ORIUOD
[ 12y omsuo dppy 0) pejusumddwr 9q pnoys ssdxdoid v e

:SMO[[O] SE a8 SUONepuawodal | Ayuoud oy [,

“JUSWIUOIIAUD
jonuoo oyy eaoiduwr 0y d[oy p[noys YOIM ‘UOHBPUSUILIIOINI
¢ Kuoud ouo pue suonepuowiioodr [ Ajuoud om) posiel

uUBINSSY

sSurpuyy A3y/snyelg

adoog

BIIR JIPNY

V XIANHAddV

01/6007 LIOdAY LIANY A TIALIAVNO - LIANV TYNYILLNI HLLIOTAd




Page 117

6 93ed

01/6007 Hoday g Iouen() — jpny [euIdju] A9ZULIef] JO Y3noiog uopuor|

posIel J0U oIk SIopIo oseyoind (BaIe SIY) UL JOUBPING S [IOUN0))
OU} ()M JOUBPIOOOE UI SIOIAIOS pue Spoog jo juowarndord
oy 03 10adsar PIm A[Iqisuodsor Jo uonedo[[e ou SI 1YL
'$80001d posIeUIIO] AUB JO 20UISGR dY) 0} dnp udYeHpun
sem  sOSD  Pim  oouerjdwod  juouniedsop S .0ANNDIXY
JoIy) 2y) 0) uoneppl ul Sunsd) ou jeyl pajou dq pnoys i

“WOISAS Y} UO POPPE PUB PAJIOA 9 0] SIOPUIA
gons jsonbor A[[eunio} pPinoys SIOIAIS IOqUIDJA dI0JoIoN)
pue ‘wo)sAs oy} uo dn 1os JOU JIB SIOPUSA 9SIY} ASNLIAq
wed ur ST SIY], "WQISAS [BIOURUL S [IOUNO)) S} BIA pasiel
1ou a1e (aay sostwaid pue suonduosgns se yons) siopraod
90IAIOS PUB SIOPUOA Pasn A[juonbalj 1oj sIOpiQ dseyoind e

pue ¢paplodal A[[euLio} jou
aIe SIOPUOA d1j10ads Jo osn oY) SpIeMO) SUOISIOp “(Jururer)
SIOQUIDA] PISI[e1oads Sk ons) SaourISWNIID [e10ads ur AJuo
pasn dIe SIOPUSA yons jey) paydodde ST J1 O[IYAY 'SIOPUSA
paroidde jo 3sI s [OUNOD) Y} UO JOU dIe JRY} SIOPUIA
asn 0} suoIsiodp jo 3doy SI pIoodl JAISudyRIdwod ON e

:opn[oul punoj
OI0M SOSSOUNBOM JIOUM SBOTe OYJ, IS JB SOANOS[qo wolsAs
o Jo owos jnd YoIyMm SISSOUNRIM dIB DI3Y) WIISAS oY) UIIA

‘pasuoyine Apreudordde
pue pop1ooar A[ojeInode USdq 9ARY O} punoj ospe
2IoM SpIB)) 9SBYOINJ 0} UOTJB[OI Ul POISd) SWdY dInyipuadxy e

pue ‘pasuoyne Kpreudordde ussaq aaey 03 punoy
oIom sUDY00Q [9ARI) 0} UOTJE[OI UI POISI) SWION dINYIpuadxs] e
PO
yse)) oY) WOoIj SIOqUIDJA 10J SJUSWISINGUIIDT JAIDAT 0} JOPIO
ur pasuoyIne 9q 0} punoy orom pajduwes sutio] yse) L10J e
‘SMOppHIom JVS Jo 1ed se syrurg
uonesLIoYINE dY) pamo[[o} 9soy) pajduwes asoy) 10} ‘dV'S
uo pasiel aIe SI0pIo dseyomd 10YM pue ‘PIULIP dI8 IOIAIOS

Rueanssy sdurpuyy Ady/snjels adoog IR JIpNY
V XIANHddY 01/6007 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALAVNO - LIANY TVNAAINI ALLIOTAdA




Page 118

01 23ed

01/6007 Hodoy 7 10)end) — JIpny [euraiu] A93uLe Jo YySnorog uopuo|

pajrury

pue S9[01 IIdU} JO OIBME QIOM  PIMIIAINUL  JIBIS e
: MO[oq PAISI aIe YOIyM ‘A[LIOJOBISTIES
Suneiddo 9q 0] PIAISGO QIOM  S[ONUOD JO IPqUNU Y

“JSU e SOAN02[qo wa)sAs
oy} nd 0} se (ons oIe S[ONUOD JO WIISAS Y} UL SISSIUNBIA

pue (s[[1q AS1ous Surpnjour) s[[ig Jo JUOWAe e
‘NLIA  Surpn[our) SJUOWOTURIIY JUSWAINO0L] e
“JuowoFrUBIN 19SSY e

:seale
SUIMO[[O} 9Y) JOA0D 0} UOYBHOPUN SBM JIOM }JIpny

01/600T

S[91SOH

"poInba SOOIAIOS puE SPOOT 10 PasIeI aq 0} SIPIo dseyoInd
J[qrUD 0} WR)SAS JuowdFeURI JOBLUOD Y} O} Pappe 93q
PINOYS SISBQq SULLINOAI B UO Pasn oIe Jey) SI0pudA /siorfddng e
pue ‘pap10oai Ajejeridoxdde
9q PINOYS pasn Jou d1e SIOPUAA paAoidde-a1d a1oyMm SIIIAIIS
10 spoog jo juoweinodoid Yy 0 SPIEISI (HIM SUOISIIP [V e

:SMO[[O] SE dIe SUOTEpUauIodal 7 Ajuord ay L,

(8)10011J0 91510ads 0} PAJEOO[[E PUB PaL10dds oq Os[e P[noys
SIUQWASINQUI-OI  [SBO  Punoe  UONRIUDWNOOp  JuIule)dl
pue pasn uddq jou oaey siorddns paroidde o1oym SUOISIOIP
Surp10001 ‘JVS U0 s1opio aseyornd jo Fursier oy jo Radsor
ur Apiqisuodsoy uedelOpUn 9q P[NOYs SIAPIO SUIPUL)S
PeRUO)) S [OUN0) oYl [YIm  ooueldwod S .QANNIIXH
JOIYD) OY} JO JUSWISSOSSB-OI [BULIO} puB dAIsudyerdwoo v e

:SMO[[0] SE ST uonepuawIwiodar | Ajuord ayy,

“BOIR
oyr ur sjonuod oaoiduwn doy [[IM YoM ‘SIOIAIOS IOGUIBIN
0} uoTE[Rl UI suonepudUodal g Ajuotid om) pue jusunredo(
S,OANNOAXY JOIYD Y} 0} UOHR[I Ul  UOEPUSILIOIAI
[ Auoud ouo pasiel oABY 9M YIOM JIPNE INO JO }[NSAI B SV

‘Juowageurw Aq PIssaIppe 9q Pinoys sIy) pue
voIR SIY) Ul dourInsse Surpraoid jou oIe dm Yons Sy "SIOPUIA
poaoxdde Jo 3sI] S [OUNO) Ay} WO SIOPUdGA JO IS0 91 0}
UOTIB]AI UL 9OUIPIAD OU ST AI0Y) PUE WDISAS [BOURUY oY) Sulsn

; DdDUeIANSSY

sSurpury Ady/snjels

adodg

BaIR JIpPNY

V XIANHdddV

01/6007 LIOdHTI LIANY ATIALIAVNO - LIANYV TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 119

11 938ed

01/600T Hodoy g 1o1end) — 1ipny [eurdiu] A93uLEH JO ySnolog Uopuo|

pue padopadp oq pnoys Aorfod [esodsiq 1SSy UV

‘uone[si39]
Aq poimboir se pojuownoop pue Ape[ndor pajordwiod
0Q Pp[nOYS S)UOWISSOSSE MYSLI pue suopdadsur Ajojes SiL]

:SMO[[O] SE 2I¢ SUONEPUOWioodl | Ayotid oy L,

“oIR O]} UI S[ONU0D
oroxdunr dpoy [[im yorgm ‘suopepuswioodr g Aoud oAy
pue [ Ajoud XIS pastel 9ABY M YIOM JIPne Ino Jo j[nsal e Sy

‘Jo pasodsip usaq
pey sonsodoxd oanoodsar oy a10ym S[[Iq AN[ON 10] SIOIOAUL
1sureSe opewr oM sjuowiAed SI9YM SIOUBISUL SIOM IOY],

pue ‘sonzodoid Jo [esodsip ay3 Jo paynou

sKeMm[e 10U D18 SIOTAIOS [1Uno)) pue spIddns JUBAS[SI OY L,
‘1orpddns urewr s)1 pue 90IAIOS

o) ueamIaq dor[d UL JOBRNUOO [BULIO} OU A[JUSLIND SI 1],

{pajuaUINOOp pue
paodwoo ApenSor jou os[e a1e suonoaddsur oIy paimboy

‘pojuswnoop pue pejo[dwoo A[re[n3al
10U OB SIIUN [9)SOY A} JO SUONOdSUL puE SJUSUISSISSE qSIY

:apn[out punoy
OIOM SOSSOUNEOM OIOUAM SBAIE OUJ, S 1B S9AN02[Q0 wWo)sAs
o) 1nd YOTYM SISSOUIEOM [BIDAIS QB IOU) WASAS ) UNPIM

"30UQIJRI 10] ‘SUONR[NZAY [eIoURUL]

s [ouno) oyl jo AJ[Iqe[leAe dU} JO dIeME OB WEd} YL
pue ‘[esodsip 105 sonsadoid [eorwouodoun

Jo uopeoynuopt oY) oy doe[d ur ssaooid e st @Sg 1
‘promssed pue oUWBLIISN B JO ISN o1}

AQ PaIOLISAI ST SPIOOSI QUI[UO 0} SSI00E PUB WLd) V1, 31} JO
SIOQUISW 0} POJOLISAL ST s[re1op [euosiod SIUBUD) 0 $SI0Y

‘soniqIqisuodsax "SIUBUD [, JO JUSWIOAOIN @
UBINSSY sSurpuyy Aady/snpels adoag ; muun npny
V XIANAdd Y 01/6007 LHOdTI LIANY A TIALAVAO - LIANYV TYNIALNI ALLIOTId




Page 120

Z1938eq 01/600T Hodoy 7 101en) — 1pny [ewroiu] AoSuLiey] jo ySnoiog uopuo]

pajury oy ind 0} Se yons oIe S[ONUOO JO WOISAS O} UI SISSIUNLI M

.Seale

SUIMO[[0] 9Y) JOA0D 0} USNBMOPUN SEM YIOM JIpNY

29 suonednddy
Jutuueyg

LINHWNOYIANA

NVEaun

"PIRPUR]S SOWOH JUIDI(] A} JO9W S[9ISOY
9y} 1Y) AINSUD 0] JOPIO Ul pajudwd[dwl pue oS 9q PINOYS
Sauo}sa[IW pue spiepuels pajoadxo 3urprejop uepd uonoe uy e

pue ‘o8pajmouy| ur sdeg/Sposu payyuapr Aue
10} papraod ururen pue sainpaosoid o) Aq parnbas se siseq
A¥oom © uo pajo[duroo are suonoadsur [93SOY Jey) 2INSud
0} JuowdIINDAI YY) JO popuUIlDI 3G PINOYS SIOTRURIA [9ISOH] e
‘pred 108 03 901AI0S U} 0} SuUNJRDI SIDIOAUT IO
udye) QW) ) JOJUOW 0} JOPIO Ul WL ], Sjudwied [enua)
oy} woly spodor jueAd(ar 3sonbol pINOYS 90IAIS OYJ, e
‘ssaoo0ud
Suuojiuow oouewnioped oy jo jed se ‘ppy sSunoowr
Suuojuowr (A1m31enb jseor je) senSar yym siorpddns ussoyo
oY) Im padide 9q pinoys syudwoguele SuLIO}IUOW [EWIO,] e
[ouno)) oY) Aq pouMO ‘OnfeA pouruLolep-oxd
B OAOQR YO0]S [[B JO SPIOOJI UIRJUIRW P[NOYS IOIAIS OYL e

:SMO[[0] SB oI Suonepuawwosas g Ayond oy,

“Iouuew oW e ul s[esodsip 9y} Jo paynou 9q p[noys
‘[Puno) oY) urgim syuduntedop JUBAJ[OI I9IO [[B SB [[oM
Se ‘901AI0S 9y} Aq pasn srddns oy} ‘sjosse jo [esodsip uQ) e
pue {parojuowr A[re[n3oas

9q pInoys 921AI3S 3} Aq pred pue paA1dodr S[[Iq AN oYL e
‘s1o11ddns uasoo

oy} yum poudis pue podIde oq PINOYS JOBRIUOD [BULIO] Y e
‘901A10s o3 Aq pasn storddns

oy 10) poordwoo 2q pnoys ssooord 10pud) [BULIO] Y e
{901A10S 913 SsoIor pojuswo[durr

ULINSSY : | saurpuy} Aayy/snyels

adoag

BIE JIpNY

V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdTA LIANYV ATIALAVNO - LIAAV TVNIAINI ALLIOTHA




Page 121

¢1 o3ed

01/6007 1oday 7 1ouen() — JIpny [euIdu] AS3uLiel] Jo YSnoiog uopuo|

Suuue[q oy Aq pajo[dwiod S)SIA s WOy SIUIpUl Y, e
‘4007 [1dy 2ours pojepdn
10 POMIIAAI UDSq JOU SBY [enuEy [01U0D JuowdopAd(J YL e

:opnjoul punoy
SI0M SISSOUD[BAM DI9UM SBAIR OU "SI JB S9AN03[qO w)ss
o JO owos Ind YOTYM SOSSOUNBIM I8 IO} WAISAS oY) UL

"paure)qo
010M (KIBSSI00U QIOYM) ISED JO SHUSLIDIRIS U dlreuUonsanb
o) sosed [[e U] ‘ue[d-] uo padSo] pue dweyowy pormbar
o) unpim papodar aq o) punoj orm pajduwes speaddy e

pue

‘paroua S[PAQ] AJoud pue SIOOIJO PIAJEdO[[e A1) JO S[IRIP
UM ‘wid)sAs ued-] oY) uo pagSoy orom pojdues sjure[dwo) e

{SOIUOW JO UOIO[[0D

A[tep o) UL PIA[OAUI JOU ST OYM I904Jo juopuadopul ue

Aq pae[duwod ST PIAIIOAL SWOOUL JO UOHBI[IOUOIIL JY} pue
siseq A[joam € U0 A[Ie[n3al payueq pue pajod[[0d S oWoou] e

‘oriqnd oY) 03 9[qe[IBAR JIB $9)BI JUSLIND

2y} jey) punoj 2yisqom AoSulR[] dY} JO UOHEUIWEXD Ue

pue 800 suone[n3ay Juruue[] AUNOD PUB UMO], JUSLIND
oy} M oul| Ul poSIeyo 9q 0) punoy d1om pojdures so9f [[V e

‘pasnuoud usaq dAeY 0) punoy

orom pojduwes suoneorjdde e pue jussord drom podoy

paredoa(] pue JooYS UONRINSUO)) ‘IO3YS UOHEPI[EA ‘1ONd]

owedpapmouyoe  (ddv1) swiog uopediddy prepuels
[puoneN poimbor oy ‘pojduwes sosed wopuel (7 WOl e
‘suryoriq ySnoIy) soSueyo A10JR[NFI1 JO PAWLIOJUL Ik JJBIS

“uoneuLIoyuI Juswedeurw pue Juniodoy e
pue sass2001d [eaoidde pue sompaooid sjeaddy e
‘oouerjduros-uou
Jo seare Joj saInpooosd Jnejop pue UONE[EISH e
‘$59001d MI1ADI pue SULIOJIUOIN
‘suoroNIYSUI pue $A21)0U
JUDWIOOIONUS (PIM oouRl[dWOD JO UONEBOYLIOA e
‘s3UIPa900I1d JUSWIIIOJUS INSST O $ISSIV0I]  »
¢$50001d UONBI[IOUOIII 29 QWOOUL JO UOTIOI[[0D
‘sodieqo  Jumjes  J0J  S[ONUOD P WOISAS e

‘Furpuodsar
:MO[2q PAISI] oIk YOIYM JO OWOS ‘A[LI0J0eIsIes | 29 Juissodold  ‘BUIAIOOSI  JOJ  SISSI00I] e
Sunerado oq 0] PIAIOSqO dI9M  S[OJUOd JO Ioquini Y ¢(s901A10S 60/8007
10q 10§) seinpaooxd pue Adrjod ‘UONEIUSWNIO( e
"SI 1B SAAN02[qO woIsAs ‘uone[s1So[ ym douerduwio) e JUIWIDIOJU
QueInNssy sSurpuyy Ady/smels adoog BIE JIpny
V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANY A TIALIVAO - LIAAV TYNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 122

$1 23ed

01/6007 Hoday 7 1911en) — JIpNY [RUIAU] ASFULIRH JO Y3N0IOg UOPUO]

01 pue ‘oerdordde aroym ‘AJ[ny suwoj JSIA I 0jo[dwoo

0] PooU Y} JO POPUILIDI ] P[NOYS SINDYJO JUBAI[I [[V e
‘s21npao01d pue uone[SI3] Ul SOZURYD JO[JoI

0} ‘AIessooou oloym ‘pojepdn pue pomoIadl A[[edrpouod

oq pnoys [enuel [onuo) JUSWOPAd( S0IARS I e

:SMO[[O] SE oI SUOTBPUIWI00I 7 Ajurotid oy,

“S9SEBD PAsO[O PuB JUALIND 1[30q 0) June[al
SHUOUWINOOP JUBAJ[SI [[B J[1j UO UIRIUIRW P[NOYS NIAIS O], e

:SMO[[O] S ST uorepuawiosal | Ajuoud oy,

“BoIR OY)} UL S[O1U0 dA0Idun
djoy [[1m YoM suonepuewoddl ¢ Auoud om) pue g Ayuoud
X18 ‘[ Aju1orid ouO PosIeI 9ARY 9M SHIOM JIpne Ino JO }[Nsal e SV

"0[qR[TBAE JOU SBM I9}J9] UOISIOIP

oyi ‘porduwres speodde juowOIOJUS T JO N0 21y} 10}

S[IyM O[IJ UO P[OY JOU SeM I9N9] UOISIOdP [eul) dY} ‘pasopd
o1om jey padures sjeadde Sumuue[d JyS Jo IO XIS 10 e

pue

‘POMOIADI PUB PASSNOSIP IoyuN} 9q 0} seadde jou pip 9sa)

poyuSOpI 2I0M $)oBIe] WOI} SUONBLIEA OIOUYM ‘IOAIMOH
‘sunoowr [INS A[iuou oY) 18 pajiodal die S10jeolpul [BO0] e

3[4 uo p[ay

sKeM[E 10U ST 900U JUOWIOOIOJU UR JO SUIAISS dy} SUIMO[[O]
Jueure[dwod pue JOUMO O} 0] IO}O] UOISIOOp [euly oY, e

‘punoj jou

sem Jueure[dwod oY} 0) I9)9] JUSWIOFPI[MOUNOR U} SISBD

Uo) Ul pue IOISIFOY S8IS O OO PaIvIsIal Fuleq ddnou

9U) JO pOUrBIUTRUI JOU SBM JOUOPIAD ‘POAIOS Sem 010U
JUSWIOOIOJUS Ue oIoym pojdwes sosed [] JO N0 XIS 104 e

{paju_WINO0OpP

sAem[e jou ole IOOUJ() IUOWIDIOJUF oY) Ppue INYJO

QurINSSY

sgurpuyy Ady/snjels

adoog

BaIR JIpNY

V XIANHdddV

01/6007 LHOdAY LIANY A TIALAVAO - LIANV TYNIALLNI HLLIOTAd




Page 123

Gl 98ed

01/600¢ Hodoy 7 1ouend) — Ipny [ewIdiu] ASSULIR]] JO Y3noIog Uopuo|

payury

UONBWLIOJUL }IpnE oy} Juunp pajodps sojduies oyl 10 e
‘SSOIPPE § JOUMO O[DIYIA 9} AJIJUSPI 0} JOPIO Ul
VIAQ Y} M PaIdIsi3al 10U SI[OIYOA U0 UdMeopun udoq
PRy SYO3YO Pu0das ypne d) SuLnp pajod[as sojduies oy} 10, e
‘ooe[d ur sainpaooid pue soprjod [euonesdo pue o159jenS e

1MO0[3q PAIST] 918 YOIYM JO SWOS ‘A[LI0J0RISIIeS
Sunerndo oq 0} PoOAIISqO QIOM  S[ONUOD JO JoqUINU Y

"YSLI J& SOAN0[qO WIdISAS
oy) nd 0) se yons oI S[ONUOD JO WIISAS JU) UL SISSAUNLI A

‘on(J oWodU] JO UOTIROYIIUIP] e

(SAPOTYIA
paelsidarup) Jo dn-mo[[og 29 NDJ Jo onss] e

pue S J
FunyIe SIUSPISIY pue pased SUOISSTW e
S0INPAV0LJ pue SAOI[0J e

:seaJe
SUIMO[[0] 91} JOA0D 0} UONEBLIOPUN SEM JIOM JIpNY

60/800¢

JUIWAIOJUT
[on3u0)) Sunjied

‘so[yy Joded wo poy uopewIoul uo Sursa) pajedwiod AJuo
oM J[nsal € sy ‘popeiddn Furoq woysAs oy} 0} anp d[qe[ieAeun
sem Ue[J-] 0} $Sa00B Ipne 9y} SuLmnp Jey) pajou 9q p[noys I

"SOSBO [[B Ul duweljowr) paimbai
oY) UMM PIRIGNS q PINOYS I9)J[ UOISIP [eulj oy, e
pue ‘quaSe oy} 1o Jueoijdde
oY) woly uonere[oop paudis e Aq paruedwioooe dre Yorgm
suoneorjdde Suruued ssaooid A[uo pnoys oOIAIS I, e

“SMO[[O] SE o1 SUOIEPUW003l ¢ Ajuonid oy,

"38B0 © JO 9Ins0[0 uodn pue JISIA 9)1s B SUIMO[[O]
qureidwoo e jo 3doar wodn smwumo pue sjueure[dwoo
0] JIOJO] UONROYNOU B PUIS P[OOYs [OUNOD Y e
pue $jjeis mau 10} swwesdoxd
uononpul [eutio} & dojoAdp PINoYs 90IAIDS JUSWIIIOJUH Y[,
‘s1d10001 DY Surpuodsarioo pue syuowiAed [[e Jo s[relop
piooar 0) rouuew A[owiy B ul pajepdn oq p[noys ue[d-] e
‘SIOQUIDJA] P PuE J0303II(]
JURISISSY 9y} 0) uorssiuqns 0} I0Lid SIopeaT Wed ], JUeAd[al
o) Aq paroidde oq p[noys s9sed PIAJOSAL JO ISI[ APJOOM O], e
‘Q[1J 9S8O JUBAQ[QI Y] Ul WLIOJ Ord UIe)dl

ueInssy

sSurpuyy Ady/snyels

adoog

gaJae Jipny

V XIANAddY

01/6007 LIOd T LIANYV ATIALIAVAO - LIANYV TYNILLNI ALLIOTAd




Page 124

91 93eq

01/6007 Hoday  1ouen) —3pny [euroiu] AoSuLiel] JO Y3noiog uopuor|

© 00138 p[noys aoueur 9jeiodio) pue 901AIS SUINIE OU, e
:SMO[[O] Se ST uonepuswoddl | Ajuoud ay ],

"BoIe U} Ul
sjonuoo oroxduwr d[oy [[IM Yormym ‘uonepuswiwiodds ¢ Ayrotd
QU0 pue suolepUOWIIOddr 7 Ajuoud oull ‘UONRPUIUILOIDT
[ Aitoud ouo pasiel 9ABY OM IOM JIpne Ino JO }[nsdl e Sy

‘o1 uo ind sKem[e jou st syruiad

paseq-suoissiu  Sumss 10j uonejudwnoop Juntoddng e
pue ‘NDd © JO UOnR[[9oURd o1} SuIsLioyne

01 spieSol [YIm sosso00id pojuownOop oOu dJe JIYL, e
JJO 9)JLIM 10J 1Qap

NDd © SULIOPISUOD 0] Pasn BLIDILIO JOS [RULIOJ OU dIe dIOY], e
‘NDd © Surfeadde

SIOUMO J[OIYOA 0) JUOS SOWIOWOS dIe $ISUOdSAT 1091100U] e
UNOdOE ONUIADI,
oy} 0} JUNodde SuIp[oy, VS OY} WO PIAIIIDI dWOdUl

I9JSUBI) 0} IOUUBW A[OUIT) B Ul PIsIel sAem[e jou st [euimnof v e
‘siseq Je[ndol B UO SPIIEg S, [I0UN0)) 9y} WOl pajsonbar jou

a1e s1g9p NDdJ 9d1qensind Suwuipno suodor Juisued[d eeq e
‘po1e31ISoAUT SABM[E JOU OB QUIOOUL dunjorw AR[dSIp pue

Aed Suireiop ‘s100ys onudAdl Auedwiod AJLIN0SS UO SIOLY e

:opnjour punoj
OIOM SOSSOUNBOM OIOUM SBAIR OUJ, "SI I8 SOAN0S[qO Wo)sAs
o)) Jo owos Jnd YOTYM SISSOU[RIM IR JIOY) WOISAS o) UIIIA

"9)ISQOM S, [IOUN0)) 9Y) uo pajsod pue

ooeld ur st syrurrod poseq-sUOISSIW I0J 9InjonNs JUIIRYO Vo
pue ‘spifreg ay) £q popiaoid syrodoar ssaidoxd oy

Zuisn paure)qo st s1qop NDd Jo ynsind oy 10J uonesuomny e
‘siseq A[rep & uo s1ondwod poypuey o) Woy VOIAID
ojuo papeojdn Apdwoird useq pey pansst SNDJ JO popIodal

"SUOTJEPUSTILIODAI § 180K sno1Ad1d Jo dn-mof[o] e

pue suue g
FupjIed SIUOPISOY puR paseg SUOISSIWUT e

‘sreaddy NDJ e

SHO-OIIMN e

‘owoou] J0J unUNOY e

‘owoou] NDd Surpueising JO AI0A009Y e

‘uonoa[[o) dwoouf Ae[dsi(q 2 Aed e

QURINSSY

sgurpuyy Ayy/smels

adoog

€3I JIpny

V XIANHAddV

01/6007 LIOJTY LIANY ATIALIAVNO - LIANY TYNYAINI ALLIOTHd




Page 125

L1 98¢eq

01/6007 Woday 7 1ouen() - 3ipny [eurdu] Ao3uLiey Jo ysnoiog uopuor|

0} s1901330 Joruds deudordde Suunbar ‘sampaocord [onuoo
Ayenb jsnqor judwdduwr pue dojoAdp pinoys jusudeuRIA
{JuUNodde ONUSAI,
Supped oy 03 junoooe oy ulyM ppoy swoour Juppred
Ioysuen 0} pasiel [ewmol e pue siseq A[OoM B UO PIIBI[D
SI Junodde 3uIpjoy, JV'<S 9Y) Jey} 2Insud 0) judwaambar oy
JO papuIlial 9q PINOYS IIIAIS Y} UIIIM JJBIS JUBAD[AI [V
$10011J0 Judpuddopur ue se ‘s}ooUs uoloesuLRI)
VIOIAID pue sjooys Jupjueq Oy} USIMIOQ UdBLdpUnN
SUOTJRIJIOUOOA] [[B MOTAJI 0} JUOWdIINDII Jy} JO papuruidr
0q PpInOYS JIOOUJ( ONUJADY 2 SUNOIOY IOWLS Y],
{pajudUINOOp 9q pPInoys
MOTAQI pue uondnpoid JO J0UIPIAD PUB PIMIIADI 9Q P[NOYS
9say [, "(901A19S oy} £q poproap se) siseq ds1pouad ajenrdordde
ue uo poonpoid oq pnoys suodor Fuisuedp elR(
"IOOIJO JNUIAY 29 SIUNOIDY
I0WRS oY) AQ POA[OSAI pue pojednsoAul dq P[noys
osay) ‘podor 3upjueq pue 9NUIAJIL S JOJORIUOD ) pue
110001 J1pne oY) USOMIDQ SIOUDIJIP Ik WY 2WYM (q)

pue 9y3nos st uoneue[dxa ue 9[qe[IBAR ST SUOU dIYM
puE UONOD[[0d UoBd 10] pajeroudd st 3diooar jipne uy ()

:JeY) 9INSUS P[NOYS 0TAISS FulyIe Y} ‘SuIyorw

upyred Aepdsiq pue Aed a3 Jo uonerddo dANIYIS Y} 10
ST} 10 SUOSBAI L)

urepdxo A[1eo[0 0} joog 103004 U} Ul 9pell 3¢ P[NOYS dJ0U
e ‘suone[ndal Supjied JO UONUIARIIUOD UL 9[OIYAA B 0) NDJ

e Sumsst uoym sydeigojoyd oxe) 03 o[qissod J0U ST J1 JIOYA\ e

:SMO[[OJ SE 918 SUOHEPUdWIWO093I 7 Ajtouid oy ],

"KOT[O{ JJO-91LIA AU} UT PIUSWINOOp

AJ[ewiIo} 9q p[noys BULID 9SAYL, 199P NDOd JO O
-ojuM oY) SULIDPISUOD USYM Pash 9q 0} BLIDILD JOLIS JO 108

ueInssy

sdurpury Aady/smels

adoog

IR JIpNY

V XIANAdd VY

01/6007 LIYOdHI LIANYV ATIALAVNO - LIANV TYNIALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 126

Q1 28eq

01/6007 Hoday 7 1uen() — pny [eursju] LoSurie] Jo ySnolog uopuo]

"10da1 IO Ul SUOHBPUIUIUO00]
001y} posIeI-ar  dABY JA\ o[qeordde 1Fuol ou ose
oony) pue pajudwd(dun uoaq Jou oAey om) ‘pajudswoidur Ajpred
u2dq oAey om) ‘pojuoudwil US9q 9ABY SUOHEPUIULIOIAI

310 Jey) punoy O HPNY [BUIDIUL §0/L00T Y} JO J[NSAI B SE
pasiel mﬂOC@@QOEEOOOM SO@@EU gl Qﬁlﬁogczo,w OS[e 9ABY O M\

‘[PUNo)) oY) Aq U9NE) UONIL Y} UIAIF UOIJEPUIUIIOIIT [BUWLIO]
© POSIBI-OI JOU 9ABY 9M [[ONS St pue 6007 ABN YIS Sem spiq
103 9jep FuIsO[o 9y} pue IOpud) 0} o nd USOq Sey SAUIYOBW
Kerdsiq pue Aed 10J SIOIAIOS UONIJ[[OO UYsed Jo uolsiaoxd
oY) 10J JOBRNUOD OY) JEY} POULIOJUI IOM 9AN “}Ipne JY) JO duln
9} 1B POAIIAI UDd(Q jou pey doueul] djeiodio) Aq 9say) Jo
reaoxdde oy} 1nq 8007 A1enIqo ] Ul JJo-0jIM J0J SIGOP PIFIUIPI
pey 901A10S Sunjied JO peOH Oy} JBY) POULIOJUI J10M IM

"901JJO SIOIYSEO UIBW 9} J& UOTBIUSWNOOP
yuwaod syuoprsal Jo Juruuedos jo uonejudwo(dwr oy) 10§
ue[d e dopoadp pinoys juounredd(] SOOIAIOS JUdWIARJ I, e

:SMO[[O] SE ST uorepuawuodal ¢ Ayoud oy,

‘siseq A[qjuowt & uo popuadsns
ud9q 9ARY ey} SNDJ JO SISO MOIAJI PINOYS JUIWOTRURIN e
pue ‘uoneordde jruod Suryred yoeo
U)m pourejurewr s1 uoneyuownoop Sunioddns  jey) dinsuo
03 JuowaInbor oy Jo popuror 9q Pnoys JJeis JUBAJRI [[V e
‘Karjod [rouno) Yy aur] ur pue ojendordde
o1e 9SOU) JBY) WLJUOD 0} UOMR[[OOURD 10] PIeMIO]
md sNDJ Jo didwes € uo 1910 Jo1uds judpuddopur ue Lq
pauwwioytod o0q 03 }o9yd Je[n3a1 & 21Mbal pInoys judWdT UL
Aq ooeld ur ind oq 01 sompoocoid [onuod AyuEnd) e
‘uIoy) 0) panssi
SNDJ surede Sureodde smoumo o[oIyoA 0} Juds sasuodsal
pue SuoISIAP JY} Jo }ooyo opdwes iengdar e wuopd

UBINSSY

saupuyy Aay/snyels

adoog

BIIE JIpNY

V XIANAdd YV

01/6007 LAOdHY LIANY ATHALAVAO - LIANY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 127

61 93eq

01/600¢ Hodoy 7 1euen() — npny [ewrdu] Lo3ulleH Jo ySnolog Uopuo|

‘9[oym e se w1301
SOWIOH JUDD( oY) Jo Aunnids pue juswoFeuew o130)eI)s
oy} uo Jurssnooy [oued MOIAOI PIJEOIPOP B JO OB[ Y e

: opnpout
puUNOj 2I0M SISSOUNEIM JIOUM Seale Oy, "SHU Je s2A10a[qo
wo)sAs oy Ind YOIyM SOSSOUd[BOM OIB QIOU) WOISAS AU} UTYIIAN

“UONBSLIOYINE 10} 991 IWIUIO))

JUOWIRINOO0IJ o) 0} jeuno} Modar [ouno)) prepue)s
e ur poprwgns a1e sogexyoed syiom pasodoid [enpiaipuy e

pue ‘{pieoq uonerouadal oy 03 Juniodar or393ens

ywgns 0) pue swwesdold oy jo juswSeuew [euonerddo

oy} JojyuowW JOpIo Ul [uno) Ayl Aq (ode sypuow xis) dn
198 U09q A[JUadal sey wed], SULIOIUOIA JUdI[D OINIV Uy e

{sogeroAe Ansnput

jsurede pue sedje [[B ssoIoe JUIISOD NIBWIYOUSQ O} IOpIO
ur OWTV 2y} Aq uoyepopun SI sis[eue 3unsoo Ie[n3oy e

toupred ease yoed

AQ papuope udoq 9ARYy ‘OWTV 24y} woy saAnejudsaidor
Aoy opnpur YoM ‘sSundouwr  doueldwiod  AJYIUOIN e

(s3o[ sonsst pue systI [euonerado pajiejop pue

SIsA[eue [eIOUBUL} pue AIR}O3pnq PI[Iejop ‘BoIe oY) UMM

sme)s AI0AI[Rp 109foid [[eIoAo [rejop yowm ‘sioulred eose
o) Jo yoea Aq paonpoid a1e syodor ooueurofdd AIUON e

‘soned [[e usomloq padide pue

paudts udd(q sey sioured BaIe INOJ Y} JO YoBD pue ONI1V
9 [IOUNO)) A} UIIMID( JUOWOAISY JOURI[Y JI1F0JelS V e

:MO[d( PAISI[ AIB YOIYM JO QWIOS ‘A[LIOJOR)STIRS
Sunerdo oq 01 poAldsqo dJoM  S[ONUOD JO JoqUINU Y

"YSLI JB SOAN09[qO WId)SAS

"(3porqpPa9y  syuopisal Juure}qo
10} ss3001d urpnjour) SULIOJUOIA 9OUBULIOLID] e

pue ‘QuwodnQ Jo SULIOHUO e

{(51010BIIUO)) JO UOJIIOS pue
INHA SuIpnour) SjuowoIURLIY JUSWAINO0L] e

{$1S00) JO UONBUIMIIANR( o

:sea1e FULMO[[0] O} UI JUSWUOIIAUD

01/6002
paepue)s

payuIy oy} Ind 01 yons are S[ONUOD JO WIISAS A} UI SISSIUNLIA | [ONUOD Y} JOA0D O} UINBLOPUN SEM IOM 1Ipny SOWO U
ueInssy sgurpuyy A3dy/smels adoog voue ypny
V XIANHdd Y 01/6007 LIOJAY LIANYV A TIALIAVNO - LIAAV TVNIYALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 128

0z @3ed

01/6007 Hoday 7 10uend) — pny [ewriu] Ao3uLiey Jo ysnoiog uopuor|

'SMO[[0] Se 21t Suorepuawiodal g Ayuoud oy,

SJromawrel,] Juswadeury 109014 S [IOUNO)) AY) YIIM dUl| Ul
payodal pue papiooal ‘PaUSPI oq PINOYS sANsSI 913djens
pue :OIN1V

o) pue [IOUNO) 3} UDMIOG HOJJO PIJRUIPIO-0d B SEB
uo papodal pue paurejurewr oq pjnoys o[ sYSLI dI3ens v
‘1oA9] [euOnERIdIO pUR O132)R1S AU} J8 PAIO}IUOW

9q prnoys osayy Jsurede ssoifoxd pue 100foid oy Jo
9[0A09]1] 9y} INOYINOIY) PAYIIUIPI 3Q P[NOYS SAUOISI[IUW A3
Qw301 SSWOR U] 9Y) JO JUSWdFRURW )
Surpie3al SUOWIFURLIE OURILIDAOZ 9} MIIAJI [IOUNO)) Y],
‘sorued JUBAS[OI 0} PAJROIUNIUTIOD

pue opew oq Ppnoys puadsioro [enudjod paynuUOPI

o) uo podor Aemaed Jud001 Y} 0) SUOASAI Ul UOISIOP Y e
:SMO[[O] Se 2Je suonepudwtuodal | Ayuoud oy,

“JUOWIUOIIAUD
[onu0o oy} daoxdwr 01 djoy prnoys yomm ‘Suonepustlitiodds
¢ Awuoud osuo pue 7 Awoud omy ‘1 Awuoud oAy pasier
OABY oM BOJIE SIY) UL JIOM }Ipne [eUWIO)UL INO JO J[NSAI B SY

‘syrodal

WBySy 100foxd oY) umpm sanssr pue SYSLI O139)eNS
uo 110doI pue SISA[eUR [BULIOJ 9¥B}IdPUN 0} dIN[IR] € ST IS ],
pue

90afoxd oy3 Jo ed [eonLd dY) JOJIUOW 0) dIN[IR] pue JJI|
s,300fo1d o) 19A0 souo)sorur A3y pajodfoid jo doudsqe oy
LONIUIWO)) JUSWAINDO0IJ S [IOUN0)) dY) PuL Wed [, JUdI[D)
OWTV 2y} ‘OINTV 9yl ‘qrouno) oy usomieq s[odojod
UONBOIUNUILIOD [BWLIO] JO J3S B USI[QeISd JOU P[nod 9
‘wied [, SULIOHUOIA JUSI[D OINTV 23 JO sjudwaimbas

pue soniiqisuodsar oy} Jul[IeIOP JJUAIJAI JO  SWII)
PIIUOWINOOP IO JIUWAJ [BULIO) B AJIJUSPI 0) S[qRUN 1M I

NuUeInssy

sSurpuly A3y/snyels

adoog

BIIB JIPNY

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIYOdHTI LIANV A TIALIAVAO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAA




Page 129

17 93eq

01/600¢ Hoday g 1uen() — 1pny [euru] Lo8urie jo ySnoiog uopuo|

"PIIUSWINOOP QI8 WL ],
WA OITY PUB OINTV oY) U0amIoq POy sSunoswr [[y e

SMO[[0] Sk ST uonepudwiodds ¢ Ayuoud ay |,

“wed [, SULIONUOIA JUSI[D) OIN'TV Y} 10] 90UIOJIY JO SWId ],

B JUQWNOO0P pUB JIWAI [BULIO] B dUOP PINOYS JUSWOSRURIA e
pue ‘suoneoyyoads posoidde [eury oy pue sodueyd

Aue opnoul 0} popuowie 9q p[noys Ad3uLeH I0J SOWOH

Aq poptwgns suuio} [esodoid 9y} ‘QopIUIWIO)) JUIWAINDOL]

s, [ouno) oyl Aq soSeyoed iom jo [eaoxdde uodp) e

NUBINSSY

sSurpuyy Ady/smels

adoog |

BaIR JIpNY

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIOdHA LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIANV TYNAAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 130

77 93eq 01/600¢ Hoday 7 101en() — Npny [ewou] 428uLiel jo y3nolog uopuo|

"S[00Y0S AIRPUOOIS 93IY} 0} S}ISIA SOPN[OUI SIY ], "PIEPUE]S 9} JO sjudwainbar oy yim souedwoo
PONUIUOD SSASSE 0} S[O0YDS JUBAS[AI O} SJSIA PO[NPAYIS OARY om OIdXd 01 anp ST 9)OYNID SISINA Yl JO ANpPIEA 9y} YA

"6007 19q0100) WOIJ 1Ie}S 0} PI[NPALDS ATk SHSIA INO PuR 00T
aun( ur S[O0YDS 9s9Y} 0} UOISSas Surures) SIS Ue papiaoid Ipny [BUIdU] (1M uonounfuod ur ‘wes I, soueur] uonednpy ASSuLiey
"SISIN oY) Ypm douerjdwiod }ooyd 0} S[0oydS AIBWILI JO 9407 SUIUIBWDL 3Y) O} SHSIA JAJOAUI [[IM ()]/6007 SULNp YoM InQ

"010T YOI IST€ U} Aq S[OOYDS JO %07 e
pue 6007 YOI 151§ 9y} £q S[OOUDS JO %0p e
'800C YOTR 1T € oY} £q S[OOYDS JO %0 @

“SMO[[O] SEB SIBOA 991y} A} A0 ‘ss001d JuowIssasse o) Jo 1ed se ‘SJooyds 9say) 0} SHSIA pauue[d om SIY) 9AITYIR O, "0 10T YoIeN
1€ £q prepuels o) Jo syusWLINDAI oY} JooW AU} JOYJOYM O} SE PISSASSE 0q 0 Al S[OOYDS [er0adg pue Jotuny ‘sjueju] ‘ATewWL [[V

(SIS
S[O0YOS UI pIepue}S JUSWISSEURA [BIOUBUL] dU) JO SjuowdImbar oy ym aouerjduiod FUDAYD SIA[OAUL ()[/6007 SULINp oM QO

‘SJUPUWISSISSY SISINA

V XIANHddYV 01/6007 LIOdHI LIANV ATIALIAVNO - LIANY TYNILINI ALLIOTAA



Page 131

¢z a8ed

01/600¢ Hoday] ¢ 1ouen() — 1pny [eurou] Ae8utel jo y3noiog uopuor|

6007 19quiada( :aullppa(q pasinay

‘ssauIsnq
S, JIounod Ay} jo 3sar oy} IsSuowe posnuond syoaford
108 03 ssooo1d Suoj A10A S, IT 0} onp ST AB[op oY} ey} pue
[ORUOJ I3y} puokaq St [ A£G S90IN0SAI JO UOTRIO[[E oY}
ey} pajeotpul sey 991Aleg 9y, ‘ueid joaford s 1 fod se
1oquidod( [ Y} 10 PA[NPAYIS MOU ST 9JEP OAT] 0F oY,

apdy) 7 4214010

6002 12quiaydag :oupra(J pasiady

‘6007 Joquaydog 10 potejdwioo aq o1 pojoadxd
S1 1nq pake[op usoq sey judwnredop amsT pue suodg
OS( 2y} I0] woisAs mau oy} jo apesddn aremyos ayJ,
‘sjdwoize pajrey 221} SUIMol|o]

woisAs oy} Jurssoooe  sfenpraipul  juoadxd o1 wie

[[14 opesddn s1y], 'o8eJUBAPY PI[[ED [9POW I9MAU B 0]
X010 ], Sursn wolj ssoloe Juraouwr aq [[1m juduniedop oy,

awpdy [ 4211010

007 42quid22(] :2Ulpra(

sydweyje uogoy prjeaut
aannadar Juimor[o] ssadoe juaAdxd

AJ[nJ O} I9pIO UI WIISAS oY) JOALI00 8007 UI9)SAS JUOWOFBURA]
ssaadoag uf | 0y ssorddns aremyos 03 jsonboy Kepy /Sutodup 1 NS XMIOL
90/500¢
BT T |
! uoneyuawadury
ajepd[)/sjudsmuo)) SN)E)S/S8.130.4] [euIsLIQ Ajuonrg BAIY JIpNY

90/S00Z SUOnEpUIW W0 | LJL1oLid Jo uonevywdw[duw] - 310day ssaadoag pajrerdq

V XIANAdd YV 01/6007 LYIOdTI LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIAAV TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 132

7 93eq

01/6007 Woday g Iouen() — pny [ewIdiu] AoSuueH Jo y3nolog uopuo|

Yl 6007 [udy ur digsiouued o13oeng  AdsuLiey
Aq pardope uooq Sey YIomowel] juowodeduy Ajunwiwo))
MIU B ‘DAJOAUI 0} AINp MOU Iy} JO UOONPOIUL Y1 YIIM

Juowaduente drysroupred
yoeo I10] ASojens [[BIOAO JU} UM
pajerodioour pue pado[oasp aq pInoys

pajudufduy 8007 A8\ z A391eNS UONRINSUOD PAUYIP AIRI[D Y ré
sjuoundue.Ly digsmoupieg
I%®ddd — SCHALLOADIXH AATHD
“paseq ST 9IAIOS SUISNOH ANTUNWWOY) % J1391R1S
a1oyM ‘0snof] xady 18 MITA 0] O[qR[IBAR ST I)SIZDI 1SAIUI JO
UOTBIR[OOP [, "SOJIAIOS SuISNOH Ajunwiwio)) 2 JI39iens
UI Jjels [[e 01 PIPU)XD Udaq SBY SIY[ "SUIMIIA 10 J[qe[ieAe
ST UOIYM JOJSISAI SQIUT JO UOMBIR[OIP B MOU SI QIdY],
"PAUINIAX PUB POUSIS UG SABY YOIYM JO [[B ‘SUWLIOJ 1SOIOJUL
JO UONBIR[OOP [IIM DPINSSI UOJQ OABY WED) JUSWISSISSE
guisnoy oy} ur jjeis [[e 1By} POUWLIJUOD OARY JUSWOFeURIA
*JIOTUQS
oy) AQ [ J[eop ST 9sed ) ‘Mouy A9y} 1By} SUOSWOS ‘siseq Je[ndar e uo pajepdn pue
IO PUSLIJ B SOAJOAUI 9SBO B JRYj} SILJIUSPT IOLJJO UR JIDYM 1001jJ0 pojeSoep B Aq paurRjurew oq
*I001JJO JOTUAS & Aq [IIM 1[BIP SI 9sBD Y1 ‘A[Iwey 9eIpaurul PIROYS 193SI321 1SAIU] JO UOTIRIR[OA(] V
10U JO IOQUIDW B I0 JjeIs JO Ioquioul B Aq dpewr Juioq
st uoneorydde ssoussofowoy 1o uoneoiidde Zuisnoy e jey)
POYTIUDPI ST )T AIOYA\ "UONONpUI 1Y) Jo Jed se jsarour jo ‘syueorjdde [nyssaoons
10T[JU0O AUR QIR[OIP 0] PA3U I} UO PASIAPE 1B JJels MIU [[V Jo Teaoxdde pue sjurod jo Surpreme
:60°1°Z U0 1uswoeuew Wolj paArodar ojepd ‘suopeondde jo Butssaooid oy ur oaeq
60T HOd J PoA! P Kewr Aoy 1sa10ut [euosiad Aue 21e[oop
payudud[du] 1007 sung Z A[[ewIo}  p[noys Jjeis JUBAdRI [V I
suonjedrpddy 19)s139y Suisnoy jo Sunurog
INTINNOIYIANT NVEAN
snye)g/ssaagolg surpea( uonejuduRduy euisQ | LHLoLg noﬁaﬁzoﬁiauom »Pa

£0/9007 SUONBPUIWLIOINY ¢-] AILIoLI] Jo uonejuawdur] - ja0day ssdidoid pafrerdnq

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LYOJAY LIANYV A TIALIAVNO - LIANV TVNIALNI ALLIOTHd




Page 133

§798%ed

01/6007 1oday 7 11en) — ipny [euraiu] AoSuLieH Jo ysnolog uopuo|

‘sorouage souped ssoroe ooejd Sunye) uonjeynsuod [fe arded
01 swie A39)B1lS QUI[-UO STY], "TedA a1y) Ul Ioje| pajudwolduwr
oq 01 A3orens uonejnsuoo diysioured dur-uo ue dojoAdp
0} [esodoxd e sopnpour ue[d AWRAIPP YL '19q0PVQ ,TT
uo dnoin) JuowWISeUR 9dUBLIONS] JSH U} 01 pajussaid
oq [[1a pue pado[oadp uaaq mou sey yromawey 3y} poddns
o1 ued Amoarep v dnoid Kousle njnw e Aq pedofoaap
SeM [OTYM JIOMOWeR]J SIY) Iopun sjfej A3ajen§ uone)nsuoy)

"past[un oq [[im s3uipuyy
UOIR)NSUOD MOY PUE UOTBINSUOD 10]
ANiqisuodsar ‘UoreInsSuod JO SpoyIow
‘poynNSu0d 3q [[IM OUM QULIP PINOYS
pue  ‘Siop[oyede)s pue  S[enpIAIpUL
o[qisuodsar [ 0}  PIJROIUNWIWIOD
9q p[noys soIdojens  uoyelnsuo)

snje)s/ssaadory

surppea( uonejuawadwy [euIstiQ

IR RE

WO EPUIWTWO0INY

P

V XIANJEddV 01/6007 LIOJdHY LIANYV ATIALIVNO - LIANV TYNIIINI HLLIOTHd




Page 134

97 93ed

01/600C 1odoy 7 10uen) — upny reurdiu] LAo8urreH Jo ySnolog uopuor|

QAOQE SJUWIO) 938 9sed[d

§.[1ouUno) JYy) yitm aul] ul ‘ouerdord
o Suiypm  spdford  (enpiarpur

e 1oy pue owwerdord oy} 1o
payuowdjduy ooe[d UT MOU WA}SAS [ pado[oAdp 2q pnoys ase) ssouisng vV | T

- (a8puo[0)) ‘uoisuedxo ONUIAY SIPOUY ‘UlIe]
Iorempeorq) s1oofoxd gD 9yl Jo yord 10} (AISAI[Op JO 23eIS
oy 1od se) sq[d 1o sjeug j09loid pue a3ury) 1o, A33eNS
Arewrid oy sI owwerdord-qns jey} jnoge UOHRIUSWNOOD
juormo oy} ‘ssooold Furuorsstwwiod 9y 03 Ioud pojress
sem owweI3ord JdDd oY USAID  (Yim [eop dm sjoafoxd
ooUBUQUIBW [[BWS AIOA OY} JO JWOS AIdA I0J 9q p[nom
siq) 03 suondooxa) pajearo Aqensn st (JId 109foxd aejdwoy
[ouno) piepuels e ‘pajentul sI owweidold-qns B UMM
100foxd yoes se ‘udyy, -puads Jo uonesnuoud pue sauljowr}
Koy ‘suopornsor Juipuny Aue ‘owwrerdord-gqns jeyy Jo
SOWI00IN0 9y} SUIUIJOp PoIBAIO ST JUSWNOOP FUTUOISSIUIWOD

UOYs & ‘pauoissTiiod ST owweiord-qns mou yoeo Sy (d1d peonpar e se yons) syoaford pojerar

(s [endeD QIO ‘¢ 9SeYq SOHUDT) 8, UOIPIID) ‘dd 10y ssaoord [eaoxdde ue Surdo[oasp

. ‘ : IOpISUO0D pnoys JUOWSRURA
are aseyd woneyuowopdur ur sowweidord-gns jualmnd) Sdd
urgum  sowwerdosd-qns mou o) yoeoxdde uruorssiuuod

o3 pue (Sdd) owweidord [ooyog-ald pue Arewlld roMOUIBI

oY) Ul sowRyos [[e Sunealjop 03 yoeordde oy surejdxd sy, 3 i oA o m

ooe[d w1 s1 pue paje[dwioo ULSQ SBY JUSWNOOP NIOMOWRI] i wqmz 199:04d w:o 0 ot ﬁm

e jey) pouujuod (oo1al0g s.9[dood Sunox 2 udIpyd) OUIT Ul "9oUEUL] 9JeI0CI07) puv 10SU0ds

100[014 2y} Aq pasuioyine 9q p[noys pue

wawdoaasg 2 uoddng ssoursng JI0109II(] JURISISSY Y], A[@erpowuy s100f01d Ao [2 10§ podoraAdp 5q PIIOTS

payuwsudpdumg 1e}s 0} pajsaddns soduey) 1 (Qrd) wswmoo(] uonenu] jo9foid v 1
dwweagoag ende)) Arewnig
HIOIAYAS ScH'TdOHd ONNOA ANV NTAA'TIHD
snje)g/ssaadord suippea( uopevywdwRdwy [pwidiQ | Aprorg UONBPUIWUOINY JEM |

80/L00T SUOH)BPUIWWO0INY ¢-] AioLid Jo uonejudwfduy - J10doy ssaagdoad pafreraq

V XIANAdd Y

01/6007 LIOdHI LIANV ATIALAVNO - LIANY TVYNAAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 135

L7 9%ed

01/6007 Hodoy 7 1oireng) — 1Ipny [euwsoiu] A93uLie Jo ySnolog UOpuo]

MO[JIOM pUE o1J Juowssosse [eroueuyy ssofiaded Any
£ 0} POAOWI MOU JARY Wed) oY) ajepdn ise[ oy 0 judnbosqng
“pojuswa[dur U90q MOU SBY UOTIEPUILIUIOIIT ST ],

pajyuompdury

uorneuowaduur
[enioe — 6007 1Pquaydos

aseqoind wWoISAS — 6007 YoIeN

"SIOST QOTAJAS 0} POPIAOI ST 218D 2IOYM
SOSBO JUBAQ[QI OY) [[B 0] JOUUR Ao}
B Ul pasiel oq O} $IOIOAUI 10] $$3001d
7 | e ooed ur ind pinoys JjuowOIRURA ¥y

"Spunj JUSI[O JULIJSTUTIPE JO SIS00 3y} Jo nal[ ur parjdde
10U SeM ]SOIOUT By} U09q Sey (sauLioyine I9ylo Jo Ioqunu
odIe] © yiIM SB) 901AI0S oY) UIYiA Tef snyy uopduwmsse oy,

‘spuny
syuorpd owos Surdeuew A[re[ndar ur juads owm  sIpOM
[e100s JO 1500 Y} SuLIdpIsuod A[[eroadsa “1y3Iy A[fenueisqns
ST ‘poIsoo  jou  ySnoyje  ‘sJUNOdOE  3sdY}  Jurseuew
JO 1500 2ATRNSIUILIPE oY} 1) 100 pajurod dARY JUSWITRURIN

“1sa103ut Aed jou

PINOYS [OUNO)) 9Y} 1LY} LOJLFJO dURUL] JAIYD) O} JO MIIA Y}
SI JI pUE UOHEPUSUIWOIAT OY} POISPISUOD JARY JUSWIOTRUR

drqednddy JoN

600T Y2IeN

‘sasodand winyal xe) 10J “JoU 0 $S0I3
PANPAID ST ISAIDIUT I} LOYIOYM Py 1oads
oq p[noys ) ‘sased [[g u[ ‘ploy Aoy}
18y} SpUny JO [0AD] 9} UO Paseq ‘Sjuar[d
[ENPIATPUL 0} JSQIdJUl Oy}  FunIparod
pue Jouuew djendordde ue ur syunoode
2591} UO pouIed jsasjul [[e Suruontodde
0] uoAId 9q P[nOYS UONRISPISUO))

"SJULIO I} JO J1JOUAq A1) I0]
‘SJUNOOO. Yukq FULIBIq JSAIUT UL Spuny
Josn  oowles  drysooyutoddy  Surpjoy
IOPISUOD 0} dourul] 9d1eI0dio)) Jo pesH
Z | oy wm osterp pnoys juowoSeue]y | €

diys10A1993y % digsoayuroddy

SADIAYAS ALINNIWINOD ® TINLTAD ‘SL1NAV

"pIeog] wieans oy} Aq padide pue
ooueurj ajerodo)) £q JJo paudis aq os[e
jsnw 9se)) ssouisng oy} ‘OwweIsord
o 03 wodor ey spoloxd  10g
Je) pue ‘wes) juowofeuew o Iosuodg
1aforg oy Aq poaoxdde oq pinoys
ase)) ssoursng] oy ‘soafoxd soffeurs 1o,

“jromouel,] Juomaseury 10ofo1d

snygyg/ssaadoag surpea(q uonejudwdwy [puisiiQ | Aoy UOHRPUIMTOINY , uum
V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANY A THALAVNO - LIANV TVNIALLNI ALLIOTAA




Page 136

Q7 9%eq

01/600T Hoday] 7 1o1ren() — upny [euIou] A23uLiel] Jo y3nolog uopuo]

oY) jo uoneuawd[dwl ay} YIM IPIdUINd 0} 6007 IPGUAON
0} POpUIIXd oq JUI[PedP SH} Jey) sisonbar 90IAIS Y],

"SQINPI00I U010301 A1odoid pue 19ssy
‘QUIOOU] PIWIBUAI 2q [[IM UoIgm ‘sarnpaooid pasiadr oy
a101dwos 03 6OOZ 19G0300 JO PU2 I jB pajoadxd MoU St 10V
oy olqng Surpiedor sa01a1ds [e39] woy Aorjod yeip vy
‘paruowofduwr K[y udoq 194 JOU SBY UOHBPUSWIWOAI ST,

'60°6°81 2wpd))

(6007 12quiapdag :2utjppa(q pasinaY) SIIAIIS

[eSo] wouy 9o1ApE puk Norqpad) Junieme [[us st Aorjod Y],
}60°L°¢1 epdn

6007 ABIA Aq paio[dwos 9q pInoys SIy} — 9JIApe

2591 Sunreme ore juountedop oy} YIIYM UT UOII0IS FUIUTRUIL
ouo wolty ede pasIAdl udaq sey Aorjod gy uonodg AYJ,
:60'70° 60 21epdn JuowoFeury

"0JBp MOIAAI B apnpoul [[im dje[dwro sy [, -ajejduwo)

SOOTAIOS AJUNWIWO) 29 °IMn) ‘SINPy pozipiepuels oy}
YIM oul| ur payeIp-a1 uidq st Ao1jod gy UON09G POMAUST
:60/10/S 1 9repdn) Juowageury

payuoudpdwy Apaed

6007 A2qUA0N :2UIPDA(] PaSIAdY
V/N

*JJE1S JUBAS[QI [[8 O} POIBOIUNTUTIOD
pue pojep 9oq P[NOYS  SIUSWINOOP
[[e JBy} pOPUOUIODOI IOYMNJ SI I

"A1essa09u J1 ‘pajepdn
pue ‘Aj[enuue 3sed] je pue ‘Aje[ndor
pomoIAdl  oq  pnoys  sampaoord
pue sororjod [[e By} POPUSWIUOIAI SI I

‘guroguo

are ajep 10818} € 195 01 I\ ] YHM SUOISSNOSI(] “PIAR[IP

2q A[o1eUNJIOFUN [[IM SIY} SONSSI }SOJ puR SUINPIYOS
asneoaq Inq SUINUNU0D ST RLIUT DDO/IM Y} UO JIOM

*$89001d POSIAQI ST} UO d0UB[Rq PUE YO
© SB UOTBI[IOU00I TR[NSOT 2SN 0} SANUTIUOD IOIAIS I,

“pa1Inbax o1e SIOTOAUT 2IYM SIIO
ONUSAJY 0} SoposIdo JUSWISSISSE IQJSURI} O} TAN ] UIIIM

snje)g/ssaadory

surppea(q uoneyuawadury fewiStio

Ayrorrg

UOH¥PUITWIOINY

PA

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LIO4HTY LIANYV ATIALAVNO - LIANYV TVNYALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 137

67 23eqd 01/6007 1odoy 7 101en() — ypny [euroju] LeSurel jo ySnoiog uopuor|

6007 19qIUIA0N] :2UIPYI(] PISINY

‘sydiros moy) ojut Ao1jod pasiaal oy
Junerodioour oq [[IM OUM ‘W], SS900Y Pajeidau] SHIOV

snjeyg/ssaadorg i uipea(q vonpvywwRdwy [emBLQ | AJuIoLg UONBPUIWMO0IIY P

V XIANAddV 01/6007 LIOdHA LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIANV TVYNIAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 138

0g 93eq 01/6007 Hoday] 7 1ouend) —11pny [eurdju] Ao3uLiel Jo ysnoiog uopuor|
0 0 0 0 1 I S S 11 1 S S pajwry JUAUIAIND0I] S[eLId)JRA Sulues])
0 0 0 0 1t (1 lolol |1 |o] o] muesns 1o1juoy Arejaspng]
29 JUSWdZBURA] [BIOURBUL] O189}RIIS
0 0 0 0 9 £ £ 0 9 ¢ ¢ 0 | [enueisqng AANN
0 0 0 0 I I 0 0 [ [ 0 0 | renueisqng Sundrooay yse)
0 0 0 0 S 14 [ 0 S ¥ [ 0 | [enueisqng s)jouag Xe} [1ouno)) 2 JuIsnoy
1 0 0 0 4 I l 0 £ ! [4 0 | renueisqng SIOIPaID)
0 0 0 0 L T [ 1 ¥ [ [ [ [enueIsqng XB[, [IOUnoyD
0 0 0 0 L |t ls ] ¢ |t | s | 1 |menumsgg sanadoud jo [esodsiq
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [n.g JUDUISIAL] pun,f UOIsua
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [ Io8par] [IOUAN) puB FUNUNOIOY
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1. SHUADFURLIY 20URINSU]
sadanosay erodio)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [enueisqng | 10aforg Aed renby jo uoneuawajduy
0 0 0 0 S 0 ¥ [ [~ 0 ¥ [ [enuesqng Syoayod JuamAo|duo-arg
O — S2ANNIXG JPIYD
0 0 0 0 ¥ [ £ 0 14 [ 5 0 | [enuesqng ampasolq syurejdwo)
¥ ddd — SIABNIXY Ja1y)
z 0 0 0 I 0 L 0 £ 0 € 0 | enumisqng | Ayumnoag 7 juswadeuey UOBULIOJU]
apIm-{luno))
suipug)sinQ anp
suopepuammodayy | 14 |ssaadoag| “dury
1 Ajnronag 1oN uj JON | V/IN |I®10L | € (4 I |®oL| ¢ (4 1
pajuamapdury A1083)8)
[PAY ]
SUONEPUIWUI0II OURINSSY vVIaV LIanyV
MIOA NPTV 60/800C - 21qE.L A Mof[o]
V XIAONAdd YV 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANY A TIALAVAO - LIAAV TVNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 139

1€ 93ed

01/600T Hodoy 7 Iorend) — )ipny feurdiu] A93unel] jo ySnoIog uopuo|

0 0 0 0 9 0 £ £ 9 0 3 £ [enuelsqng aniny ay) 10§ sjooyog Jurpring
) DUBANSSY JUIIBBUEJA]
1afoag —sajeaopaaq [y
0 1 0 0 01 0 8 N 11 0 6 z _mm._ﬁm.,_ma_,_w SADTAIS tcn_mcm._._. ..umcmmwm&
0 1] 0 0 T 0 /4 0 z 0 < 0 [enueisqng ASNOH huze:vm — Sanuay) s udIpg)
I 0 0 0 6 [ 9 [4 0l [ 9 'S pajwrg [BI2UDD) — 2NUA]Y) S UWIP[IYD
we
0 0 0 0 4 0 I I l 0 [ [ | [enueisqng 12TEMPROIE — SANUAT) § UIP[IYT)
CERTEWETY
s 21doag Sunox % waippy)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g ABajeng % Sutuorssiuwo)|
0 0 0 0 8 I 9 I 8 I 9 [ | enuesqng WNLIORWI) % mu_bﬁs_ou_
0 0 0 | 8 | L 0 6 I 8 0 | Ienueisqng QUWOH [BHUAPISIY ISNOH Py
0 0 0 0 8 I 4 0 8 1 L 0 | enueisqng JWOF] 2IB)) [RIUIPISIY POOMURI))
[ERTINETY
Ljunumwuio)) % aanym)) ‘s}mpy
0 0 0 € 0 0]lo]o € | o] ¢ | 1 | enumsqng (58590014 10300NU0)) SKEMYTIF]
JUIUOIIAUT] UEBQI()
0 0 0 0 8 [ L 0 8 [ L 0 | [ehueisqng SOVHTV
0 0 0 0 9 I S 0 9 [ S 0 | renuesqng SSEqRIRd PHOMT
0 0 0 o Lot |z |8l o]or|z]| 8| o] enuesgng uopeay[ddy |-jromaues,]
suipugisinQ anp
suonepudwmoddy | 194 [ssaadoag| ~dury
I &Lroni g 10N uj 10N | V/N |IBIOL | ¢ (4 I |m®oL| € [4 I
payudmdduy A10898)
[PAT
SUOHBPUIWI0INY DUBINSSY vARYV LIANY
V XIANHAddV 01/6007 LYOdAA LIANYV ATIALIAVANO - LIANYV TVNAALLNI ALLIOTAd



Page 140

7€ 93eg 01/6007 Hoday] 7 1911En) — NIpNY [euIdju] A33ulie Jo y3nolog Uopuo|

SUONBPUSIIIONS] JO uoneIuawofduu pajies oARY 19010 — pajudwafdul Appae g

“Uade} U9 10U SBY UOHOR SATIEWIAIE “PISSAIPPE U JOU SBY UONEPUIUIL03I 3y} — pjudurdidur JoN

“Y[SLI 91} $SIPPE O} USYE} U] SEY UOTIOE SALIBIIS)[E IO ‘WAISAS 3y} Ul sa5ueyo 0} anp d[qedtjdde 105u0] oU ST UOHBPUIIOAI A} — V/N
“sosuodsal Jo ofdwes © POLJLISA SABY 9A\ 'SUOHEPUSIIIO0a] JO §sa1301d oY) UONEO11100-1[S YSNOIY) PIIRIIPUL SBY SISOLJO — pajumowdfduay

V XIANHAddY 01/6007 LIOdTY LIANYV ATIALIAVNO - LIANY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 141

¢¢ 98eq

01/6007 Hoday 7 101en) — JIpny [ewssiu] A3SuLef] Jo ySnorog uopuo|

‘sajep
Surpnour ‘popusie sosInoo Jururen) JIOUSIIOI pue Jjels
JUBAQ[QI [[€ JO S[IBIOp PIOOAI 0} PAUTRIUIRWI ST Jooyspeaids v

payudmdpduay

60/¢/1¢

$9SIN0Y SUIUIRI}) JO SPIOOAI ‘WOLIPPE U[

‘papiaoad st Ayrjiqisuodsal
pue o8esn uo saurepms ojep-ol-dn
TRy} 2INSUD 0} JJeIS JO SIOqUIOUI JUBAD[AI
01 papiaoid st urures) Jaysaiger se[ngal
/[enuue ey} 2Insud PInoys I0IAISS Y[,

-ojeridordde o1oym ‘uoye) dIe SUOIIOR SAIIOALIOD pue
ons Aq uorjeurojul a3esn oy} SISA[EUR ULY) WIED], SOOIAIIS
Surueo]) oy, ‘siorjddns woij paureiqo Mou SI UOHBWLIOJU]

pajudurdpduuy

60/v/1¢

“Pa1ES1ISOAUT SOOUEBLIBA AUB PUE $9}IS
Iefruars £q )o01s Jo o8esn oy} JONUOW
A[P1eIMOOE 0} pasn oq PInoys SIY]

‘s1o1pddng
oY) Aq siseq JIe[n3al B UO JUIS 2q P[noys
yomym  ‘joayspeards  oSesn  [eOTUIRYD
oy} SuIsn s9YIS JUSISJJIP oY} SsoIoe o3esn
32035 Jo vosLiedwod e 930[dwos prnoys
QOIAIDS OUl 1BY] POPUSWIWIONAI ST |

pap1aoid
Sem UOISSNOSIP SIop[oyaye)s Aoy JO 2ouaplar] ‘Jumjes 1o3pnq
Jo uorssnosip Surpnpour ‘eoeyd oxe} sduneow 103pnq Ie[ndoYy

pajyudmmdpduy

60/L/1¢

"9S1010Xa 3UI}S09 paseq-oIoz ojeridordde
ue  opnjoul pinoys pue (sieSeurpy
oIy oyl pue soolareg  Sumues)
Jo 1a8euy oY) ‘JuowoTeURIA SOII[IOR]
JO PEO o13) siopjoyayels Aoy oYyl Yim
uoneynsuod ul paerdwod 9q p[noys
3unjes 103pnq [enmul oy} ‘uonippe uf

"SPoaU JUALIND
S, 90IAIDS 9} JO GATIO[JOI pue OIjsI[eal
SI 30s 128pnq 2y} 1By} 2INSUS 0} PISIAI
Aeudordde pue pomoraar oq prnoys
ssoooxd  Surpes-1e8png  S.90IAIRS  OY

JUSWAINIO0LJ S[ELId)CJA] Surued[)

SADYNOSHA HLVIOdI0D

snv)g/ssaadolg

aurpea(q uonevyumowRduy [pmsLQ

Lronig

UORPUITITWOIY

52 |

60/8007 SUONEPUIWWO0INY ¢ — | A1oL1g Suipuelsing - 310day ssaadoag pafrernq

V XIANdddV

01/6007 LIOdHI LIANY A TIALAVAO - LIANV TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 142

¢ 98ed

01/6007 Woday 7 1euend) — pny [euroiu] Lefunrel jo ySnoiog uopuo|

SJUSUWIUIOD dA0QR 938 Ised[d

oyl JOo 2dopou  JuIAld  JuoWINOOp
paudis oy} Jo Adoo v "10j0B1U00 YY)
AQ pue JIOOUJO [IOUNO)) JUBAJ[RI JY)
Aq reaoxdde pouSis © Aq poproddns
9q PpINOYS  SUOBLIBA  JOBIIUOD
[[e 18y} POPUSWIWOIAI IOYMNJ ST J]

"I0JORIUO0D [OBD PUE [[OUN0))
oY) uoamiaq aoepd ur s1 juouwooide
poudis B Jeyl QINSuUd  p[noys

srqednddy joN 80/21/1¢€ I O0IAISS Y} 1By} POPUSWIWIOIAI ST J| 9
‘urpueisino
[11S 212 yoIgMm sYIoM 9] AJ11001 0} Uaye)
ST UOI}OB SAIOOLIOD JBY) pUE ‘UI0)sAs
SUBUILION 3ACqE 30§ 5Eal wjuo) 9y} woy sylom oj[dwoour
10y s8o[ Jom@  oonpoxd  prnoys

drqednddy joN 60/9/1¢ [4 SOIAIS Y} Jel} PopusWuoddr St i) | §

"QUOp U23q Sey STy} Jey) JUAWOFeURW WOIJ 0UIPIAD

AJejuowinoop urejqo 03 J99s [[IM pny [euiou] -paudis 'siseq
U9 QABY SJORIUOD MIU Jey) PIJe)S QARY JUSWITRUBRI A[own) B U0 UNBLIOPUN TS SBY UOoToR
yeudordde jeyy Ajuoa 0} suonadsur
.Ooﬁ.ﬁg M M . H
Jo opdwres e }oayo pinoys justofeuewr
Ul SOUO MAU JARY pue GMSEMH-B 9ARY [IOUNO)) Y} SB PIfeA Wy pue  ‘uoyewopun  suorosdsur
j0U Mou Emmﬁomhcoowm emydiy oy mwﬁ ur soum@qocwﬁoo& 0} UOTE[er Ul uaYE) suonoe wo syodar
o) 03 asuodsar Jo ofueyo e poIsa3sns oAey juowoTeURT Sleouss 0] posn aq pUOYs wWolsAs

sfqeorddy joN 60/€/1€ ré WIU0) Y} JBY) PIPUSWIWOaI ST 1] b

(83583201 .10)0v.13U0))) SABMYSIH
INHNANOIYIANA NVEAN
‘paurejurew
Ajojenbope  oq  prnoys  papiaoid
snJ¥)S/ssaagdorg unpea(q uonejwdwRduny pmdLiQ | Ajuong UOHEPUIWUI0INY Py

V XIANHdd Y 01/6007 LIOdHTA LIANY ATIALAVNO - LIANY TYNIALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 143

Gg 98eqd

01/600T Hoday 7 1011end) —1pny [eutejuy LeSuLier] jo y3norog uopuo|

"BuruTeI) POATOOAT OYM
JO piooar e urejutew 0} 1doy uedq sey I0)SI30I douepuolle
ue pue jjeis o} popraoid uooq osfe sey Sururel] -posn
Suroq mou osfe are sorjod AdFuLRH OLIOUAD) POPIOdAI
uooq sey s1y) pue pasoxdde usaq oaey sorrjod oyodsog

pajuwdurdpduny

80/C1/1¢

AJ[ny ore Jjes jey) oInsuo [[IM SONUd))
'SONURd  9Y) 01 9[qe[leAB dpew 9q
[[1m Aoy ‘paaoidde oouo pue padojaasp
2q 1M sanpaooid pue sarorjod ayodsoq
oYL, PuLeH Uuo JqereAe  sarorjod
[ouno) Ad3uuel] ououdd oy oue
pasn Apjuanino sampasoid pue somIo(

8

[B.1UIY) - 9.13UJ]) S WAIP[IY)

SHOIAYAS S TdOAd ONNOA ANV NAIA'TIHD

"A[puowr 1no parLeds 3urdq st pue pajuswajdur
usoq sey uomnoe oY) ‘Arewuwmns u] c1ofeuepy Moddng
ssoursng £q Jjo paudis pue Aqyjuour suop st pue jroddng
ssouIsng ur jjeis e AQq ouop 3Juroq Mou SI UOHBI[IOU0II
- Ysey 9oy} Inq [ouuosidd Jo o3ueyd oWOS oI I

:g 123a0ng) awpdn) JudwWISvUD

"paugdrs uaaq oAy
YOTYM ‘SUOTIRI[IOUODAI JUIDAI 931} JO $o1d0o PaATadal Jipny

260°01°91 awpdy) ppny pusaguy

pajudurdpdury

80/01/1¢

"JOMOIADI
pue 1aredaxd oy yoq £q poep
pue poudis pue ‘1onjo juspuodopur
ue Aq payodyd 9q pINOYS UOTIRI[IOUOII
oY} Y} POPUSIIONdI JOUMNJ SI |

51y Suroroaur yv)
‘vorsnouod 1dwoid e 01 dn pamoroy
pue paleSnsaAUl ‘paynuOPI 9q PINOYS
Jwoour  onpIA0  pue  sarouedorosip
Aue 1ey) pue ‘Onp OWIOOUI O} POAIDAI
QWU [[B JO UOIBI[IOU00dI AJyiuow
€ Oyeuopun o0} popurmal 9q prhoys
JJeIs JUBAS[OI JRY) POPUIWIWOIAI ST ||

L

WNLIOJEWAI) PUE SILIIIWD))

SHADIAYAS ALINNIAINOD ANV TdNLTND ‘L' INaV

[Iounog ayj
Aq uonusjar 10y ‘Apdwoid juownoop
oY) swniel pue su3is  IOJOBIIUOD
3yl JBY} QINSUO P[NOYS IDIAIG
oy} pue 9[Ij U0 PAUIR}dI 9q P[NOYS
I0JoRIU0D OU} O} UOHBLIBA JOBINUOD

snye)g/ssaaforg

aulppea( uonejwdwRduy pusLIO

Aoy

UORPUITWWOINY

P

V XIANAddV

01/6007 LYOdTY LIANYV ATIALIAVNO - LIANV TVNYALNI ALLIOTAd




Page 144

9¢ a8eg

01/6007 Hodoy 7 1ouen) — ypny [eurdiu] AoSuLRH Jo Y3nolog uopuo|

6007 A2qQUIIAON] :2UIpDI( PISIAIY

“JOS[] PASI[EUINXA A[[10} 9] YIIM SjudwosueLie
Sunesado mou oy} jo yII[ ur urede sqOS YeIp [[e 9sIAdl
0} POSU A} Pue ‘90IAIS YY) JO Wed J[OIYIA puB JOALIP 9y}
Jo Suromosino A} ‘sonsst Juryyels Jotid Jofewr ‘0} paNNIOAI
Suroq 1s0d Io8euepy suoneidd() Mou dy) 0} onp U sey
Ke[op Y, "600T JOqUISAON JO PUD 94} 9q 0} A[Y]I[ ST SJOS
SNOLIBA 9Y) JO SUOISIOA Pa213e [eulj Ay} I0J SuI[peap dYJ,,

:60°01°91 18 SITUSWWIOD JUIWITeULBA]

6002 12quiapdag :ouljpra(J pasiaay "SYUOw
xis urpm pojordwioo sampoocord dy) daey o) sued pue
901AI0S 9Y) JO JuswdFeuRUl 0} UOHIPPE UI J0IAIDG Hodsuer],
o) Aq pojerado sompoocoid [ Supepdn pue FUIMOIAI
Jo ssaooxd oy ur Apuaumd SI pue )07 Areniqa] woly
se pojurodde usoq sey 1ofeuey suonesad() podsuel] MdU Y

:60°L°€1 2repdny

‘stseq orporad
e uo ‘orenrdosdde aroym ‘osory unepdn
pue Suimoraror Sumpnpour  ‘sarnpaoord
oy Sururejurewr JOJ JOOIJO pIjeuIuiou
e 0) poaudisse oq prnoys Aujiqisuodsal
Jey}  POpPUSWIWIOOAI  Ioyuny ST ]

*90UQIVJI IO]
JJeIS JUBAO[QI [[B O} 9[qR[IRAR OpRW pue
1oA9] areudordde oy je pasoxdde ‘pajep
‘PaIUdWNOOP 9q PINOYS $91e1do J0IAISG
wodsuer], 1o8uassed oY yYoym Aq

ssaagoag ujy 80 AON e soinpaood oy} jey) popuUdWIOddL ST [ | 0T
*IQUIS0A(T A[IED /I0QUISAON JO PuUs Jundour JuLIojuow
1xou oy ur 2oe[d oye) [[im owes oy, “spodar [y papraoid oBA0D S} UI 1O 19S SPIEPURIS U]
$1010B1U0D [[8 6007 Anf ur Sunoow Apmoyenb isep oy} 1y 3 d Suik
-ooepd ur st 21npa0oId SIY) JeY} POULIJUOD JABY JUSWITRUBIA JSUIESE OOUBULIOLISE 13ty SULATISPL
oBE UL S : . suodos Aprojenb opraoid o3 suonesiqo
[ENIORIIUOD JIAY} JO PIPUIWISI 3¢ P[NOYS
pajudmdduny STUIOA S1030BIUOY) — §0/11/€ 1 SIOJOBNUOD JRl} PIPUIWO0AL ST I | 6
$IAIIS Jrodsueld ], 193udssed
“Pa103Jo ST ST} AInsud 0} pajdope oq
[Iia owurerdord Jururen e pue pauren
snyeyg/ssaadorg surppea( uonevjudmRduy fewidlQ | ALoug UONRPUITO0IIY JEN |
V XIANHddV 01/6007 LIOJd T LIANV ATIALIAVAO - LIANYV TVNIALLNI HLLIOTHd




Page 145

L€ 93eq 01/6007 Hoday g Jouen() — ypny [eurdiu] Ao3uLieH Jo ysnoiog uopuor|

“MLE VPO UOPUOT] ‘10anS MIN [N [ ‘SN0 [[TH :20LJ0 PaIolsidoy ‘791$8SH Joquint pasalsidal (im sofep pue puejSug ur pasisi3al s1 pajiuiry JIpny [BWR 103008 d1jqnd SYono ] 2 smoped
"PAAIOSAI SIYSLI [V PAWIT HPNY [BUISIU] J010IS I[N AYONO L 2 10 600D

"UIDIS A NSIBUIYO], SYONO | IRIO[R( Y} Aq jou
pue SaIRIjIje JO SOLIRIPISqNS JI9Y] JO SULI} JOquuoul 9y} AQ papiaoid o1e SOOIAIDG "SRl PIIB]Rl JSYI0 10 ¢ NSTRUN]O] dYdNOoJ Io[a(,, ¢, ANI0Je(,, Saureu 9y Jopun Sunesndo Knus jede] juopuadopur
pue o1e1edos © ST SULIL JISQUISW 9} JO YR “SUOISSIWIO J0 S}08 S JOYI0 Yorsd 10 ANjIqel] AUe Se] SULI) IDQUISU JI JO AUR IOU nSJRWYO0 ], S1ono [ 9102 IYISU ‘[ons s ‘pue ‘(UOIIBIJ0SSE) UIDID A SSIMG
® SI NSJRWILO ] SYONno) opIop MSIPWyo] SYONoL SN0 JO WL} Jaquuaul WwopSurs] poyuy) 243 SI yoiym ‘g7 9M0R( JO ARIPISqNS © SI pojil] JIPNY [BWIdU] J0)09S djqnd Yonoy, % 1o

"PAIIWIT JIPNY [BILIDIU] 103035 OI[GNJ SYONO] 2P SNIO[(] 0 SIOUIIIJAI 2. IYI0[A(] 0} SIOUIIIJAI JUIUIND0P SIY) U[
600T 194010
uopuog

POIWIT] JIPNY [BUIIIU] 10J29S I[N SYoNO I, 29 MNI0P(

"preog]
Spiepue}g oouBINSSY pue JIpNY [euolietoiu] oy Aq pensst (000€ AV SI) Siuowsdesuy] 9ouRINSSY U0 piepuelS [RUOTIBUISIU] Y} Y1ia d[qereduwros jou st podar
1PNE [BUISIUT INO UI POPIEME [OA] QOURINSSE Y[ 'WIAISAS [ONUOD [BUISIUI J[GRI[AI B JO 90UBUSIUIRW dY} 10J Juepodwt s juswogeuetu Aq SUOHBPUSUWIOdT
o jo uonejuowdjdunr Ao} pue OANOYYH  SIUSWINOOP SOy} JO ANONUSYINE Sy} 2INSUS O} pue Jom jipne ino jo sasodmnd oy Joy suonoesuer
pue sp10%a1 Sununodcoe syl o} ssedoe [[nj st apiaoxd o) JusweFeurW U0 A[oI oM UONS SB puR 9duUBOHIUSIS pue YsiI 1$9)8aI3 JO Juldq Se JuseFeurw
£q paynuap! St SEaIe uo snooj o} paudisop ore sompadsoid JIpne [BUIAU] pnely dAISN[00 Jsure3e Jooid aq 10U ABW pUEB SOURINSSE IN[0SGR JOU PUB S[(RUOSEI
opraoid A[uo uBO JOIJUOO [BUISIUT JO SWIQISAS PUNOS UOAT “SSNLIRINSALI 10 pnelj Jo Ayjiqissod oy} 03 spiegar oAey 0} paxnbai a1e “I0M 1oyl Sunonpuod
ur ‘sxoupny  AjuenSonr Jo pnely Jo SOOUBISWNOID [[e AJBUopl o) uodn Por[or JOU ‘S[ONUOD [BUINUL UL SISSAWEdM pue syiSusss [[e AJnuopl o} uodn
POI[a1 9q JOU PINOYS JIpne [ewIoiul Aq pouLiofiad IoM pue JUSWOSLURW LM SISOX SONLIR[NSILIT JSYI0 pUe Prely Jo uonosiep pue uonusiald oy pue s[onuod
[euIsul Jo wis)sAs punos e 1oy Lyjiqisuodsar oy jey osiseqdurd oAy seonoeid juswiaFeurw punos jo uoneorydde oy 10y ssmijiqisuodsal s juswegeuru
I0] 9JMJIISqns B Se Uaye) 9q jOU P[HOYS pue JOu ST JI0M JIpne [eurojul jo osoueuliojad oyy  payusws[dwr a1e ASy) a10joq joedwi [0y 1oy 10j nok Aq
Passasse o PIRoYs SIUOWA0IAWT JOJ SUOUEPUSWIIIOONY "Ll 9q WYSIW Jey) SJUSUIIACIAWI B 1O JSIXd 1B} $ISSAW[EIM U} [[B JO JUSUId}e)S dAIsuayasdwoo
v A[LIESSO00U JOU QI8 PUB JIOM JIpne [BUISIUI JNO JO 9SIN0J 9y} JULINp UONUSNE N0 O} SWBDd (OIyM 3soyl A[uo d1e jiodar SIy) Ul Pasier siojjewr oy [

"A0]9q INO 1S SUOT)BIIWI] oY) JO siseq oy} uo paredod st yorym 1rodar sty 10§ AN[Iqisuodsar oye} o

Apqisuodsdayy Jo judud)els

V XIANHddY 01/6007 LIYOdHI LIANYV ATIALIAVNO - LIANY TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

Z jo | abed

JuswAojdwe
Jayjo asoosip 0} RN TS
pajlie; oakojdwa 9AlIN29Xg
paubisay eahodwg | I L Jey} uonebo|ly ®Iyo
10JoBJJUOD JO Bsn
V/N 0 0 l lejnBai| paba|ly
(d/@) Yois yo
IS|iym ssauisnq
Buluuns esAojdws
Buipuad L L 3 Jey) uoyebs)|y
pabpo 13
[eaddy
Je pjaydn |essiwsiq (4/9) swiepo
asuadxa tenbaul)
passiwsiq aafojdwg /SUOI}DIAUOD ERTTNETS
Buuojow asojosip | suosiad Buno
Buipuad Aseudiosig | I | 0} ainjiey pabajy '3 Ualpjiyo
awi} ylom
Ul SSBUISNQ UMO CELIPVETS
Buiuuni sshojdwa Alunwwo) g
Buipuad I L l leyy uonebs|ly | ainyng 4inpy
uoneBiyseAu]
Areuldiosiqg
(umouy y1) 0} Josfgns 60/60/0€
SI99110 je uaroud | pajebBiysaaul
awoolnQ Aseujdiosiqg Jo 'ON S9SeD JO "ON | sase? jo "oN | adA} Ayejnbauj ajeloloaliq

60/8007 WOY4 4/9 8 01/60/0€ - 60/¥0/10 AILVDILSIANI SAILIEVINDIUYI - LIANY ISNOH NI

9 XIAON3ddVv




Page 148

Z Jo g obed

9 9 b jejol
ydieoal
-uou Jo swieo
VIN VIN VIN 0 senbayo HYT Jy10ads-uopN
(4/g) Joddns
Y}IM JUSWISA|OAUI
seinbauin JUBWIUOLIAUT
V/N 0 0 4 jo uoneba|y ueqin
ajes pue| Jeinba.i
Buipuag ) ) b Jo uoneba)ly
Bulutepn UsUAA |euld
|eaddy je pajejsul-ay
(49) seoinosay S92IN0SaY
passiwsiq L l L Jo asnsip ajelsodion
uoljebiysaAuj
Lreuydiosiqg
(umoun 3) o} Joalgns 60/60/0€
SI92140 je uanoud | pajebiysaaul
awooinQ Areundiosiq Jo "ON S9seD Jo 'ON | sosed jo 'oN | adA] Ayseinba.] ajel030aliQ

60/8007 WOYd 4/9 78 01/60/0€ - 60/¥0/10 AILVOILSIANI SAILLIEVINDOIYYI - LIANV ISNOH NI

9 XIAN3ddV




Page 149

Haringey Council — Audit Committee

Disciplinary Case Analysis July 2009 to September 2009

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 July 2009 — 30 September
2009.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who

e hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts

e are considered as Supernumerary (employees that have been on a Temporary Contract for more
than 52 weeks)

Note that this data excludes:

e Casual or Sessional Workers

e Schools
e Agency Workers

Legend

Adults Cuiture & Commun ty Serwces o AS o
_:.The Ch”dren &Young People i Semce,. o C,,, o
Corporate Resources CR o
‘:’People & Orgamsatlonal Development PO

gPohcy, Perfermance Partnershp&Comms PP
:‘Urban EnVIronment UE
Har ngey Councﬂ - - " HGY

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

e Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour

e Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

e Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

e Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

e Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

e Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public

e Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council
(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)

| of 6



Page 150

Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure based on data retrieved from SAP.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate
irecionate ' ases Open " Gases Closed Noof casos Noof employees
AS = BT Ty e e
SR R I C R BT R s
o B g o, o,
UE e | , ’ L REEE
HGY B PR S e R

Please, note that the total number of cases is 76, but this only represents 71 employees. The reason
being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently. For example, an
employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

 Children’s has the highest percentage of disciplinary cases against its workforce at 2.17% in
this quarter

e 48 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period.

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

e CaseOpn | CwssGumd | e w
R i S D i e TR S
ovest -awspandod a1 e b
s S e

2of 6



The following table identifies the outcomes of the 28 cases that were concluded.

Outcome

Appeal upheld

- Dismissal

"No acﬁon -
Other
Part upheid
EMVerbaI Wamlng

: Wntten warmng -
- Final writ Warmng

/‘ Res:gned

Suspensmn hfted H ;
Reiegatlon/Demonon
- Compromise Agreement -

Total

not

0

O 0 00 o & WO WA = O

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

S
Con

Page 151

‘O =% W 4 M O OO O NN O O

Invest. -

~ suspendeq  Suspended

Appeal d|sm|ssedw | B

-k
—t

e 21% of cases resulted in No action

e 14% of cases resulted in a Written warning

This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.

Reason
Assault

Attendance

; Behavnour
: ‘Fraud / Theft

Misuse of resources

; Neghgence
| Other
kTotal

Reasons for Disciplinary Cases

2

| CasesOpen

Cases Closed

18
4 ;

9

1

Invest. -
appeal

M O OO 0O O O OO0 O o o = o

29

—h
R SN

DWW W

Invest. -
T

e
11 :
76

e The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 38%

3ofé

© © 0o o oo o o o0 o o o o o

Total

Total

e R O N R - A G

Lo
o

e

%

11

o
11

W11 '
14 ;

38

14



-HGY  White

Page 152

This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender split for Disciplinary cases

Disciplinary Case employee representation
by Ethnicity and Gender
, ~ Female  Male Al
i ¢ Class Tota! o Total %Total "
;‘B&M e ” e o . o
W L } 48 Y e 38
5V\Not Deciared 1 | 100 0 . 0 - 1 S

» 33% of the workforce is male, but the male representation with disciplinary cases is significantly
higher at 51%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands.

Disciplinary Case employee representation by
Ethnicity and Grade Band
(T Total no. in grade band, WF = % of total dlSC|pI|ned employees in Dlrectorate)

 Ethnic MANUAL | SC1-SC5  SC6-S02  PO1-PO3  PO4-PO7 PO8+ ~ TOTAL
G T T e f T W T W T TR T wE
BaMe T a5 aral s T ee 1 Tee e 00 T B
AS  White 00 6 333 1 00 0 00 7 389
- el o e B O B
BeME T Taa s Tne s B s e
B T B b S ey
ow o as s Tme T s el 4 s 3
| savE o as o e e ey s

‘CR  White 00 00 0 00 00 2
T |0 enl o adl s et Theld o s
BavE o 55 0 a3’ 1 s Tas o Tea 0

1 0

0 O

1 0

1 O

2 O

0 0

2 0

0

5

5

Dir

‘, -—l

o

56 0 ‘ooiﬁr
f222% 1 iss;

]

—t (] -
—t
-

P o e e 5 ,, 00
: R e T i %00 0 00 1 500
: B&ME 00 0 00
PP White 00 0 00
Total OG H \0 Ob U ;
CBRNE TR e R ekt
e 3 el T T e R e R s 5
5 Tow 050 T el s T2 el e R
00 . 7 538 2R |
4

3
1
4
1
0
1
0
0 .
m0 o
00 0 00
e
0
0
2
2
5
3
8

—
o
o
w4 40 OO0 0O v N W A O =

500

o
2
(@]

N ®w A O O OO O OO O O O = 0

—

BEME 1 Tid oo 17 2as - ee e o0 Vs
| 00 §143‘5{71, 43§ f57g 71
14 24 843 22 314 11410 148 AN

—t
P

4~ O -« O ©O OO OO 0O 0O o0 OO0 o0 o0 o o
—
o

Total

NB: 1 employee from Children and Young Peoples Service is excluded from the above table due to not having an ethnicity
declared, however, falls into salary band SC1-SC5

4 0of 6



Page 153

Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

Summary of Suspension Cases

Casestates ol

| Nofydf,case‘sheéfdw SR kk 10

No.ofcasesnotconoluded 25

" No. of cases not concluded - leaver 1

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

The table below looks at the 36 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If the case has not concluded by the end of the period, the number of working days is calculated

from the start date of the current disciplinary stage to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and average days suspension for cases heard within that period.

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

| S Avg
D ‘, - 61-  121-  181-
- Directorate 1-60}’ 120 180 240 ;240+

~cases days total
~ cases

AS 5 3 1 0 0 9 52 58

c 8 83 0 1 0 12 665 55

‘CR 3 0

N
- O
o

5 359 72

PO 10

o o

0
PP 1 o0 o o 1 8 8
0

UE 3 4

K=

HGY 21 10 3 1 1 3 2324 65

Total cases

~heard 6 4 0 0 ,,O ,,10

On average, 65 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter.

5of6

1 2 254 127

o 7 512 73

 Total  Total days of = Max.
- Days

133

189

149

241

8

97

041

~ Total
 cases

heard  pearg

5
4

1

10

Avg” o

- days of i

cases
56
71

38

60



Page 154

[ Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate
450
400 -
350 -
300 A
250
200 [149]
150 —
100 - ’:353
50 &
0 et

Avg. days Max. days

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter and highlights Haringey Council’s
average number of days per case.

No. of Cases and Average days taken per Case

by Quarter

200
160 -
120 -

80 1

40 -

0 - = 4
Oct08 - Dec08 Jan09 - Mar09 Apr09 - Jun09 Jul09 - Sep09
Total Number of Cases B Average Days per Case .

The average number of days taken per suspension case has been consistent over the last year,
showing the benefit of the ongoing scrutiny and focus on management action.

6of 6



Page 155 Agenda Iltem 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 5 November 2009

Report Title: Risk Management update — Quarter 2 2009/10

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@bharingey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1To inform the Audit Committee of the current position on risk management
implementation across the Council.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council’s risk
management framework is in place and operating effectively. Internal audit reviews
key risk registers, the controls in place to manage the identified risks.
Recommendations for improvement are made, where appropriate.

2.2 Risk management forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources
assessment and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports
to both managers and the Audit Committee on the implementation of the Council’s risk
management policy and strategy ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the implementation of the risk
management strategy across the Council.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)
4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council's Risk Management
Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and




Page 156

provide information on its implementation across the Council, progress reports are
provided on a regular basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the
implementation of the Council’s risk management framework throughout the authority.
This report focuses on the work undertaken during the second quarter of 2009/10 to
ensure the risk management framework is complied with.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of the is report,
and advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report or the
recommendations.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer has no additional comments to add.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks are managed across all areas of the Council, which
have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements in managing risks
and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides to all sections of
the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of risk registers and internal audit reports. Their
comments are included in the final report which is circulated in accordance with the
agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments
12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 157

internal audit to implement the Council’s risk management framework is part of the
contract with Deloitte and Touche which was awarded following a competitive
tendering exercise in compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of
this contract are contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management
revenue budget. Service departments manage risks as part of the routine work to
achieve their business plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices
13.1  Appendix A — Update on risk registers Quarter 2 2009/10

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1The Council’'s Risk Management strategy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that
it reflects current operational requirements and best practice. The latest version was
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 23 April 2009.

15.2 The Chair of the Audit Committee requested that a report on risk management and
compliance with the Council’s strategy be presented to the Committee on a quarterly
basis. The review and testing of risk registers formed part of the 2009/10 annual audit
plan which was approved at the Audit Committee meeting on 23 April 2009. This is an
ongoing process to ensure the key controls to manage identified risks are effective and
operate as intended.

16. Risk Registers

16.1 The Council has been implementing a new performance management system
(Covalent) which also includes a risk management module. Risk registers are managed
electronically at business unit, department and corporate level.

16.2 Appendix A shows the latest position for all Business Units and Directorates as at 30
September 2009. Risk registers for business units and directorates are up to date and
reviewed in accordance with the Council’s risk management strategy. During 2009/10, a
number of organisational changes have taken place across the Council. Within Urban
Environment, the Enforcement Business Unit is now contained within Frontline Services
Business Unit. Within PPP&C, Neighbourhood Management Business Unit is now
contained within Safer Communities Business Unit. The risk registers for Enforcement
and Neighbourhood Management have been incorporated into the new Business Unit
structure and will be reported within this for 2009/10.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 158

16.3The risk registers have been reviewed in accordance with the planned programme of
audit work. The electronic Covalent system replicates the previous format for the
council’s risk registers, but provides Business Unit Managers with a more effective and
flexible reporting and monitoring process than the previous manual process. The
electronic system is able to produce a variety of reports and information to suit the
managers’ requirements. The electronic system allows managers to view and sort their
current risks individually, or by risk rating; RAG status: or actions due.

16.4 The process to input the current risk registers on to the performance management
system was undertaken during the first and second quarters of 2009/10. During the
second quarter 2009/10, risk registers from Urban Environment, P&OD, and CYPS
have been loaded onto the Covalent system and training has been provided to the
departmental representatives. Electronic management and reporting of risk registers is
now in place for all departments of the Council in accordance with the previously agreed
timetable.

16.5Covalent automatically sends email reminders to the business unit representatives
when updates are due and the system will provide an audit trail to allow for monitoring
and follow up by Internal Audit. Internal Audit will also provide resources (as part of the
annual audit plan) to assist business units on an ongoing basis and to ensure that all
actions and updates are being done in accordance with the relevant timescales.

16.6 The corporate risk register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Chief Executive’s
Management Board and reported annually to the Audit Committee.

17. Partnership Risk Management

17.1 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), under the Use of Resources annual
assessment requires the Council to have appropriate arrangements in place to provide
assurance on the risk management processes of its key partnerships. Although the
Audit Committee only has direct responsibility for the Council’s risk management
arrangements, the processes to provide assurance for key partnerships are detailed
below.

17.2 The Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) formally adopted its own risk management
strategy in July 2008. Haringey Council supported the process to implement the HSP
risk management strategy during 2008/09 and all the HSP Thematic Boards introduced
their own risk registers, with an overarching HSP risk register approved by the HSP
Board in 2009.

17.3 As the lead organisation, the Council has been supporting the HSP in the ongoing
implementation and monitoring of its risk management strategy. During 2009/10, the
HSP risk registers will be loaded onto the Council’s electronic Covalent system to assist
in the development and improvement of risk management for the HSP on an ongoing
basis. It is estimated that this will be fully completed by 31 March 2010.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 159

17.4 Homes for Haringey (HfH) has its own risk management strategy which has been
formally adopted by the HfH Board. The strategy is reviewed on a regular basis and HfH
has risk registers in place to manage and monitor its key risks. The implementation of
the strategy and the management of its risk registers and key controls forms part of the
HfH annual internal audit plan. Audit and Risk Management provide the internal audit
service for HfH and any risks which impact on Haringey Council are reported via the
agreed reporting processes.

17.5During 2009/10, the Council will seek assurances from other key partners outside the
HSP and HfH that their risk management arrangements are appropriate and fulfil the
requirements of both the Council and the CAA Use of Resources. It is estimated that
this will be fully completed by 31 March 2010.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 160

730 193eq

600z lequaydag S92IAI9S Ajlunwiwo) pue ainynd synpy 1daq (SDOV) seonesg
Ajunwiwo) pue ainyng synpy ve
6002 Joquiaydag SHIOMJON S,UaIpIiyd ngd SdAD X4
6002 Joqwaldeg wawdojona ¥ pHoddng ssauisng ng SdAD 2z
600¢ Joquaydsg uoisnjouj pue spiepuels jooyos ngd SdAD X4
6002 Joquadag saljiwe4 g uaipliyo nd SdAD 4

6002 Joquiaydas 90IAI9S §,9|d09d BUNOA @ UaIpliyd ydaQg (SdAD) @dInIeS
s,0|doad BunoA pue uaipjiy) 6l
6002 1oquieydeg saoIneg Auadold ajel0dio) ng IeTe) g1
600z loquwisldeg JUBWBIN001d d)elodio) ng I Te) Ll
6002 Joquiaydeg Juawabeue sty B IpNY ng A0 9l
6002 Joquieydag aoueul4 ajei0dio) ng ISTe) Sl
6002 Joquiaydag uoljexe] [ed07 @ sjjauag nd d0 vl
6002 Joquiaydeg SDOIAIBG JWOIsNy ng d0 €l
6002 Joquiaydeg S82IMBG 1| ng d0 4]
6002 Joqwaydag S90IADG |ebo] nd d0 L
6002 1890100 $924n0s9Yy djes0dio) 1daq (YD) soo1nosay ajes0dio) ol
600z Joquieydes Buiulea x uswdojaaq jeuonesiuebiQ ng ao-3In 6
6002 Jaqwaydeg poddng Jequiajy pue Adesoowa( 8207 ng ao-3an o}
6002 Joquwaldes $92IN0S9Y UeWNnH ng ao-3an .
6002 Joquieydag Juswdojana( jeuonesiuebl) ieEYq wawdojaaag jeuonesiueblQ - 39 o}
6002 Joquiaydag 20UBWLIOHad B AdIjod nd Oddd - 30 )
6002 Joquiaydag suojediunwwogy ng Oddd - 30 14
6002 Joquiaydes Saljjunwwoy Jojes ng Oddd - 30 €

6002 Jaquwaldes uoiedIUNWWOoD ydaqg uoneosunwiwo) g sdiysiouped
© sdiysiauped aduewlopad Asljod aouewopad Aaljod - 30 2
6002 4990}00 19)s1b69y ajelodio) | ajesodio) gn3aon - ajesodio) L

ajepdn
juadaui Jsow Jo aje(q a1 19)s169y ysiy [oA9T] jusawpedaq

v xipuaddy

Arewwng ajepdn J193s169Yy YSIY - 01/6002 2 13end poday ssaiboid




Page 161

7Jo 7 9%ed

600¢ Joquialdas

juswdojanaq Adljod 3 buluue|d ng an| c¢
600¢ Jaquiaydag S9JIAISS duljjuoid ng an e
600¢ Joquieydag BuisnoH Ajunwwio) g d1bslelig ng an| o¢
600¢ Joqwia}deg JUBWIUOIIAUT uBeqJn 1daq (IN) wawuosAug ueqin 62
6002 Joqueydeg salelqi] @ buluies ‘aunyn)d ngd SO0V | 8¢
6002 Jaquiaydag S9OIAI8G UOfealddy ng SO0V | /2
600¢ Joqueydag S90IAIBS JINPY ng SO0V | 92
600¢ 1oquiaydag ABojeng g bujuoissiwwo) ng SO0V | &2

ajepdn

juasal Jsow jo ajeq a3 J9)sibay ysiy LN juawiedag

v xipuaddy

Arewwng ajepdn J1a)siBay Ysiy - 01/600Z Z 19)enp Joday ssaibold




Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Gl e Agenda Iltem 12

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [No ]
Audit Committee On 5 November 2009

Report Title: Alexandra Palace - follow up audit of corporate governance and
internal controls at the Charitable Trust and Trading Company

Report Authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To advise the Audit Committee of the follow up audit work completed following the
original review of corporate governance and internal control arrangements at
Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable Trust and Alexandra Park Trading Limited.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing systems and undertaking
investigations, where appropriate, to reduce risks and improve controls.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Audit Committee notes the contents of the report and the actions agreed and
being taken to address the findings and recommendations.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of internal audit
work completed and the implementation of agreed recommendations as part of its
Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, reports are provided for review and
consideration by the Audit Committee.




Page 164

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Chief Financial Officer Comments

6.1 The Chief Financial Officer is satisfied with the actions taken to date by officers from
APTL and APPCT and considers these appropriate to address the internal audit
recommendations.

7. Comments of the Head of Legal Services

7.1 The actions undertaken by the CFO, as detailed in this report, to ensure that proper
financial and governance arrangements are in place for the trust and its trading
subsidiary, are within the scope of the duties of the CFO under section 151 Local
Government Act 1972. These actions are consistent with independent decision-
making by the Board of the APPCT in accordance with its duties as charity trustee
and independent decision-making by the Board of the APTL in accordance with its
Articles of Association.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed within Alexandra
Palace charitable trust and trading company, which have an impact on various parts
of the Council and the community as a whole. Improvements in managing risks and
controls will therefore improve services which Alexandra Palace charitable trust and
trading company and the Council provides to all sections of the community.

9. Consultation

9.1 The follow up reports referred to in this report have been agreed with officers at
Alexandra Palace charitable trust and trading company and have been presented to
the respective Boards for consideration and approval.

10. Service Financial Comments

10.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Internal Audit has
provided advice and guidance where appropriate to support Alexandra Palace
Charitable Trust and APTL in the implementation of recommendations. The cost of
undertaking the follow up audit work has been contained within the Audit and Risk
Management revenue budget.

11. Use of appendices

11.1  Appendix 1 — APPCT follow up report
Appendix 2 — APTL follow up report

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 165

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

13. Background

13.1 The Council has previously provided temporary resources, including staff and financial
support, to Alexandra Palace in order to assist in improving the systems and controls in
place. In order to ensure that appropriate governance and internal control
arrangements were in place, the Council’s Chief Financial Officer requested that an
internal audit be undertaken of both the charitable trust and trading company using
powers under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972.

13.2 The work was completed and the findings and recommendations agreed with the
relevant managers at APPCT and APTL. Action plans to address the recommendations
were also agreed with the APPCT and APTL managers and reported to the Boards of
APPCT and APTL. The recommendations and management actions to address these
were approved by the respective Boards during 2008. The audit reports were
subsequently reported to this Audit Committee at its meeting of 28 October 2008. The
Audit Committee recommended that all internal audit recommendations were
implemented by 31 March 2009.

13.3 Internal Audit undertook follow up reviews at both organisations during April and May
2009, to ensure that the agreed actions had been implemented. Since the original audit
reviews were completed, there had been substantial changes to the management
structure and personnel at Alexandra Palace. This was partially in response to the
findings and conclusions of both the separate independent review and the internal audit
work.

13.4 The findings and reports of the follow up audit work were again discussed and agreed
with the respective managers at Alexandra Palace. The follow up reports have both
been submitted to the Boards of APPCT (October 2009) and APTL (June 2009) for
review and consideration.

13.5 The Boards of APTL and APPCT acknowledged that although not all recommendations
had been fully implemented at the time the follow up audit work was undertaken,
substantial progress had been made to address the key risk and control issues which
had been originally raised by internal audit. Both APTL and APPCT Boards approved
the actions which were being undertaken and proposed by senior management in order
to fully implement the audit recommendations.

13.6 Internal Audit have agreed the key actions which remain outstanding with APTL and
APPCT managers. Improvements in governance and control frameworks have been
made and work to fully embed these has been endorsed by APTL and APPCT Boards.
Internal audit is satisfied that the original recommendations are being addressed by

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 166

managers at Alexandra Palace. Internal audit will undertake a final follow up review
during March 2010 to ensure that all recommendations have been fully implemented.

13.7 The Council is providing ongoing temporary support to Alexandra Palace to assist with
the implementation of recommendations and the proposed improvements in
governance arrangements and internal controls. Liaison with the Director of Corporate
Resources, the Chief Financial Officer and officers from Corporate Finance is
continuing on a regular basis.

13.8 Summaries of both reports are now attached to this report for information.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



N\

wl

m

2l jo | ebed

6007 1dquidadag (3snu ], ay)) - de[ed vIPUBXIY NpnY dn-mo[[o] 9IAIIS JIpNyY [euIdjuf

Page 167

oy 4o} Buuue|d
~1gisewl o1bereas
BUNINY WO {jIV
puE UoIBIOE]oY
10 S|OAB)

ybiy ainsus pue
sdnoib 1sese

10 wniosds
peOIQ B $S0I08
slopjoueye;s
abebus 1

MOM SIUL "dY

Jo Buipueiq ey

JO MBIABL B UM
auly Ul Buissesboud
S1 UDIYM oM
siy} Bueesisao

S| pUB PBLLLIDY
ussq sey dnoig
Buuess 10804

W eouBuBACD
UBLIND 8L 4O
ineysano Jejealb e
Joy Ayunpoddo sy
paBrubiy yomm
Jeded e psuoddns
se@snl] ‘08 aunp

et
&

'600¢ sunp

w01 8y} 10} 18s
uoaq sey Aep Aeme
uy "piemioy Aem
ay] pue S}UBIUOD
ay] SSNosIp 0}
.SAep Aeme,, pjoy
0] PAAjOSal UBd(
sey 1l jeyl Jipne
[eulajul pasiApe
10ddV '600¢
Aenige4 ul pieog
ay] 01 pajussaid
SEM 90UBUIDAOK)

"9SJN0D aNp Ul S9v)sn.}
8y} o} papodal 8q |IMm siy}
pue ybnos ussq sey yoiym
aoInpe [ebo] ajeledss oy} uo
Apaeay AJ4 M pPaonpuod
SI I usym MmalAas Yy

pansind jou 1nqg

pieoq 8y jo Jeyd usyl syl
AQ dn ueye] sem Jojew ayj

"SI0SIApE
10 s190Ij0 AjUeyD By} Wouy
indur  1noyum  sevlsnil o
pJeoq ey} 0} pepuiwgns sem
yolym Gooz jo Hodai 8y}
Ul epew SsuoljepuUsSWWOI3
ay} 1deooe jou pip pJeoq

‘9oueldwod
Bunesnsuowsp

pleog oy} 03 spodai
Jrenbal yum ‘uonesiuebio
oy} ssouoe siseq bujobuo
ue Uo yum paiidwod

S }i Jey} ainsus pue
‘paulep si uotjesado sy
Buimeinai pue BuLiojuOW
10} Ajgisuodsai

1ey} ainsus ‘) asiolgnd
01 saunsesw a1eudoidde
aye} ‘uonesiuebio

119y} 40} 9OUBUIDAOY)

uo Bunesw preoy a1e10di0D ayr Jeyr no spod Inq a1e10dio) Jo 8p0n
10ddV 8y iy 10 8p0D HeIp v Sjuswabuele  SOUBUISAOD e ooe|d Ul Ind Isnif oyl
010¢e 91240d.100 MaINBI
SOA yosep DOABIUDY 10N poOASIyoY 10N 6002 |udy | M 1 eyl seaibe | OddV L SOUBUISAOE) 9j810dio)) |
600¢
squieideg e (6002 2unp)
palinbay e
uonoy aulpeaq | iebeueyy riousn 1pne dn-moj|o} auijpea(
juswebeuepw pasianay Aq ayepdn JO awi} je snjels feuibLQO asuodsay juswebeuepw Aoud uoljepuSWIWOodYy




2l jo g abed 6002 Joqueldag (isnil ay}) - adejed eipuexaly Hpny dn-mojjo4 991A18S HpNY [eusaju]
pue 18qo ?é
np sbuie
ple am iz mmﬁz‘
aq |Im ses)sn
‘PBsSBIPPE
B {JIM MIOM DU
wawebeuel
xm: oibe1eas
2 jenenb 1xXeu 8t m
W inq Apent gw
199 m«,; aoueldwos uoISSnosIp
lesew B mc.?gz Jayuny Joy
‘eoueydwos | Aep Aeme psuue|d
aAne|sibey 8y} ul papnjoul 8q ‘uoljesijueblo
% SOIUBIDIBD [IIM onss| siy} eyl 8y} SS0J0e pappaque
ve] [IMS 10 | POSIAPE 819M JIpny pue yym pailjdwod
Aw SBNSS! 5@5 e} [eusou] -bBunsew S|}l Jey} ainsus pue
o uoys £ Mw@@‘,.ﬁ% pseog Arenige- ‘pauysp si uoesado s
')} PUE oy} 1e Ja)sibal ysu pesye Buimainal pue Buuojuow
© ! Heap pue sjnpayoss Buiob jou si Juswdoprsp J04 Aljigisuodsai
o Buimeinal swebeuew Ysi 8y} 1ey} mou paiinbai 1ey} ainsus ‘uopesiueblo
Aeoibeieis e yum psjussaid S| yoiym ABojests Jo Mainsl 8y} Jidy} 10} Ylomowel}
ueaq sey 9JOM SO91SNI} uo JuebunuUod 8q 8SIN0D 4O |[IM wswabeuew Ysu
jebeueyy [BiaUeL) | 8Y] 9OUBUISAOY) JO uondope jewio- ‘se91sni} Jo e Juswejdwy 3snij eyl
sl 84yl | apon oy} 4o ped sy pJeoq ay} 0} }oeq siyl podsi
6008 pue Abajelis Juswebeuew Siomawen]
SOA J8quuede( peAaIyoy Ajued panaiyoy Ajued 6002 IHdy YSH SH MIIASM JIIM | DddY JuswieDBeUBI XS 2
plilab’e}
2 10} WNIO-
IBPIOUSNEBIS B pue
Jegusides 9g 10}
pPOINPBYoS uss(y
sey Aeplemy oy
BUS




2l Jo ¢ ebed

6002 Joquieydeg (Isni] ayy) - eoejed eipuexs|y Hpny dn-mojjo4 8diAIeS PNy |euidlu]

b

Page 169

SOA

6008
Jaquianeq

.

"} 1B paquosep
MIOM BOUBLLIBAOL)
JO MBIABY BU}

10 ped se payelp
o [jIM MJomaue
feuly oy
(eyeudoudde

SOOISIUL YIM
UOIBYNSUOD Ul

} 5UOISIOBD SaMel
pue uswebpn{
SOSIVIOXD
wheury pBUen
8yl Ing Hy pue
10ddV 10 s1900
Jojues ussmiag
uosiey senbal
yum ‘Ajeanose
ajetado
cdiysuonee.

SullsIXe ay]

~

E;af;

poreIyoy AjLed

"uolBJISPISUOD
Joj payesp

ug8q sey |1ounoD
AebBureH yim
diysuonejal sy}
uo UOol}eIaPISUOD
Jo} Joded v

paAaiyoy Ajued

6002 udy

‘[elolsuaq 9q 10U PiNom
yolym J1dv Jo diysiooaup
MOpBUS B JO  UOljjeald
JusLeApRUl  BY} O} pes|
Kew HET yum uone|oosse
ue 9soj0 00] 1By} Xsu e si
218U} Jey} pajou g Isnw 3|

sJooyjo Aloyine jeoo} pue
UOISSILIWOD Ajieyd ‘I0}0loS
1SnJ} 9Ul Yyum uonelnsuod

Ul omswel; B eulep
pue sdiysuopejas Bunsixe
8yl Mmeinel IM [ OddV

"'$99)SNJ} 8y}
AQ pelosfe) ajom SjUSUO0D
8yl Ing obe owi} swos
so8IsnJ} 8yl 01 pawgns
sem ooueusonob ojelodiod
uo siaoljo Auioyine |eoo|
ayl Aq podai y "uoiniisuod
HE1 8y1 ut paulep Apusind
S| HG1 pue | DddV usamisq
yomewely Bunesedo 8yl

pieog
s 1snJj 8y} 0} suodel
olul j1Iouno)) AsbueH
woJy indui [ebs) pue
[etoueuly Joj Bujwiy pue
sassaoo0.d ay) Ajoads
pINoYs 3lomawel} oy

‘llouno) AsbuneH
pue suoinesiueblo
8U] USBMISQ MIomawel)
Bunesedo ue sovibe
Ajjewoy 1sni| aylL

[lduno)) AsbuLieH
yim diysuohepy ‘¢

BOOE BUIBAOHN




2l Jo v ebed

6002 Jequweldeg (Isni] ay}) - 9oejed eipuexaly 1pny dn-mojjo4 8dIAI8S Hpny [eulsiu]

Yelp M pue Sseudeom

-\

WO} SODINISS
1S
pue jebe
‘JUBWAIND0I
apesodion

Buisn Apusing

S1 D) WLy
Bl "JusWeIN00Id
ajelodion yum
soeid UL SIYIS Y

"9AOUE

‘pasiwoldwod

usaq pey uoljesedss
Aressadau ayj ey} opnjouod
0} 9J9M UOISSIWWOoD Aeyn
8y1 JI suoissnosedal snoLss
SABY PINOD YdIYM SISDIHO0

pue sasajsni Ajlieyd sy}

JO SUOISIOBP Y} JSAO sousnjjul
anpun Buiaey Ayioyine

[e00]| 8U} JO XS4 B OS[e S| 8Jsy ]

SIOMBWel]
ON paAsIyoy pansiyoy Ajued | 6002 yorey | B S! SIUl e} s8aibe 10ddv JusWabeue JOBIIUCD G
ooe|d Ul 8q
PINOYS SUOIIBPUSWWOI8
Jo uolejusweldwii
pue spodei
Hpne [eussiul JO Malnal
Buipnjoul ‘syuswebuere
Buloyuo
‘preog ayy Aq pasibe ase
yoiym ‘eoeid ul 8q pjnoys
Auedwo) Buipe. | sue|d ypne [enuuy

pue Ajreyd syl
4104 10} SIOUpPNE ‘suonesiuebio
- LV [eUISIUI MU sy Jo} eoed
~ pUB 10ddyY Ul J0} uolyeoIoads '6002 Udiey ul aJe sjuswabuelre
— 01 SIOHPNE [BUIBILI e Bupedaid AQ suolouny lpne feussiul Hpne jeuisiul oyendoidde
n_nuv se pajuiodde usaq sl eoUBUI4 juswseidwi-al 0} MOO| |IMm 1ey} sainsus isnij oyl
O] MOU BABY SIeZBIN JO pesH 8yl ooueUly Jo pesH pajuiodde

L Amau oyl  'sseudeom SWENEEI;

ON /N peABIyoY PoABIYOY 10N | 600 Yoty | © SB Pesuboods si siul 1PNy BRI ‘v
‘HA




2l Jo g ebed

6002 Joqueldeg (1snil ay}) - eoejed eipuexaly Hpny dn-mojjo4 991M8S HpNY [euldu]

4 =4

D). rmirm
rage 171

%wggxmwuﬁ%%
8y} 40} uonesedsd

au} jo ued
SB DSJUBWINDOOP
1 {1 SAomauey)
wswebeuepy
JoBIUON) BY |

{81080
wswabeuniy
sonijive|

pue ALnoss
‘B3) “sHyom
108uU00 A8y Ul
PEAJOAUT ApAOE
ale HOYT wody
seonieg [eben
2 JUBWIBIND0I
ayesodiony
‘senposold
vIseq HOY
sn O} S\NUIUOY
pue pesn sey
Jebeuep BIBUBE
iUy 8y

pu

‘sjoas] oibe1ens
pue juswebeuetu
jeuonessdo g
ays uo Bupeiado
SIOJORIUOD

LIS} YUM

play ese sbupssw
MBIABY 10BIUON
jewioy ‘aeinbey

poalbe ussq

aAney 9S8y} Hpne
dn moj|o} 8y} jo
9sn09 8y} Buunp
papusWIWOod)
usaq aAey
$|0JJU0D [EUOIIPPY
"UoIjBWIOUI AS)
MOYS 0} pajesaio
usaq aAey Jojsibai
ases] pue Js)sibal
10BJJUOD B pue
aoe|d Ul mou aJe
SJOBJUOD || “YIOM
JejnBas Bupepspun
$10}0BIU0D

urew sy} ypum

pjey aJe sbuijesw
aus Jejnbal
uolippe uj "pleoq
8y} 0} paspodal

9q 01 sl V1S 9y} JO
Buiubis ay) "600¢
judy Wol) aAl0aye
wes} Juswainooud
S JIdUNOY 8y} Yim
(V1S) 1uswealby
[oAST] 90INIOS

JeaA auo e o
paJajud sey Ajieyn
8y swainooid
pue s}0eljuoo

Jo wswabeuew
8y} Yumisisse O]

‘Bulispus)
-a) pojsnaid sey yoiym
Buipjing 8y} jo oses| Buoj
B BIA JBjSue] Ysu Jo Abajess
99]1SnJ} pue JIDUNoY ||BISAO
8yl eAslyoe 0} OAUp 8y}
JO }NsaJ 108Jip B SI 9AOQE
pojijuspl SlOoBJUOD 9SOy}
uo uolysod wLBMND 8yl

‘syuomauel) sigelins

preog ayi jo

JUSWIBAJOAUI 8y} Bulpnjoul
‘spuswislinbal Buipodal
pue jeacidde suljep
pPINOYS YJomawed} 8yl

‘uonesiueblio

8} SS0JI0B pappaque
pue yum paiidwod st i
1By} 84Nsud pue ‘paulep
s1 uonesado sy Buimeinal
pue Buloyuow

1o} Ayjiqisuodsel

Jey} ainsus ‘uopesiueblo
JIBY} 10} HIOMBWIB )
JuswiebeueWw J0BIUOD

e Juaws|dwi }snil syl




2l jo g ebed

6002 Jequeldes (Isni] ay}) - aoejed eipuexsjy ipny dn-mojjo4 89IAI8S PNy |eulsiu]

LWoISNo pamalnal uss(q MOU ey Bulures; Jels pue mainal
ApAnoR sey sjesiesdde yeis aouewlopad jeuloy e
Jebeuepy [BIOUDY) e 19W JOU SBM 1y} aInsud jjIim Isni} 8y
wielu] 8y 800z Joquiaideg 80 Joqusldes
J0 dulIpEap gooz | 40 Ppue 8yl Aq pesieidde JUSWIdOEAST JEIS Pue
SOA Y/N poAeiyoy oyl ybnouyy | Jequeldeg | USSG SBABY [IM JElS IV MaIASY SoUeBlllopdd "/
9ouBUI{ JO peaH
S,]IoUnoyd 8y} yIm
siseq Jejnbal e uo
HET 0 | 199W MOU 8duBUlH
JBUL YHM SS800IC JO pesH pue
Bues 19bpng | J10y00a1q Buibeuen
su ubye o) idwene Auedwos sy
N msnig eyl | ‘Jebeuely |eseusn ‘preog
™~ ayL “Areyo aU} JO JUSWISAJOAUI 8Y)
> g|gelawy 8y} o saAoalqo BuIpn|oUl ‘SjusLalinbal
> oUNoo 8yl uim | pue AbBsyesis aininy Buinodss pue Buropuow
(O || Ul paIIgns | eyl POAjoSal 8.y ‘eroidde suyep
o Buleg ale 11-0102 $99]SNJ} 8y} 92U0 PINOYS JOMBLRI) 8Y |
Jo) suoneoydde | ueld ssauisng Jesh
euden 824y) e 9onpo.d "uolewIojul Jeak ‘paulysp
0} pepus}ul 9aJy} apinoid 0} JINOABSpUS s1 ssaib0id sy Buimelnal
‘pebeurLu SI 1l Jeyy pssiape [IIM 3 Ing ‘OS se0p Ul 1eyl 1oe pue Buuiojuow
fioanoeoid | osem upny [eussu] senueyd 8yl Jo juswedinbal J1oy Aljigisuodsal
18 UDIUM ‘6002 YoIe ou sI amlyl welshs Jey) seunsus
aunypuadxs NBY ur ue|d ssauisnq Hg1 8y uyum ubje jou pue ‘uoiesiuebio Jisyl
10} slppoul 1800 | Jeak suo e peldope seop Buuueld 10ddv eyl Jo} siomaured} bujuueld
padojansp sey puE PaJapISu0d pue [eluusyy si 8040 Buluueld ssoulsng [ewlo}
1obeuepy eiousy) seoIsni) Hd1 94y} jeyl sieme S| | DddV € sjusws|dwi 3sni| 8yl
WwiLIeU| 8L | Aweyo eyl ‘uonesedsid 186png [enuue
6002 800z | 1° Aem Aq Buuuejd sssuisng §55501g
SEIN Jaqueos( | peAsiyoy Ajued peAsIyoy Ajued | Jeqwenon | Ul S®MEUSpUN  3sni Syl Buiuue|q sseuisng ‘9
"JORIUOD T




Page 173

2l Jo L ebed

6002 Joquweldeg (1sni] ayj) - aoejed eipuexs|y ypny dn-mojjo 92IAI8S 1pny [eulalu]

wsuewad

[[e 104 PaNPay0s
aJe sfeseidde
aoueuLOped
pue 1snij.
BY] JO SI80I|0

10} peonpoud useq
SEBY YoOogpueH
He1s mau

‘aonoeid pue

jlouno) sy}

Ag pasn Ajjuannd
sl yeyy aleidway
8y} peydope

sey Aireyn

a1 pue Apeal
20IM} sjesieidde
aouewopad
pioy o} pspusiul
s }| ‘paledwod

‘pleogd oy}

Buipnjoul ‘seiued Jueasiel
jle Jo sanjigqisuodsai

pue s9|04 8y} Ajoads
pINOYS yiomawelj oy

‘PaoONPOIIUl S| YIoMawely
juswidojensp pue




2l Jo g ebed

6002 1oquwiaideg (1sni] ay)) - aoejed BipueXa|y HpNy dn-mojj04 92IAI9S HpNY [euiaiul

Damaa-47A
rage 174

V/N

pauenbai
ueaq sAey
siuswsburle
au] pue sunp 0f
uo Bunssiu sey}
1e sevsni] Ag
pPOasSBIPPE S18M
sa01nes [ebsT

‘sjene) oibeies
pue Wwawesbeuew
jeuonesedo e
s uo Bupeiado
$4010B41U0D

Wha} Yim

piey aJe sbunesw
MBIABY 10BIUON)

euio) aenboy

0L/8/1¢e

Ag soeid u
I0BIUOD MBU B I0)
pefeuew osfoid
Bueq 1084U09)
IR Seloe
paroidu

oineg eben

>

HO®T 1o voddns
M paejchuos
uoBQ 8By
10BAU0D AlIND8S
4O UOIIBAON

paAsIloy

‘preog oy}

AQ uoneIapIsuod
Jayuny 03 109lgns
aq [jIM S90IAISS
jebsj 1o} 10BNUOD
B JO 9nss| 9y} eyl
pasIApE 9Jom Hpny
jeusaiu| “Auinoes
pue Buussuibus
Jo} aoe|d

Ui 8Je sjoeiu0)D

paAsiyoy Ajued

9ouBUl JO pESH
Mmau ayr Ag pelonpuod
Puleq  sainpeoosd  pue
S|0JJUOD [BIOUBUY JO MSIASI
e jo ped se ybnos oq |Im
20IApE Juswainooid Jeyund

"9SIN0D
anp ui pJeoq sy} 01 papodal
g [IIM SsIyl pue 1snJiy sy} 0}
sooIM8s [eba) au) jo 10elgns
8yl uo dompe Bupjees
si Jobeuew [elouen) oyl

‘palopusy
=94 8Q |jIM I UBYm QL0¢ 11un
popusIXe Usaqg sky 10eiuod
Buuesuibue  8ul ‘6002
judy ur unbBeq 10BJAUOD
MU B pue  paiepusi
SI 1 N painoes sl
uonoun} AlINJ8s 8y} ainsus
01 podopasp Buleq si
uejd piemioy v -Buussuibug
pue AJNosg 10} S}OBJUOD
JO aInin} 9yl pPaIopIsSu0d
Ajueodal eney 10ddv Ul

‘S90INIDS [eD9)
pue ‘Buussuibue

‘sjuswebue.te
Alinoas

140}

soeid Ul aJe sS]oBIUOD
eyl ainsus  pjnoys
Isnil syl “ejnoiped uj

‘suonejnbal
swainoosd  Alonels
pue |20} yum sajjdwod

ainypusadxe sl

eyl

ainsus pjnoys 1snij ayl

juswisbeUeA 10B1IUOD '8




2l Jo 6 ebed

6002 Joquierdes (1snil ayy) - 8dejed eipuexaly Hpny dn-mojjo4 90IAI8S HpNy [eulsiu

Z=

Fage 179

SOA

YW/N

souswLiouad

pue A

SA0ICLL O} SN YUM
SaNss| WIS} Yoys
Buissaippe sie

PNy jeuliul MY

‘saaidxe
10BU00 Bu<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>